
Please note:  Certain or all items on this agenda may be recorded 
 

Agenda compiled by: 
Andy Booth 
Governance Services 
Civic Hall 
LEEDS LS1 1UR 
Tel: 24 74325 
 

 
 
 

Principal Scrutiny Adviser: 
Angela Brogden 
Tel: 24 74553 

  Produced on Recycled Paper 

 
A 

 

 

 

SCRUTINY BOARD (SAFER AND STRONGER COMMUNITIES) 
 

 
Meeting to be held in Civic Hall, Leeds on 
Monday, 12th March, 2012 at 10.00 am 

 
(A pre-meeting will take place for ALL Members of the Board at 9.30 a.m.) 

 
MEMBERSHIP 

 
Councillors 

 
B Anderson (Chair) - Adel and Wharfedale; 

R Grahame - Burmantofts and Richmond 
Hill; 

K Groves - Middleton Park; 

M Hamilton - Headingley; 

J Hardy - Farnley and Wortley; 

P Harrand - Alwoodley; 

G Hyde - Killingbeck and Seacroft; 

J Jarosz - Pudsey; 

J Marjoram - Calverley and Farsley; 

C Townsley - Horsforth; 

N Walshaw - Headingley; 

 
 

Public Document Pack



 

B 

A G E N D A 
 
 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

1   
 

  APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION 
OF DOCUMENTS 
 
To consider any appeals in accordance with 
Procedure Rule 25* of the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules (in the event of an Appeal the 
press and public will be excluded). 
 
(* In accordance with Procedure Rule 25, notice of 
an appeal must be received in writing by the Chief 
Democratic Services Officer at least 24 hours 
before the meeting).  
 
 

 

2   
 

  EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE 
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
1 To highlight reports or appendices which 

officers have identified as containing exempt 
information, and where officers consider that 
the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information, for the reasons 
outlined in the report. 

 
2 To consider whether or not to accept the 

officers recommendation in respect of the 
above information. 

 
3 If so, to formally pass the following 

resolution:- 
 
 RESOLVED – That the press and public be 

excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following parts of the 
agenda designated as containing exempt 
information on the grounds that it is likely, in 
view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings, 
that if members of the press and public were 
present there would be disclosure to them of 
exempt information, as follows:- 

           No exempt items on this agenda. 
 

 



 

 
C 

3   
 

  LATE ITEMS 
 
To identify items which have been admitted to the 
agenda by the Chair for consideration. 
 
(The special circumstances shall be specified in 
the minutes.) 
 
 

 

4   
 

  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
To declare any personal/prejudicial interests for the 
purpose of Section 81 (3) of the Local Government 
Act 2000 and paragraphs 8 to 12 of the Members 
Code of Conduct. 
 
 

 

5   
 

  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND 
NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTES 
 
To receive any apologies for absence and 
notification of substitutes. 
 
 

 

6   
 

  MINUTES - 13 FEBRUARY 2012 
 
To confirm as a correct record, the minutes of the 
meeting held on 13 February 2012 
 
 

1 - 4 

7   
 

  LOCAL LETTINGS POLICIES ANNUAL REVIEW 
 
To consider a report from the Director of 
Environment and Neighbourhoods on the outcome 
of the LLP review. 
 

5 - 18 

8   
 

  2011/12 QUARTER 3 PERFORMANCE REPORT 
 
To consider a report from the Assistant Chief 
Executive (Customer Access and Performance) 
summarising the quarter 3 performance data 
relevant to the Scrutiny Board 
 

19 - 
34 

9   
 

  FINANCIAL HEALTH MONITORING 2011/12 
 
To consider the financial position of the 
Environment and Neighbourhoods Directorate after 
10 months of the 2011/12 financial year. 
 

35 - 
44 



 

 
D 

10   
 

  RECOMMENDATION TRACKING 
 
To receive an update report on progress made in 
responding to the recommendations arising from 
the previous Scrutiny review of the Phase 2 Dog 
Control Orders project. 
 

45 - 
56 

11   
 

  WORK SCHEDULE 
 
To consider the Board’s Work Schedule 
 

57 - 
96 

12   
 

  DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING 
 
Tuesday, 3 April 2012 at 10.00 a.m.  Pre-meeting 
for all Board Members at 9.30 a.m. 
 

 

 
 



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	��	����������������������

�

��������	
���	������	��	��������	������������	
	

������	����	��
������	����	
�

��������	
�

�
	���������	����	��	�����������

� �
	��������� ��������!� ��������
"� ������#�$��������$����	��� �$�����
#�#���%��#����&�������'(	������	��
 �)��*�	�	�

�
�
�

��	 �� !"!#$%&'	%(	�&#�"�'#		
	

�
	������ �$�������������������	����	��������	����	���+����,��-�	�	�����
$�������	����	����
�������������	��������������(��������.����/����.����
$�����0�12�
�
�
	������ �)��*�	�	����������������	����	��������	����	���+����,��
-�	�	�����$�������	����	����
�������������	��������������(��������.����
/����.����$�����0�12�
�
�
	������#�$��������������������	����	��������	����	���+����,��-�	�	�����
$�������	����	����
�������������	��������������(��������)����/����)����
$�����0�12�

�
�
	������!� ���������������������	����	��������	����	���+����,��-�	�	�����
$�������	����	����
�������������	��������������(��������.����/����.����
$�����0�1��	�����������������3(����������-+�����	�������-�
�2�
�
�
	�������� ����������������������	����	��������	����	���+����,��
-�	�	�����$�������	����	�������	��������������3(����������-+�����	�������
-�
�2�
�

�)	 �*% %+$�'	(%"	�,'�&��	!&-	�%#$($�!#$%&	%(	�.,'#$#.#�'		
	

���������������	���(�����
��������	�����������
	�������#����&����
�	��/�)�����(2���
	�������� �������(����	�����	��	�������
�����
������
�
	������/�)�����(��	���
	������ �)��*�	�	�(����	�����	��	��������
�
�����
�������
	������#����&���2�
�

��	 �$&.#�'	/	�0	1!&.!"2	����		
	

����34�	5	'����������	
���������������	�������	��4���#�	
������������
�	������������������������2�

�
��	 �6�"6$�7	%(	4�% $!	�&6$"%&8�&#! 	��"6$��'	*"�/* !&&$&+	*., $�	

�%&'. #!#$%&	(%"	#9�	����		
	

Agenda Item 6

Page 1



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	��	����������������������

�

+	�/�����������������.5��
��������������	����6�����.3��
����0�������
��������������������������������0����7������
����
������(������������	�5��
�8������2���'�������������������������.	���	��	���	��/�����
�����
������������3��
��	�������(�����	�������(���6����7���	�
�����	�
�����������
	�����*�	���������	�������������������������������-���
�����	��
������������������
������	������������		�	�����������	��������!������	��
�	��.	�����!�������-���������(���������
��������
���������	������3���	��
����2�

�
'������(�	��(�����	�����	��	���������������9�
�

•� �	���(�0�	������)�����3���������	����������	�����

•� #�	�173
�����	�	��&�������������6�����.	���	��	����3��������

•� ������3������	��	���	�����������:���	���	���
�
'�����������������������
	���������*����	��.5��
���������������
.	���	��	����3���������(���
	�����������	�����������	���
����������	��
����������������	�2��3��
��	�������������������������������	�������
�	���	�������
	���������	��	������������2���
	
+	�����	�����������������	����	��;
����	����������(�	�����
���(����
����
����9�
�

•� '���3��
��	���������*	(��������������������������6��������
��������
�	������	���
��������������	�������	�����(���������������	��2�'����
�	��
����������������	������(�������<(((2�����2�2
*=0����>?������
��
������������	��������������8���������	��?��������������	���������	����	�
�	;
�����@������������?����@�	������	�?����������������	����	��
�����	����	��������
	����-�
�������	��2�

•� ���������
����
�����������������(�����������	������	���������������@
�	������	���	�#�	
����	��������������
	��,8��������2�����������	���������
��������������������*���������������������	��(�����������������
�����	������������7��	������	2�$(���������(���	���������������(�����
��������������	�
�����	��������*��	�������	���������	������������������
�	�
�����	�������
��������������������2�

•� ���������
�����
�����������������	������������������
�������������
������������������@�	������	�2��

•� ������
����������	���(������������������������������
��
	��	������
������2������������*	(�������������	�.	���	��	����+������
��������	��(����	��������	�
������	��
��������������		�	�����������	2��
�����������������		�	���	�
�����	���	�
��(���������;
�������������
.	���	��	�����	����	������0������������������'�
��2�

•� �
��	�����������	����
	������!� �������������������������(����������
������.	���	��	����3������	���������"	��������	�����)�����
+	��	�������������������.	���	��	����!��
�����0����	������AA����	��
��;
����������������������(������	������)�����3���������	��������
��	��������(�	�����������	�2�

•� !�����	���(�����������������
	����0����	� �
����������������������
6�����
	������	�������	������	����	�	�2��'��������������	���������
��
��(��������	��	��-���
���2��+��(���	����������������
��(����

Page 2



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	��	����������������������

�

�������	������(	�������������	������������������
�����������	��������
��������
�����
	������
��2��'���3��
��	���������;
����������������
�����
���	������������2�

•� +��(�����*	(������������6����������	����
�����������	�����(����/1��
+	��	�������	�����������������������	��	��������&�	��������
	����
0����	� �
�2��6����������	�������-���	���������.���������������(�������
�	�������
	���7��0�����-���	���������.������	�����������������
������
���������	�����	���2�

•� ����������*	(���������������
�������
	�����	��	������	�
�����	�(���
���		������������(�����(
�������������������������	��������������
�	��
��	���������
����������������5������	��
��������	���	��	�����������
��������	����	������������������	��2�

�
����34�	5	�

	
<�>� '���������������	������
���	����	���2�
<�>� '�������
������
������	������	�
�����	����������������������

� � 3��
��	������	������	�������������
������	����������		�	���
� � ���������	2�
�

��	 �$&!&�$! 	��! #9	�%&$#%"$&+	����:��	/	�&6$"%&8�&#	!&-	��$+9,%."9%%-'	
$"��#%"!#�		

	
'���������������$������3��
��	���	�����������������	���	������
����������������	�	������������������.	���	��	���	��/�����
�����
�����������������	�	���	������������	�	��������������=��2�
�
!�������.������$������-�	�	����.	���	��	���	��/�����
������(����	�
����	��	���������������2�
	
+	�����	�����������������	����	��;
����	����������(�	�����
���(����
����
����9�
�

•� ���������
���������������	���
	��������&�������������	�������2�

•� +��(�����������������
���������������������	��������	��	���������	����	�
�
	��	������$
��	����	���������������	�3
�����	������������
�����
���������	�3���������$
��	����������
�������	�����������(���BAC,"�
<B8�"���������	���&���������������
���	��>2�

•� -
�����������������	�(����
�����������	���
	��	���������������	����
3(����������	���	��	����(�*��<B�C*>��	�������������������������
������
�������2�

•� !�����	���(���������� ���	��	���
	��	�����	������	�����������������
���������������	�����2��$(���������(���	����������
����
	��	��(
���
	������������������������
��	����������������2��

•� ����������*	(�������������������(���5�����������3��
��	��	������	������
����=�D��
��������������������	���*�	��	�����
	���������.5��
�����
�����(��	�����	�������������
�������������������������	��	������
-���
��������2�

	

Page 3



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	��	����������������������

�

����34�	5	'����������	�	�������������	����	���������	�������	����	���
A��	������
���	����	���2�
	
�

��	 ;%"<	��9�-. �		
	

'���������������$������3��
��	���	�����������������	���������������
����7��(�*������
��2���������������(����������������	��.5��
����������
��	
�����	��������������-�(�������	�������	������������7��������2�
�
��������������(�*������
������������(������*�����	��������������	��
(�*�	����
�������	��9�
�

•� +	;
�����	����������!�	����3�����$
��	��E�)��	��������	��
-���
������������������

•� !����(���$������F�3�������	��-��3������!��
������3��������E�
�	����8����������������������

•� +	;
�����	��-
����������E�'
������4�����������������������
�
����34�	5		'���������������	������
���	����	����
	
�

�=	 !#�	!&-	�$8�	%(	��>#	���#$&+		
	

�	��������������������������2����2�2�<���@�����	��������������������A2D��
�2�2>�
�
�
�
�

Page 4



 

 

Report of Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods 

Report to Safer and Stronger Communities Scrutiny Board 

Date: 12 March 2012 

Subject: Local Lettings Policies Annual Review 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information? 

 

  Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

Summary of main issues  

1. Local lettings policies (LLPs) allow the Leeds Arms Length Management 
Organisations (ALMOs) and the Belle Isle Tenant Management Organisation (BITMO) to 
give preference for accommodation to defined groups of customers outside the reasonable 
preference groups. Leeds has a number of LLPs which give preference for lettings of 
council homes to customers on the basis of their age, employment status or local 
connection to a housing office area.  

2. LLPs are reviewed annually to provide the opportunity to monitor the LLPs against 
their original stated aims and objectives. LLPs require the approval of both the relevant 
ALMO / BITMO Board and delegated approval. 

 

Recommendations 

3. This report updates Scrutiny Board on the outcome of the LLP review. 

 Report author:  Kathryn Bramall 

Tel:  224 3296 

Agenda Item 7

Page 5



 

 

Purpose of this report 

1.1 This report provides information to Scrutiny Board on the provisions of the 
Equality Act 2010 relating to age discrimination, and on the outcome of the annual 
review of the LLPs. 

1.2 The provisions of the Equality Act 2010 relating to age were expected to come 
into force from April 2012, and the ALMOs and BITMO completed their reviews on 
this basis. However, in late February 2012, the government announced their 
decision to delay the implementation until October 2012 at the earliest.  

2 Background information 

2.1 LLPs are permitted under the Housing Act 1996. LLPs were formalised in Leeds 
in 2004. Previously they were operated according to unwritten local ‘custom and 
practice’.  

2.2 The majority of age LLPs are based upon property types, such as multi storey 
blocks, or ‘cottage flats’.  

2.3 In Leeds the main types of LLP in operation give preference to:  

• customers of a certain age, primarily on 1 and 2 bedroom flats (some also 
restrict lettings of 2 bedroom properties at height to customers with 
dependent children) 

• customers with a local connection to the area, mainly family houses in areas 
of high demand and acute shortages of affordable housing in Garforth, 
Kippax, Rothwell and Wetherby 

• customers who meet the ‘Good Neighbour’ criteria on 1 bedroom flats in 
Kirkstall and Horsforth 

• keyworkers / people in employment, for accommodation in the Gipton area 
and single person accommodation in Belle Isle 

• customers living in overcrowded conditions or under occupying social 
housing 

2.4 Preference for sheltered accommodation is given to customers age 60 and over, 
but these are not classed as local lettings policies. Preference for bungalows is 
given to customers age 60 and over, or who require level access accommodation, 
and are not classed as local lettings policies. The age preferences are justified by 
reference to the design and purpose of these types of accommodation, and the 
younger customers who require the services or facilities are eligible for them.  

3 Main issues 

3.1 Housing Partnerships produced guidance for ALMOs to follow, which incorporated 
feedback from Legal Services and the council’s Equality Team on the impact of 
the Equality Act. The ALMOs and BITMO reviewed their existing LLPs using a 
template developed to capture information about: 

• the objectives of the LLP 

• evidence for the continuation of the LLP 

Page 6



 

 

• the justification and proportionality of the LLP 

• consultation undertaken 

• performance information on lettings of LLP properties 

• any measures to mitigate potential adverse effects of the LLP 

• equality impacts 
 

3.2 The table below shows the number and type of each LLP before the review, and 
the results of the review.  

Primary LLP 
criteria 

No. properties 
before review 

No. 
removed 

No. 
added 

No. properties 
after review 

Local Connection 2237 0 0 2237 

Good Neighbour 324 0 0 324 

Keyworker / 
employment 

60 48 0 12 

Age 6923 0 6 6929 

TOTAL 9544 48 6 9502 

 

3.3 The number of properties subject to an LLP in Aire Valley Homes, Belle Isle TMO 
and remains unchanged, West North West have added 6 properties with age 
LLPs, and East North East have removed 48 properties with a keyworker / 
employment LLPs.   

4 Corporate Considerations 

4.1 Consultation and Engagement  

4.1.1 Details of the consultation undertaken with Ward Members, tenants, customers on 
the housing register, local Registered Social Landlords and support organisations 
are included in the review template for each LLP. Members and tenants were 
generally supportive of retaining existing age LLPs.  

4.2 Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration 

4.2.1 Housing Partnerships completed an Equality, Diversity, Cohesion and Integration 
Screening Assessment, showing that the impacts have been taken into account in 
the review by the ALMOs and BITMO completing Equality Impact Assessments 
on each of the LLPs. The key impact identified is that age LLPs have positive 
benefits to older customers seeking rehousing ahead of customers under the LLP 
age.  

4.3 Council policies and City Priorities 

4.3.1 Housing Partnerships recognises the value of being able to respond to local 
circumstances by using LLPs. However, the use of LLPs must be proportional and 
balanced against the council’s legal duty to give preference to customers in 
housing need and its duties under the Equality Act when it is implemented in full. 

 

Page 7



 

 

4.4 Resources and value for money  

4.4.1 The ALMOs and BITMO identified potential for increased management costs if 
antisocial behaviour and lifestyle clashes increase as a result of removing age 
LLPs. Once the Equality Act is implemented in full, the council could be 
challenged on the grounds of unlawful discrimination based on age. If the 
challenge was successful, the council could be liable to pay damages to the 
customer.   

4.5 Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In 

4.5.1 Once implemented, age discrimination will be unlawful under the Equality Act 
2010 unless it can be shown to be a proportionate means of achieving a 
legitimate aim. A legal challenge could be made to an age LLP on the basis of 
discrimination. If the policy is found to be unlawful discrimination, the claimant 
could be entitled to damages.  

4.5.2 Following the review there will be 9502 properties in Leeds with a LLP, 6929 of 
which are age-related LLPs. 

4.6 Risk Management 

4.6.1 The main risk areas identified with the age LLPs are those where (not 
withstanding member and tenant support): 

• there is either no or very little ASB reported  

• a small number of individuals are responsible for acts of ASB, which would be 
more appropriately dealt with individually through effective tenancy 
management intervention  

• the ASB has allegedly been perpetrated by tenants over the LLP age. While 
this is partly the result of only rehousing older tenants in a specific block, it 
could be argued that the age LLP excludes people from housing on the basis of 
stereotyping the behaviour of younger people, rather than on an objective risk 
assessment, such as that in place under the Good Neighbour LLP 

4.6.2 There are wider considerations including how the council can make best use of its 
limited stock. Lettings of smaller 1 and 2 bedroom properties help ensure the 
council: 

• fulfils its duties to younger customers who require starter homes and younger 
homeless customers - age LLPs restrict the opportunities for these groups to 
obtain secure housing 

• responds to the Welfare Reform agenda, specifically the extension of the single 
room LHR rate in the private sector to under 35 year olds (2012) and the DWP 
housing benefit size criteria for under occupying tenants of working age (2013) 
– both of which will lead to an increase in demand for smaller properties from  
customers below the age of the LLP 

Page 8



 

 

4.6.3 The consultation undertaken highlights that members and tenants are concerned 
about age LLPs being removed, specifically that if lettings are made to younger 
customers, incidences of antisocial behaviour and lifestyle clashes may increase, 
leading to higher management costs, increased turnover, voids and tenant 
dissatisfaction.  

4.6.4 The outcome of the LLP review was to retain all LLPs pending further monitoring 
and review.  

4.6.5 The reasons for this decision are to: 

• allow more time to develop other responses such as good neighbour LLPs, 
and consult further with members and  tenants 

• dovetail the potential removal of an LLP with the introduction of a new power 
for authorities to define who can be classed as a ‘qualifying person’ to register 
on waiting list and be considered for offers. This could include reference to a 
customer’s behaviour and suitability to be considered for rehousing 

• reassure members and tenants about their expressed concerns regarding the  
potential negative impact on housing management in the blocks 

5 Conclusions 

5.1 The Director of Environment of Neighbourhoods has approved the LLPs for West 
North West Homes Leeds, East North East Homes Leeds, Aire Valley Homes 
Leeds and Belle Isle Tenant Management Organisation which are listed in 
Appendix 1.  

6 Recommendations 

6.1 That the Scrutiny Board notes the contents of this report.  

7 Background documents1  

Minutes of Board / sub-Board meetings for: 

• Aire Valley Homes – 7 February 2012 

• Belle Isle Tenant Management Organisation – 7 February 2012 

• East North East Homes Leeds – 1 December 2011 

• West North West Homes Leeds – 25 January 2012 

Equality, Diversity, Cohesion and Integration Screening assessment, January 2012 

 

                                            
1
 The background documents listed in this section are available for inspection on request for a period of four 
years following the date of the relevant meeting.  Accordingly this list does not include documents containing 
exempt or confidential information, or any published works.  Requests to inspect any background documents 
should be submitted to the report author. 

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



L
o

c
a
l 

L
e
tt

in
g

s
 P

o
li

c
ie

s
 -

 F
e
b

r
u

a
r
y
 2

0
1

2

A
L
M

O
N

H
O

A
d

d
r
e
s
s

L
L
P

ty
p

e
N

o
. 

p
r
o

p
s

R
e
v
ie

w
N

o
. 

p
r
o

p
s
 

a
ft

e
r

r
e
v
ie

w
A
V
H

G
a
rf

o
rt

h
 &

 

K
ip

p
a
x

F
a
m

il
y
 t

y
p
e
 h

o
u
s
in

g
L
o
c
a
l 
C
o
n
n

L
o
c
a
l 
C
o
n
n

9
5
9

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

9
5
9

A
V
H

In
n
e
r 

te
a
m

C
a
rd

in
a
l 
R
o
a
d
, 

C
a
rd

in
a
l 
S
q
u
a
re

, 
C
a
rd

in
a
l 
W

a
lk

, 
R
e
d
h
a
ll
 

C
lo

s
e
, 

R
e
d
h
a
ll
 C

re
s
c
e
n
t,

 W
a
in

c
li
ff

e
 P

la
c
e

2
5
+

a
g
e

8
3

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

8
3

A
V
H

In
n
e
r 

te
a
m

M
e
y
n
e
ll
 H

e
ig

h
ts

4
5
+

a
g
e

9
4

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

9
4

A
V
H

In
n
e
r 

te
a
m

C
re

s
c
e
n
t 

T
o
w

e
rs

4
5
+

a
g
e

9
6

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

9
6

A
V
H

K
ip

p
a
x

V
a
ri
o
u
s
 b

e
d
s
it
s
: 

V
ic

to
ri
a
 S

tr
e
e
t,

 A
ll
e
rt

o
n
 B

y
w

a
te

r 
a
n
d
 M

o
u
n
t 

P
le

a
s
a
n
t 

G
a
rd

e
n
s

5
5
+

a
g
e

3
8

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

3
8

A
V
H

M
o
rl
e
y

C
o
tt

in
g
le

y
 H

e
ig

h
ts

 
2
5
+

a
g
e

1
4
3

A
d
d
e
d
 n

o
 

c
h
il
d
re

n

1
4
3

A
V
H

M
o
rl
e
y

C
o
tt

in
g
le

y
 T

o
w

e
rs

 
2
5
+

a
g
e

1
4
4

A
d
d
e
d
 n

o
 

c
h
il
d
re

n

1
4
4

A
V
H

M
o
rl
e
y

B
a
n
k
 S

tr
e
e
t 

v
a
ri
o
u
s
 f

la
ts

4
5
+

a
g
e

1
2

A
d
d
e
d
 n

o
 

c
h
il
d
re

n

1
2

A
V
H

M
o
rl
e
y

B
a
n
k
 A

v
e
n
u
e
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 f

la
ts

4
5
+

a
g
e

4
5

A
d
d
e
d
 n

o
 

c
h
il
d
re

n

4
5

A
V
H

M
o
rl
e
y

G
le

n
 G

ro
v
e
: 

v
a
ri
o
u
s
 f

la
ts

4
5
+

a
g
e

8
N

o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

8

A
V
H

M
o
rl
e
y

B
e
a
c
o
n
 A

v
e
n
u
e
: 

v
a
ri
o
u
s
 f

la
ts

4
5
+

a
g
e

8
N

o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

8

A
V
H

M
o
rl
e
y

G
le

n
 M

o
u
n
t:

 v
a
ri
o
u
s
 f

la
ts

4
5
+

a
g
e

1
1

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

1
1

A
V
H

M
o
rl
e
y

E
lm

fi
e
ld

 H
o
u
s
e
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 f

la
ts

4
5
+

a
g
e

1
2

A
d
d
e
d
 n

o
 

c
h
il
d
re

n

1
2

A
V
H

M
o
rl
e
y

E
lm

fi
e
ld

 C
o
u
rt

 v
a
ri
o
u
s
 f

la
ts

4
5
+

a
g
e

4
0

A
d
d
e
d
 n

o
 

c
h
il
d
re

n

4
0

A
V
H

M
o
rl
e
y

B
ir
c
h
 C

o
u
rt

 v
a
ri
o
u
s
 f

la
ts

4
5
+

a
g
e

4
4

A
d
d
e
d
 n

o
 

c
h
il
d
re

n

4
4

A
V
H

M
o
rl
e
y

G
le

n
 R

o
a
d
: 

V
a
ri
o
u
s
 f

la
ts

4
5
+

a
g
e

5
1

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

5
1

A
V
H

M
o
rl
e
y

L
e
w

is
h
a
m

 C
o
u
rt

 v
a
ri
o
u
s
 f

la
ts

4
5
+

a
g
e

5
4

A
d
d
e
d
 n

o
 

c
h
il
d
re

n

5
4

A
V
H

R
o
th

w
e
ll

L
a
y
 G

a
rt

h
 P

la
c
e

5
5
+

a
g
e

4
N

o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

4

A
V
H

R
o
th

w
e
ll

C
a
rl
to

n
 L

a
n
e

5
5
+

a
g
e

4
N

o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

4

A
V
H

R
o
th

w
e
ll

L
a
y
 G

a
rt

h
 G

re
e
n
 

5
5
+

a
g
e

1
2

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

1
2

A
V
H

R
o
th

w
e
ll

L
a
y
 G

a
rt

h
 G

a
rd

e
n
s

5
5
+

a
g
e

1
9

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

1
9

A
V
H

R
o
th

w
e
ll

B
la

c
k
b
u
rn

 C
o
u
rt

 (
v
a
ri
o
u
s
 1

 b
e
d
 f

la
ts

 a
n
d
 b

e
d
s
it
s
)

5
5
+

a
g
e

2
4

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

2
4

A
V
H

R
o
th

w
e
ll

F
a
m

il
y
 t

y
p
e
 h

o
u
s
in

g
L
o
c
a
l 
C
o
n
n

L
o
c
a
l 
C
o
n
n

7
5
2

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

7
5
2

A
V
H

S
w

a
rc

li
ff

e
S
h
e
rb

u
rn

 C
o
u
rt

5
5
+

a
g
e

8
2

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

8
2

A
V
H

S
w

a
rc

li
ff

e
P
ri
m

ro
s
e
 R

o
a
d

5
5
+

a
g
e

6
N

o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

6

A
V
H

S
w

a
rc

li
ff

e
F
ie

ld
 E

n
d

5
5
+

a
g
e

1
0

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

1
0

Page 11



L
o

c
a
l 

L
e
tt

in
g

s
 P

o
li

c
ie

s
 -

 F
e
b

r
u

a
r
y
 2

0
1

2

A
V
H

S
w

a
rc

li
ff

e
B
ro

o
k
s
b
a
n
k
 D

ri
v
e

5
5
+

a
g
e

2
0

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

2
0

B
IT

M
O

B
IT

M
O

A
b
e
rf

ie
ld

 D
ri
v
e
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 f

la
ts

3
5
+

a
g
e

1
0

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

1
0

B
IT

M
O

B
IT

M
O

A
b
e
rf

ie
ld

 D
ri
v
e
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 f

la
ts

4
0
+

 /
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 o

n
ly

 

c
h
il
d
re

n

1
0
+

a
g
e

1
2

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

1
2

B
IT

M
O

B
IT

M
O

W
in

ro
s
e
 D

ri
v
e
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 f

la
ts

k
e
y
w

o
rk

e
rs

/

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t/
lo

c
a
l

c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n

K
e
y
w

o
rk

e
r

1
2

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

1
2

E
N

E
B
u
rm

a
n
to

ft
s

L
u
p
to

n
 A

v
e
n
u
e
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 f

la
ts

3
5
+

a
g
e

1
2

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

1
2

E
N

E
B
u
rm

a
n
to

ft
s

S
t 

S
te

p
h
e
n
s
 R

o
a
d
, 

R
ig

to
n
 C

lo
s
e
, 

R
ig

to
n
 D

ri
v
e
, 

N
ip

p
e
t 

L
a
n
e
 

v
a
ri
o
u
s
 f

la
ts

4
0
+

/n
o

re
s
id

e
n
t

c
h
il
d
re

n

a
g
e

8
4

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

8
4

E
N

E
B
u
rm

a
n
to

ft
s

N
a
s
e
b
y
 G

ra
n
g
e

5
5
+

a
g
e

9
8

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

9
8

E
N

E
B
u
rm

a
n
to

ft
s

B
ri
g
n
a
ll
 C

ro
ft

, 
G

a
rg

ra
v
e
 C

o
u
rt

, 
S
c
a
rg

il
l 
G

ra
n
g
e

2
5
+

/n
o
 

re
s
id

e
n
t

c
h
il
d
re

n

a
g
e

2
9
0

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

2
9
0

E
N

E
B
u
rm

a
n
to

ft
s

S
h
a
k
e
s
p
e
a
re

 C
o
u
rt

, 
S
h
a
k
e
s
p
e
a
c
e
 G

ra
n
g
e
, 

S
h
a
k
e
s
p
e
a
re

 

T
o
w

e
rs

3
5
+

/n
o

re
s
id

e
n
t

c
h
il
d
re

n

a
g
e

2
9
1

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

2
9
1

E
N

E
C
h
a
p
e
lt
o
w

n
B
u
tt

o
n
 H

il
l 
v
a
ri
o
u
s
 f

la
ts

5
0
+

a
g
e

7
N

o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

7

E
N

E
C
h
a
p
e
lt
o
w

n
T
o
w

n
 S

tr
e
e
t 

W
a
lk

 v
a
ri
o
u
s
 f

la
ts

5
0
+

a
g
e

1
0

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

1
0

E
N

E
C
h
a
p
e
lt
o
w

n
N

e
w

to
n
 L

o
d
g
e
 C

lo
s
e
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 f

la
ts

4
0
+

a
g
e

1
6

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

1
6

E
N

E
C
h
a
p
e
lt
o
w

n
P
o
tt

e
rn

e
w

to
n
 C

o
u
rt

5
5
+

/n
o
 

re
s
id

e
n
t

c
h
il
d
re

n

a
g
e

5
6

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

5
6

E
N

E
C
h
a
p
e
lt
o
w

n
P
o
tt

e
rn

e
w

to
n
 H

e
ig

h
ts

4
5
+

/n
o
 

re
s
id

e
n
t

c
h
il
d
re

n

a
g
e

8
3

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

8
3

E
N

E
G

i p
to

n
S
t 

A
lb

a
n
s
 A

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 f

la
ts

5
0
+

a
g
e

6
N

o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

6

E
N

E
G

ip
to

n
B
u
ll
e
r 

G
ro

v
e
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 f

la
ts

5
0
+

/n
o
 

re
s
id

e
n
t

c
h
il
d
re

n

a
g
e

8
N

o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
t 

c
h
il
d
re

n

re
m

o
v
e
d

8

E
N

E
G

ip
to

n
K
im

b
e
rl
e
y
 R

o
a
d
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 f

la
ts

5
5
+

/n
o
 

re
s
id

e
n
t

c
h
il
d
re

n

a
g
e

1
2

N
o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
t 

c
h
il
d
re

n

re
m

o
v
e
d

1
2

Page 12



L
o

c
a
l 

L
e
tt

in
g

s
 P

o
li

c
ie

s
 -

 F
e
b

r
u

a
r
y
 2

0
1

2

E
N

E
G

ip
to

n
E
a
s
te

rl
e
y
 M

o
u
n
t 

(1
2
),

 E
a
s
te

rl
e
y
 S

q
u
a
re

(2
)

5
0
+

 G
ip

to
n
 

c
o
u
n
c
il

te
n
a
n
ts

 o
n
 

u
n
d
e
ro

c
c

s
c
h
e
m

e

w
h
o
 w

il
l 

re
le

a
s
e
 a

 

fa
m

il
y

h
o
u
s
e

a
g
e

1
4

a
m

e
n
d
 -

 

re
m

o
v
e
 U

O
 

p
re

fe
re

n
c
e
,

ju
s
t 

5
0
+

1
4

E
N

E
G

ip
to

n
v
a
ri
o
u
s
 h

o
u
s
e
s
: 

E
a
s
te

rl
y
 S

q
u
a
re

, 
S
t 

W
il
fr

e
d
s
 A

v
e
n
u
e
, 

E
a
s
te

rl
y
 M

o
u
n
t,

 S
t.

 W
il
fr

e
d
s
 A

v
e
n
u
e

K
e
y
w

o
rk

e
rs

(o
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 

to
 b

e
) 

o
r 

in
 

e
m

p
l'
t 

w
it
h
 

1
2
 m

th
s
 

re
s
id

e
n
c
e
 i
n
 

E
a
s
e
l 
a
re

a
 

o
r

o
'c

ro
w

d
e
d

L
C
C
 t

e
n
a
n
ts

li
v
in

g
 i
n
 

G
ip

to
n

s
e
le

c
te

d
 o

n
 

a
 5

0
/5

0
 

b
a
s
is

K
e
y
w

o
rk

e
r

4
8

R
E
M

O
V
E
D

0

E
N

E
G

ip
to

n
P
e
m

b
ro

k
e
 G

ra
n
g
e
 a

n
d
 P

e
m

b
ro

k
e
 T

o
w

e
rs

 
5
5
+

/n
o
 

re
s
id

e
n
t

c
h
il
d
re

n

a
g
e

8
4

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

8
4

E
N

E
G

ip
to

n
D

e
n
b
ig

h
 C

ro
ft

, 
D

e
n
b
ig

h
 H

e
ig

h
ts

5
5
+

/n
o
 

re
s
id

e
n
t

c
h
il
d
re

n

a
g
e

9
0

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

9
0

E
N

E
G

ip
to

n
B
re

c
o
n
 R

is
e
 a

n
d
 B

re
c
o
n
 C

o
u
rt

5
5
+

/n
o
 

re
s
id

e
n
t

c
h
il
d
re

n

a
g
e

9
2

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

9
2

E
N

E
G

ip
to

n
G

ip
to

n
 G

a
te

 E
a
s
t,

 G
ip

to
n
 G

a
te

 W
e
s
t

3
5
+

a
g
e

1
1
9

N
o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
t 

c
h
il
d
re

n

a
d
d
e
d

1
1
9

E
N

E
G

ip
to

n
B
ri
a
rs

d
a
le

 H
e
ig

h
ts

, 
B
ri
a
rs

d
a
le

 C
o
u
rt

, 
B
ri
a
rs

d
a
le

 C
ro

ft
 

3
5
+

/n
o
 

re
s
id

e
n
t

c
h
il
d
re

n

a
g
e

1
3
7

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

1
3
7

Page 13



L
o

c
a
l 

L
e
tt

in
g

s
 P

o
li

c
ie

s
 -

 F
e
b

r
u

a
r
y
 2

0
1

2

E
N

E
G

ip
to

n
H

ig
h
w

a
y
s
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 f

la
ts

3
5
+

/c
h
il
d
re

n
 1

0
+

a
g
e

1
2

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

1
2

E
N

E
G

ip
to

n
H

ig
h
w

a
y
s
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 f

la
ts

5
5
+

/n
o
 

re
s
id

e
n
t

c
h
il
d
re

n

a
g
e

1
1
8

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

1
1
8

E
N

E
H

a
lt
o
n
 M

o
o
r 

/ 

O
't
h
o
rp

e

L
a
k
e
la

n
d
 C

o
u
rt

4
5
+

/n
o
 

re
s
id

e
n
t

c
h
il
d
re

n

a
g
e

5
8

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

5
8

E
N

E
H

a
re

w
o
o
d

B
o
n
d
g
a
te

 2
 f

la
ts

3
5
+

a
g
e

2
N

o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
t 

c
h
il
d
re

n

a
d
d
e
d

2

E
N

E
M

e
a
n
w

o
o
d

S
c
o
tt

 H
a
ll
 D

ri
v
e
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 f

la
ts

2
5
+

/n
o
 

re
s
id

e
n
t

c
h
il
d
re

n

a
g
e

2
2

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

2
2

E
N

E
M

e
a
n
w

o
o
d

S
to

n
e
g
a
te

 F
a
rm

 C
lo

s
e
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 f

la
ts

4
0
+

a
g
e

2
0

N
o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
t 

c
h
il
d
re

n

a
d
d
e
d

2
0

E
N

E
M

o
o
rt

o
w

n
E
lm

h
u
rs

t 
C
lo

s
e
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 f

la
ts

4
0
+

a
g
e

1
5

N
o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
t 

c
h
il
d
re

n

a
d
d
e
d

1
5

E
N

E
M

o
o
rt

o
w

n
S
a
x
o
n
 G

re
e
n
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 f

la
ts

4
0
+

a
g
e

1
9

N
o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
t 

c
h
il
d
re

n

a
d
d
e
d

1
9

E
N

E
M

o
o
rt

o
w

n
S
to

n
e
g
a
te

s
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 f

la
ts

3
5
+

a
g
e

3
N

o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
t 

c
h
il
d
re

n

a
d
d
e
d

3

E
N

E
M

o
o
rt

o
w

n
S
to

n
e
g
a
te

s
 R

o
a
d
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 f

la
ts

3
5
+

a
g
e

4
N

o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
t 

c
h
il
d
re

n

a
d
d
e
d

4

E
N

E
M

o
o
rt

o
w

n
L
e
a
fi
e
ld

 C
lo

s
e
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 f

la
ts

4
0
+

a
g
e

5
N

o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
t 

c
h
il
d
re

n

a
d
d
e
d

5

E
N

E
M

o
o
rt

o
w

n
Q

u
e
e
n
s
h
il
l 
A
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 f

la
ts

4
0
+

a
g
e

6
N

o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

6

E
N

E
M

o
o
rt

o
w

n
F
ie

ld
h
o
u
s
e
 C

lo
s
e
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 f

la
ts

4
0
+

a
g
e

7
n
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

7

E
N

E
M

o
o
rt

o
w

n
Q

u
e
e
n
s
h
il
l 
D

ri
v
e
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 f

la
ts

4
0
+

a
g
e

8
N

o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

8

E
N

E
M

o
o
rt

o
w

n
S
to

n
e
g
a
te

 R
o
a
d
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 f

la
ts

4
0
+

a
g
e

1
1

N
o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
t 

c
h
il
d
re

n

a
d
d
e
d

1
1

E
N

E
M

o
o
rt

o
w

n
L
e
a
fi
e
ld

 T
o
w

e
rs

4
0
+

a
g
e

5
9

N
o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
t 

c
h
il
d
re

n

a
d
d
e
d

5
9

Page 14



L
o

c
a
l 

L
e
tt

in
g

s
 P

o
li

c
ie

s
 -

 F
e
b

r
u

a
r
y
 2

0
1

2

E
N

E
M

o
o
rt

o
w

n
W

e
s
t 

P
a
rk

 C
h
a
s
e
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 f

la
ts

3
5
+

a
g
e

4
N

o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
t 

c
h
il
d
re

n

a
d
d
e
d

4

E
N

E
M

o
o
rt

o
w

n
B
ra

c
k
e
n
w

o
o
d
 D

ri
v
e
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 f

la
ts

4
0
+

/n
o
 

re
s
id

e
n
t

c
h
il
d
re

n

a
g
e

6
N

o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

6

E
N

E
M

o
o
rt

o
w

n
C
h
a
n
d
o
s
 G

a
rd

e
n
s
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 f

la
ts

3
5
+

a
g
e

1
2

N
o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
t 

c
h
il
d
re

n

a
d
d
e
d

1
2

E
N

E
M

o
o
rt

o
w

n
B
ra

c
k
e
n
w

o
o
d
 G

re
e
n
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 f

la
ts

4
0
+

a
g
e

1
4

N
o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
t 

c
h
il
d
re

n

a
d
d
e
d

1
4

E
N

E
M

o
o
rt

o
w

n
L
id

g
e
tt

 T
o
w

e
rs

3
0
+

/n
o
 

re
s
id

e
n
t

c
h
il
d
re

n

a
g
e

5
4

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

5
4

E
N

E
M

o
o
rt

o
w

n
N

o
rf

o
lk

 H
o
u
s
e
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 f

la
ts

1
0
+

a
g
e

2
N

o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

2

E
N

E
M

o
o
rt

o
w

n
L
e
a
th

a
m

 H
o
u
s
e
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 f

la
ts

1
0
+

a
g
e

2
N

o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

2

E
N

E
M

o
o
rt

o
w

n
G

ra
y
 H

o
u
s
e

1
0
+

a
g
e

2
N

o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

2

E
N

E
M

o
o
rt

o
w

n
L
e
a
c
o
n
fi
e
ld

 H
o
u
s
e
 W

e
th

e
rb

y
1
0
+

a
g
e

3
N

o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

3

E
N

E
M

o
o
rt

o
w

n
F
a
ir
v
ie

w
 H

o
u
s
e
 W

e
th

e
rb

y
1
0
+

a
g
e

3
N

o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

3

E
N

E
M

o
o
rt

o
w

n
B
ir
k
m

y
re

 H
o
u
s
e

1
0
+

a
g
e

3
N

o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

3

E
N

E
M

o
o
rt

o
w

n
R
h
o
d
e
s
 H

o
u
s
e
 W

e
th

e
rb

y
1
0
+

a
g
e

3
N

o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

3

E
N

E
M

o
o
rt

o
w

n
H

o
d
g
s
o
n
 H

o
u
s
e

1
0
+

a
g
e

3
N

o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

3

E
N

E
R
ic

h
m

o
n
d
 H

il
l

S
a
x
to

n
 G

a
rd

e
n
s

4
5
+

a
g
e

2
3
0

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 

2
3
0

E
N

E
S
e
a
c
ro

ft
 N

o
rt

h
B
a
il
e
y
 T

o
w

e
rs

4
0
+

a
g
e

6
0

N
o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
t 

c
h
il
d
re

n

a
d
d
e
d

6
0

E
N

E
S
e
a
c
ro

ft
 N

o
rt

h
B
ro

o
k
la

n
d
 T

o
w

e
rs

4
0
+

a
g
e

6
0

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

6
0

E
N

E
S
e
a
c
ro

ft
 N

o
rt

h
S
e
a
c
ro

ft
 G

a
te

 B
lo

c
k
s
 1

 &
 2

4
0
+

a
g
e

1
1
8

N
o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
t 

c
h
il
d
re

n

a
d
d
e
d

1
1
8

E
N

E
S
e
a
c
ro

ft
 N

o
rt

h
B
a
rn

c
ro

ft
 C

o
u
rt

, 
G

ra
n
g
e
, 

H
e
ig

h
ts

, 
T
o
w

e
rs

5
0
+

a
g
e

1
7
8

N
o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
t 

c
h
il
d
re

n

a
d
d
e
d

1
7
8

E
N

E
S
e
a
c
ro

ft
 S

o
u
th

H
o
ll
in

 P
a
rk

 M
o
u
n
t 

v
a
ri
o
u
s
 f

la
ts

4
0
+

a
g
e

4
N

o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

4

E
N

E
S
e
a
c
ro

ft
 S

o
u
th

H
o
ll
in

 P
a
rk

 A
v
e
n
u
e
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 f

la
ts

4
0
+

a
g
e

4
N

o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

4

E
N

E
S
e
a
c
ro

ft
 S

o
u
th

In
g
le

w
o
o
d
 P

la
c
e

2
5
+

a
g
e

1
8

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

1
8

Page 15



L
o

c
a
l 

L
e
tt

in
g

s
 P

o
li

c
ie

s
 -

 F
e
b

r
u

a
r
y
 2

0
1

2

E
N

E
S
e
a
c
ro

ft
 S

o
u
th

D
ib

 L
a
n
e
 

4
0
+

a
g
e

2
0

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

2
0

E
N

E
S
e
a
c
ro

ft
 S

o
u
th

F
e
a
rn

v
il
le

 C
lo

s
e
 a

n
d
 F

e
a
rn

v
il
le

 D
ri
v
e

4
0
+

/n
o
 

re
s
id

e
n
t

c
h
il
d
re

n

a
g
e

2
1

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

2
1

E
N

E
S
e
a
c
ro

ft
 S

o
u
th

In
g
le

w
o
o
d
 D

ri
v
e

2
5
+

a
g
e

4
4

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

4
4

E
N

E
S
e
a
c
ro

ft
 S

o
u
th

P
a
rk

w
a
y
 C

o
u
rt

3
5
+

/n
o
 

re
s
id

e
n
t

c
h
il
d
re

n

a
g
e

8
7

A
m

e
n
d
e
d
: 

n
o
 

c
h
il
d
re

n

8
7

E
N

E
S
e
a
c
ro

ft
 S

o
u
th

P
a
rk

w
a
y
 G

ra
n
g
e

3
5
+

/n
o
 

re
s
id

e
n
t

c
h
il
d
re

n

a
g
e

8
7

A
m

e
n
d
e
d
: 

n
o
 

c
h
il
d
re

n

8
7

E
N

E
S
e
a
c
ro

ft
 S

o
u
th

P
a
rk

w
a
y
 T

o
w

e
rs

2
5
+

/n
o
 

re
s
id

e
n
t

c
h
il
d
re

n

a
g
e

9
8

A
m

e
n
d
e
d
: 

n
o
 

c
h
il
d
re

n

9
8

E
N

E
W

e
th

e
rb

y
a
ll
 f

a
m

il
y
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 2

B
+

lo
c
a
l 
c
o
n
n

L
o
c
a
l 
C
o
n
n

5
2
6

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

5
2
6

W
N

W
A
rm

le
y

T
o
w

n
 S

t 
v
a
ri
o
u
s
 f

la
ts

3
0
+

a
g
e

4
N

o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

4

W
N

W
A
rm

le
y

F
e
a
rn

le
y
 C

lo
s
e
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 f

la
ts

4
0
+

a
g
e

4
N

o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

4

W
N

W
A
rm

le
y

S
e
c
o
n
d
 A

v
e
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 f

la
ts

3
0
+

a
g
e

5
N

o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

5

W
N

W
A
rm

le
y

T
o
n
g
 R

o
a
d
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 f

la
ts

3
0
+

a
g
e

6
N

o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

6

W
N

W
A
rm

le
y

F
ir
s
t 

A
v
e
n
u
e
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 f

la
ts

3
0
+

a
g
e

7
N

o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

7

W
N

W
A
rm

le
y

P
a
rl
ia

m
e
n
t 

P
la

c
e
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 f

la
ts

3
5
+

a
g
e

1
0

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

1
0

W
N

W
A
rm

le
y

C
h
e
lt
e
n
h
a
m

 S
t 

v
a
ri
o
u
s
 f

la
ts

4
0
+

a
g
e

2
7

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

2
7

W
N

W
A
rm

le
y

W
e
s
te

rl
y
 C

ro
ft

 v
a
ri
o
u
s
 f

la
ts

3
0
+

a
g
e

4
5

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

4
5

W
N

W
A
rm

le
y

W
e
s
te

rl
y
 R

is
e
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 f

la
ts

3
0
+

a
g
e

4
5

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

4
5

W
N

W
A
rm

le
y

B
u
rn

s
a
ll
 G

a
rd

e
n
s
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 f

la
ts

3
0
+

a
g
e

4
6

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

4
6

W
N

W
A
rm

le
y

B
u
rn

s
a
ll
 G

ra
n
g
e

3
0
+

a
g
e

9
5

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

9
5

W
N

W
A
rm

le
y

B
u
rn

s
a
ll
 C

ro
ft

4
0
+

a
g
e

9
7

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

9
7

W
N

W
A
rm

le
y

W
o
rt

le
y
 H

e
ig

h
ts

3
5
+

a
g
e

9
9

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

9
9

W
N

W
A
rm

le
y

P
o
p
la

r 
C
o
u
rt

, 
P
o
p
la

r 
M

o
u
n
t

2
1
+

a
g
e

1
8
2

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

1
8
2

W
N

W
B
ra

m
le

y
F
la

ts
 i
n
 B

e
ll
m

o
u
n
ts

(1
5
),

 L
a
n
d
s
e
e
rs

 (
9
4
),

 N
e
w

la
y
 L

a
n
e
(3

),
 

R
o
s
s
e
fi
e
ld

(1
0
0
),

 W
e
ll
in

g
to

n
 G

ro
v
e
(1

6
),

 A
s
h
le

a
(7

),
 C

o
a
l 

H
il
ls

(2
3
),

 I
n
ta

k
e
 L

a
n
e
(1

0
),

 S
n
o
w

d
e
n
s
 (

8
1
),

 W
e
s
to

v
e
rs

(1
2
),

 

S
t 

C
a
th

e
ri
n
e
s
(1

8
),

 U
p
p
e
r 

T
o
w

n
 S

tr
e
e
t(

4
)

3
5
+

a
g
e

3
8
3

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

3
8
3

W
N

W
B
ra

m
le

y
F
la

ts
 i
n
 B

a
th

s
 (

1
2
),

 F
a
ir
fi
e
ld

 C
lo

s
e
(2

7
)

2
5
+

a
g
e

3
9

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

3
9

W
N

W
B
ra

m
le

y
F
la

ts
 i
n
 F

e
rn

b
a
n
k
s
 (

3
9
),

 G
a
n
n
e
rs

 (
1
0
9
),

 L
a
n
g
le

y
s
 (

2
7
),

 

S
u
m

m
e
rf

ie
ld

s
(7

1
)

3
0
+

a
g
e

2
4
6

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

2
4
6

Page 16



L
o

c
a
l 

L
e
tt

in
g

s
 P

o
li

c
ie

s
 -

 F
e
b

r
u

a
r
y
 2

0
1

2

W
N

W
H

o
rs

fo
rt

h
V
a
ri
o
u
s
 -

 H
o
lt
d
a
le

 A
v
e
n
u
e
, 

C
lo

s
e
, 

C
ro

ft
, 

D
ri
v
e
, 

F
o
ld

, 

G
a
rd

e
n
s
, 

G
a
rt

h
, 

G
re

e
n
, 

G
ro

v
e
, 

L
a
w

n
, 

P
la

c
e
, 

R
o
a
d
, 

V
ie

w
 a

n
d
 

W
a
y

G
o
o
d

n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
r

G
o
o
d
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
r

2
7
2

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

2
7
2

W
N

W
H

o
rs

fo
rt

h
B
ro

a
d
w

a
lk

s
 (

4
2
),

 S
p
ri
n
g
w

e
ll
 C

lo
s
e
 (

1
0
),

 W
il
k
in

s
o
n
 W

a
y
 (

1
9
)

4
0
+

a
g
e

7
1

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

7
1

W
N

W
H

o
rs

fo
rt

h
W

in
d
m

il
l 
L
a
n
e
 (

6
)

4
0
+

a
g
e

0
N

E
W

 L
L
P

6

W
N

W
K
ir
k
s
ta

ll
L
e
a
 F

a
rm

 D
ri
v
e
, 

L
e
a
 F

a
rm

 P
la

c
e
, 

L
e
a
 F

a
rm

 G
ro

v
e
: 

v
a
ri
o
u
s
 

fl
a
ts

G
o
o
d

n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
r

G
o
o
d
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
r

5
2

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

5
2

W
N

W
K
ir
k
s
ta

ll
M

o
o
r 

G
ra

n
g
e
 C

o
u
rt

5
0
+

a
g
e

5
8

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

5
8

W
N

W
K
ir
k
s
ta

ll
Iv

e
s
o
n
 G

ro
v
e
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 f

la
ts

4
5
+

a
g
e

3
1

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

3
1

W
N

W
P
u
d
s
e
y

A
n
d
re

w
 H

o
u
s
e
 (

6
),

 B
e
v
e
rl
e
y
 C

o
u
rt

 (
8
),

 B
la

c
k
e
tt

 S
tr

e
e
t 

(3
),

 

B
u
rt

o
n
 S

tr
e
e
t 

(1
2
),

 D
u
rh

a
m

 C
o
u
rt

 (
6
),

 E
a
s
t 

C
o
u
rt

 (
6
),

 

H
a
in

s
w

o
rt

h
 C

o
u
rt

 (
5
),

 H
o
ll
in

 P
a
rk

 R
o
a
d
 (

8
),

 L
in

c
o
ln

 C
o
u
rt

 

(9
),

 Y
o
rk

 H
o
u
s
e
 (

9
),

 O
a
k
w

e
ll
 C

o
u
rt

 (
6
),

 R
ip

o
n
 H

o
u
s
e
 (

9
),

 

W
a
lt
o
n
 C

ro
ft

 (
6
):

 v
a
ri
o
u
s
 f

la
ts

4
0
+

a
g
e

9
3

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

9
3

W
N

W
P
u
d
s
e
y

N
e
w

 S
tr

e
e
t 

G
ro

v
e
 (

1
6
)1

5
, 

T
h
e
 G

a
rd

e
n
s
 (

8
)

5
0
+

a
g
e

2
3

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

2
3

W
N

W
P
u
d
s
e
y

A
c
re

s
 H

a
ll
 A

v
e
n
u
e
 (

2
7
),

 C
a
rl
is

le
 R

o
a
d
 (

3
),

  
C
li
ft

o
n
 C

o
u
rt

 

(1
0
),

 F
a
rt

o
w

n
 (

8
),

 H
a
rl
e
y
 R

is
e
 (

1
6
),

 H
ig

h
fi
e
ld

 G
re

e
n
 (

1
6
),

 

H
ig

h
fi
e
ld

 R
o
a
d
 (

4
),

 L
a
n
e
 E

n
d
(4

),
  

L
it
tl
e
m

o
o
r 

C
re

s
c
e
n
t 

(1
0
),

R
u
tl
a
n
d
 C

o
u
rt

 (
1
8
),

 S
ta

n
d
a
le

 C
re

s
c
e
n
t 

(8
),

 S
w

in
n
o
w

 

G
a
rd

e
n
s
 (

4
),

 S
w

in
n
o
w

 G
re

e
n
 (

7
),

 S
w

in
n
o
w

 R
o
a
d
 (

1
1
),

 

T
h
o
rp

e
 R

o
a
d
 (

1
6
),

  
V
ic

to
ri
a
 C

re
s
c
e
n
t(

8
),

 W
a
s
h
in

g
to

n
 P

la
c
e
 

(8
) 

W
e
s
td

a
le

 D
ri
v
e
 (

2
0
),

 W
e
s
td

a
le

 G
ro

v
e
 (

1
7
),

 W
e
s
td

a
le

 

R
o
a
d
 (

1
2
)

3
0
+

a
g
e

2
2
6

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

2
2
6

W
N

W
P
u
d
s
e
y

W
a
te

rl
o
o
 R

o
a
d
, 

M
a
rs

h
 V

ie
w

 
5
5
+

, 
lo

c
a
l 

c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n

to
 P

u
d
s
e
y
, 

p
re

fe
re

n
c
e

to
 P

u
d
s
e
y
 

s
o
c
ia

l

h
o
u
s
in

g

te
n
a
n
ts

d
o
w

n
s
iz

in
g

a
g
e

8
N

o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

8

W
N

W
P
u
d
s
e
y

V
a
ri
o
u
s
: 

C
ri
m

b
le

s
 P

la
c
e
 (

1
6
) 

C
la

re
m

o
n
t 

G
ro

v
e
 (

6
0
)

5
0
+

a
g
e

7
6

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

7
6

Page 17



L
o

c
a
l 

L
e
tt

in
g

s
 P

o
li

c
ie

s
 -

 F
e
b

r
u

a
r
y
 2

0
1

2

W
N

W
P
u
d
s
e
y

2
-4

8
 C

h
a
u
c
e
r 

A
v
e
n
u
e
 (

2
3
),

 1
-3

9
 M

e
a
d
o
w

h
u
rs

t 
G

a
rd

e
n
s
 

(3
1
),

 1
-2

0
 M

o
u
n
t 

T
a
b
o
r 

S
tr

e
e
t 

(2
0
),

 2
1
-2

7
 R

a
d
c
li
ff

e
 L

a
n
e
 

(4
),

 1
-8

 S
t 

L
a
w

re
n
c
e
 C

lo
s
e
 (

8
),

 1
-2

0
 T

o
ft

s
 H

o
u
s
e
 C

lo
s
e
 (

1
8
),

3
1
-5

3
 W

in
d
m

il
l 
H

il
l 
(1

2
),

 

5
0
+

a
g
e

1
1
6

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

1
1
6

W
N

W
P
u
d
s
e
y

V
a
ri
o
u
s
: 

R
y
c
ro

ft
 C

o
u
rt

 (
4
6
),

 R
y
c
ro

ft
 P

la
c
e
 (

4
6
),

 R
y
c
ro

ft
 

T
o
w

e
rs

(4
6
)

3
0
+

a
g
e

1
3
7

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

1
3
7

W
N

W
W

o
rt

le
y

‘A
m

b
e
r 

C
o
tt

a
g
e
’ 
A
m

b
e
rl
e
y
 R

o
a
d

5
5
+

 a
n
d
 L

C
 

to
 W

o
rt

le
y

a
g
e

1
N

o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

1

W
N

W
W

o
rt

le
y

K
it
s
o
n
 C

lo
s
e

4
0
+

a
g
e

2
N

o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

2

W
N

W
W

o
rt

le
y

T
o
ft

 S
tr

e
e
t

4
0
+

a
g
e

2
N

o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

2

W
N

W
W

o
rt

le
y

P
ri
v
il
e
g
e
 S

t
4
0
+

a
g
e

4
N

o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

4

W
N

W
W

o
rt

le
y

P
ri
v
il
e
g
e
 S

t
4
0
+

a
g
e

5
N

o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

5

W
N

W
W

o
rt

le
y

T
h
o
rn

h
il
l 
R
o
a
d

4
0
+

a
g
e

6
N

o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

6

W
N

W
W

o
rt

le
y

H
a
w

k
h
u
rs

t 
R
o
a
d

4
0
+

a
g
e

6
N

o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

6

W
N

W
W

o
rt

le
y

A
m

b
e
rl
e
y
 G

a
rd

e
n
s

4
0
+

a
g
e

7
N

o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

7

W
N

W
W

o
rt

le
y

K
it
s
o
n
 G

a
rd

e
n
s

4
0
+

a
g
e

8
N

o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

8

W
N

W
W

o
rt

le
y

T
h
o
rn

h
il
l 
P
la

c
e

4
0
+

a
g
e

1
1

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

1
1

W
N

W
W

o
rt

le
y

E
v
e
ly

n
 P

la
c
e
, 

S
il
v
e
r 

R
o
y
d
 H

il
l,
 M

a
rs

d
e
n
 S

tr
e
e
t

5
5
+

, 
L
C
 t

o
 

W
o
rt

le
y
,

p
re

f 
to

 

W
o
rt

le
y

s
o
c
ia

l

h
o
u
s
in

g

te
n
a
n
ts

d
o
w

n
s
iz

in
g

a
g
e

1
6

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

1
6

W
N

W
W

o
rt

le
y

F
a
w

c
e
tt

 G
a
rd

e
n
s

3
0
+

a
g
e

2
3

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

2
3

W
N

W
W

o
rt

le
y

W
h
in

c
o
v
e
r 

G
ra

n
g
e

5
0
+

a
g
e

4
8

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

4
8

W
N

W
W

o
rt

le
y

G
a
m

b
le

 H
il
l 
C
ro

ft
2
1
+

a
g
e

9
3

A
g
e
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 t

o
 

3
0
+

9
3

W
N

W
W

o
rt

le
y

A
d
d
in

g
h
a
m

 G
a
rd

e
n
s
 (

1
2
),

 B
la

c
k
p
o
o
l 
P
la

c
e
 (

4
),

 B
ra

n
c
h
 R

o
a
d
 

(3
),

 C
o
w

 C
lo

s
e
 R

o
a
d
( 

7
),

 L
o
w

e
r 

W
o
rt

le
y
 R

o
a
d
 (

5
),

 W
h
in

g
a
te

 

G
re

e
n
 (

1
2
),

 G
a
in

s
b
o
ro

u
g
h
 P

la
c
e
 (

8
),

 N
e
w

to
n
 S

q
u
a
re

 (
1
0
),

 

L
o
w

 M
o
o
r 

S
id

e
 C

o
u
rt

 (
1
6
),

 S
il
v
e
r 

R
o
y
d
 H

il
l 
(1

1
),

 W
h
in

c
o
v
e
r 

G
a
rd

e
n
s
 (

3
),

 L
o
w

 M
o
o
r 

S
id

e
 C

lo
s
e
 (

3
)

3
5
+

a
g
e

9
4

A
g
e
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

W
h
in

c
o
v
e
r

G
a
rd

e
n
s
 t

o
 

4
0
+

9
4

W
N

W
W

o
rt

le
y

F
a
rr

o
w

 G
re

e
n
 (

2
0
),

 G
a
m

b
le

 H
il
l 
C
lo

s
e
 (

5
),

 G
a
m

b
le

 H
il
l 
D

ri
v
e
 

(1
9
),

 F
a
w

c
e
tt

 C
lo

s
e
 (

1
2
),

 S
il
v
e
r 

R
o
y
d
 C

lo
s
e
 (

7
),

 W
h
in

c
o
v
e
r 

C
lo

s
e
 (

1
2
),

 W
h
in

c
o
v
e
r 

B
a
n
k
 (

3
),

 W
h
in

c
o
v
e
r 

G
ro

v
e
 (

1
2
),

 

W
h
in

c
o
v
e
r 

H
il
l 
( 

7
)

4
0
+

a
g
e

9
7

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

9
7

W
N

W
W

o
rt

le
y

G
a
m

b
le

 H
il
l 
G

ra
n
g
e

3
0
+

a
g
e

9
8

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

9
8

Page 18



 

Report of Assistant Chief Executive (Customer Access and Performance) 

Report to Safer and Stronger Communities Scrutiny Board 

Date: 12th March 2012 

Subject: 2011/12 Quarter 3 Performance Report 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion 
and integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: N/A 

Summary of main issues 

1. This report presents to Scrutiny a summary of the quarter 3 performance data relevant 
to the Safer and Stronger Communities Scrutiny Board.   

Recommendations 

2. Members are recommended to: 

• Note the positive progress in tackling burglary with the lowest level recorded 
burglary count for ten years in December 2011.  No other performance issues 
have been highlighted for consideration at this time.  

• Identify any further reports or information that they may require to fulfil their 
scrutiny role in relation to the delivery of the outcomes for Safer and Stronger 
Communities. 

 
 

 
Report author:   
Heather Pinches  

Tel:  43347 

Agenda Item 8

Page 19



 

1 Purpose of this report 

1.1 This report presents to Scrutiny a summary of the quarter three performance data for 
2011-12 which provides an update on progress in delivering the relevant priorities in 
the Council Business Plan 2011-15 and City Priority Plan 2011-15.   

2 Background information 

2.1 A set of delivery plans for the Council and the city were adopted by Council in July 
2011 and this report provides an update setting out the progress in delivery of these 
plans.  The plans and performance management arrangements that form the basis of 
this report have been developed alongside the revised partnership boards for the city in 
a whole system approach.  Members will note that the delivery of City Priority Plan 
priorities are shared with partners across the city while the Council Business Plan sets 
out the Council’s contribution to these shared priorities.  This report whilst providing an 
overview of the performance relating to the City Priority Plan deliberately focuses more 
on the council’s contribution which will best enable Scrutiny to challenge the 
organisation. 

2.2 The new performance management arrangement include a number of new reports 
including: 

•••• Performance Reports – these are produced quarterly for the each of the City 
Priority Plan priorities and for the 5 Cross-Council Priorities in the Council 
Business Plan.  They are a one page summary of progress in delivering the 
priority including a RAG rating of overall progress.  Where possible the 
headline indictor is shown in a graph to clearly indicate progress and the 
reports include a look forward to the actions due over the next 3-6 months.  
We have adopted the principles of outcomes based accountability in these 
reports.   

•••• Directorate Priorities and Indicators – a directorate scorecard has been 
produced for each directorate which sets out the high level progress against 
each of the directorates priorities and indicators in the Council Business 
Plan.  These are all available on the intranet and published on the Council’s 
website.  It also includes the directorates contribution to the cross council 
priorities and indicators.  For Scrutiny purposes these scorecards have been 
divided up so that each Scrutiny Board receives an update on the priorities 
within the remit of their Board recognising that these do not necessarily align 
directly to the Council’s directorates in all case.  Members will note that this 
does mean that some priorities will go to two or more Scrutiny Boards and 
Boards are asked to consider working jointly on any follow up inquiries or 
nominate a lead Board. 

•••• Self Assessment – each directorate has the opportunity in this section to 
raise any other performance issues that might not be directly represented 
within the directorate priorities and indicators. 

 
2.3 These reports are designed to provide a high level overview of performance issues 

related to the City Priority and Council Business Plans only.  Members will need to use 
this information and the discussion in their boards to identify what further reports and 
more detailed information they might require in order to fulfil their scrutiny role.  
Therefore, these reports are designed to be a starting point for the work of the board.   

2.4 This report includes two appendices: 

•••• Appendix 1a – Performance Reports for the Safer and Stronger 
Communities City Priorities.   

•••• Appendix 1b – Environment and Neighbourhoods Directorate Priorities and 
Indicators which are relevant to the Board  

Page 20



 
3 Main issues 

Performance Overview  

City Priority Plan (CPP) 

3.1 There are 4 priorities in the Safer and Stronger Communities City Priority Plan and 
none are red, 2 are amber and 2 are green.  The amber priorities are: 

 

•••• Ensure that local neighbourhoods are clean. 

•••• Increase a sense of belonging that builds cohesive and harmonious 
communities 

 
3.2 Members will note that between Q2 and 3 the priority to reduce crime and it impact 

improved from amber to green in term of overall progress.  This was due to significant 
improvements to the burglary rates across the city with the lowest recorded burglary 
count in the last ten years in December 2011.  In addition a reduction was also seen in 
overall crime rates including vehicle crime and violent crime.   

3.3 However the priority on cohesive and harmonious communities was rated amber 
compared to green at Q2 as a result of rising tensions nationally that need to be 
monitored locally.  

Council Business Plan  

Directorate Priorities and Indicators 

3.4 There are 6 Directorate Priorities which support the delivery of the Safer and Stronger 
Communities priorities from Environment and Neighbourhoods directorate.  Of these 
none are red, 4 are amber and 2 are green.  These are supported by 4 performance 
indicators and of these 1 indicator is rated as red (see below), 1 is amber, and 2 are 
green.  The red rated indicator is: 

•••• Number of missed bins per 100,000 collected 
 

3.5 The result reported for missed bins represents the average number of missed bins per 
100,000 from the start of the year (April).  Q3 includes the Christmas period (which 
always brings challenges as collection days are changed) and the day of industrial 
action which led to 200+ customer contacts that have been included within the result.  
Implementation of Route Optimisation has brought changes to usual collection 
days/times and some routes will need further changes.  Residual bins (black) 
collections alone were well within the target of 50 misses per 100,000 collections in 
both October and November.  Green and Brown bin collections have proved to be more 
problematic and the reasons for this are being considered.  

3.6 The amber indicator is the recycling rate which has deteriorated from a green rating at 
Q2.  Member will note that the result is still provisional as the full quarter figures are not 
available until a month after the quarter end.  Current RAG of Amber reflects the 
potential risk of not achieving the target of 41.32% following the slight dip in 
performance from Q2.  The dip can be explained by seasonal variation whereby the 
collection of garden waste is suspended and street arisings are predominantly leaf-fall 
rather than sweepings. 

Key performance issues for Safer and Stronger Communities Board  

3.7 At Q3 no other performance issues were raised with Corporate Leadership Team (CLT) 
which are relevant to the Safer and Stronger Communities Board.   

 

Page 21



 
4 Corporate Considerations 

4.1 Consultation and Engagement 

4.1.1 This report provides an update on performance information and, therefore, it is not a 
decision requiring public consultation, however, all performance information is 
provided to the public via the council’s website. 

4.2 Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration 

4.2.1 This report provides an information update only and, therefore, it is not a decision 
which requires due regard to be given to equality and diversity.  However, due regard 
for equality was given during the development of the City Priority Plan and Council 
Business Plan.   

4.2.2 Members will note that these reports provide a high level update only in terms of 
equalities issues relating to the priorities.  However, further analysis and more 
detailed information is available to underpin and support this high level assessment. 

4.3 Council Policies and City Priorities 

4.3.1 This report provides an update on progress in delivering the council and city priorities 
in line with the council’s performance management framework. 

4.4 Resources and Value for Money  

4.4.1 There are no specific resource implications from this report; however, it includes a 
high level update of the Council’s financial position as this is a cross council priority 
within the Business Plan.   

4.5 Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In 

4.5.1 All performance information is publically available and will be published on the council 
and Leeds Initiative websites.   

4.6 Risk Management 

4.6.1 The Performance Reports include an update of the key risks and challenges for each 
of the priorities.  This is supported by a comprehensive risk management process in 
the Council to monitor and manage key risks.  CLT continue to review the corporate 
risk register alongside the performance information which ensures that the Council’s 
most significant risks are effectively identified and managed. 

5 Conclusions 

5.1 This report provides an overall summary of the current performance issues relating to 
the priorities from our strategic plans which are relevant to the Board.  These reports 
are not designed to cover everything but aim to provide an overview which the Board 
can use to inform their future work programme. 

6 Recommendations 

6.1 Members are requested to: 

•••• Note the positive progress in tackling burglary with the lowest level recorded 
burglary count for ten years in December 2011.  No other performance 
issues have been highlighted for consideration at this time.  

•••• Identify any further reports or information that they may require to fulfil their 
scrutiny role in relation to the delivery of the outcomes for Safer and Stronger 
Communities. 

Page 22



 
7 Background documents1 

• City Priority Plan 2011-15 
• Council Business Plan 2011-15 
• Council and City Performance Management Framework (Draft) 

 

                                            
1
 The background documents listed in this section are available for inspection on request for a period of 
four years following the date of the relevant meeting.  Accordingly this list does not include documents 
containing exempt or confidential information, or any published works.  Requests to inspect any 
background documents should be submitted to the report author. 
 

Page 23



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



Saf
er L

eed
s P

erfo
rma

nce
 Ac

cou
nta

bili
ty T

rac
ker

: (R
EP

OR
T C

AR
D) 

 
 

 
 

Rev
iew

 Pe
riod

: O
ct t

o D
ec 

201
1 

Ou
tco

me
: Pe

opl
e a

re s
afe

 an
d fe

el s
afe

  
 

 
 

 
 

Pop
ula

tion
: Re

side
nts

 of 
Lee

ds 
Prio

rity
: Re

duc
e c

rim
e le

vels
 an

d th
eir 

imp
act

 ac
ros

s L
eed

s (f
ocu

s o
n b

urg
lary

 red
uct

ion
) 

 
 

 
Pro

gre
ss: 

OB
A-P

AT 
 SH

 
1

Wh
y is

 thi
s p

rior
ity?

The
 pu

blic
 sh

oul
d b

e s
afe

 an
d fe

el s
afe

 on
 the

 str
eet

s, in
 the

 pla
ces

 the
y g

o a
nd 

esp
ecia

lly i
n th

eir 
own

 ho
me

. Bu
rgla

ry h
as 

sign
ifica

nt c
ons

equ
enc

es 
dire

ctly
 

imp
act

ing
 on

 a p
ers

on’
s se

nse
 of 

saf
ety

, as
 we

ll as
 da

ma
ge 

and
 los

s in
cur

red
. 

Dom
est

ic b
urg

lary
 lev

els 
in L

eed
s re

ma
in h

igh
er t

han
 the

 na
tion

al a
ver

age
 

Hea
dlin

e in
dic

ato
r

"T
u

rn
in

g
 t

h
e
 C

u
rv

e
" 

- 
B

u
rg

la
ry

 D
w

e
ll
in

g
 L

e
e
d

s

5
0
0

6
0
0

7
0
0

8
0
0

9
0
0

1
0
0
0

Apr

M
ar

2
0
0
6
/0

7
2
0
0
7
/0

8
2
0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0
9
/1

0
2
0
1
0
/1

1
2
0
1
1
/1

2

B
a
s
e
lin

e
 R

a
n
g
e

M
o
n
th

ly
 O

ff
e
n
c
e
s

S
e
a
s
o
n
a
lly

 A
d
ju

s
te

d
 T

re
n
d

The
re w

ere
 6,0

45 
rec

ord
ed 

bur
gla

ry d
wel

ling
 off

enc
es 

bet
wee

n A
pril

 an
d 

Dec
em

ber
, do

wn 
6%

 (39
0 fe

wer
 off

enc
es)

 on
 the

 sa
me

 pe
riod

 las
t ye

ar.
The

 se
aso

nal
ly a

dju
ste

d a
ver

age
 is a

t th
e m

idd
le o

f th
e M

iles
ton

e R
ang

e 
and

 the
 es

tim
ate

d o
uttu

rn i
s o

n p
ar w

ith 
the

 pa
rtne

rsh
ip t

arg
et o

f 8,
200

.
Res

ults
 for

 Q3
 sh

ow 
a 2

9.3
% i

mp
rov

em
ent

 (74
1 fe

wer
 vic

tim
s) w

hen
 

com
par

ed 
to t

he 
sam

e p
erio

d la
st y

ear
.

Dec
em

ber
 sa

w th
e lo

wes
t re

cor
ded

 bu
rgla

ry c
oun

t in
 las

t te
n y

ear
s a

nd 
the

 
bes

t pe
rfor

min
g m

ont
h fo

r ov
er t

en 
yea

rs. 
In 3

 mo
nth

 pe
riod

 to 
Nov

, Le
eds

 ha
d m

ove
d d

own
 to 

the
 2nd  h

igh
est

 
Com

mu
nity

 Sa
fety

 Pa
rtne

rsh
ip in

 the
 iQu

ant
a m

ost
 sim

ilar
 fam

ilies
 gro

up.
  

The
 pe

rfor
ma

nce
 ga

p h
as 

nar
row

ed 
from

 4.8
2‰

 to 
0.0

49‰
. 

Nor
th W

est
 Le

eds
 ye

ar t
o d

ate
 off

enc
es 

are
 UP

 2.4
% (

69 
mo

re o
ffen

ces
) on

 
the

 sa
me

 pe
riod

 las
t ye

ar.
Nor

th E
ast

 Le
eds

 ye
ar t

o d
ate

 off
enc

es 
are

 DO
WN

 14
% (

379
 few

er 
offe

nce
s) o

n th
e s

am
e p

erio
d la

st y
ear

.
City

 an
d H

olb
eck

 ye
ar t

o d
ate

 off
enc

es 
are

 DO
WN

 9.6
% (

80 
few

er o
ffen

ces
) 

on 
the

 sa
me

 pe
riod

 las
t ye

ar.
Sto

ry b
ehi

nd 
the

 ba
sel

ine
 

W
a
rd

 
Y

T
D

(Y
e
a
r 

to
 D

a
te

) 
P

re
v
io

u
s
 

Y
T

D
C

h
a
n

g
e
 

%
C

h
a
n

g
e
 

H
y
d
e
 P

a
rk

 &
 W

o
o
d
h

o
u
s
e
 

4
5
3

3
2
5

1
2
8

3
9
%

B
ra

m
le

y
 &

 S
ta

n
n
in

g
le

y
 

3
5
7

2
6
8

8
9

3
3
%

H
e
a

d
in

g
le

y
 

3
3
8

2
7
7

6
1

2
2
%

G
ip

to
n
 &

 H
a
re

h
ill

s
 

3
1
1

3
0
2

9
3
%

A
rm

le
y
 

3
0
6

4
4
1

-1
3
5

-3
1
%

K
ill

in
g

b
e
c
k
 &

 S
e
a
c
ro

ft
 

2
9
5

3
4
4

-4
9

-1
4
%

B
u
rm

a
n
to

ft
s
 &

 R
ic

h
m

o
n
d
 H

ill
 

2
9
0

4
3
6

-1
4
6

-3
3
%

K
ir
k
s
ta

ll
2
7
5

3
7
2

-9
7

-2
6
%

C
h
a

p
e
l 
A

lle
rt

o
n
 

2
4
3

3
1
4

-7
1

-2
3
%

Org
ani

sed
 gro

ups
 ha

ve 
bee

n id
ent

ified
 link

ed 
with

 dru
g s

upp
ly. 

A n
um

ber
 of 

offe
nde

rs u
se 

tax
is o

r un
lice

nse
d/ u

nta
xed

 ve
hicl

es 
to m

ove
 

aro
und

 Le
eds

. 
Com

ple
x n

eed
s h

ave
 be

en 
ide

ntif
ied

 in 
“up

 an
d c

om
ing

” of
fen

der
s w

ho 
can

 
rap

idly
 be

com
e p

roli
fic. 

Pric
es 

of g
old

 an
d je

wel
lery

 are
 co

ntin
uin

g to
 ris

e.  
Paw

n b
rok

ers
/ ca

sh-
con

ver
ter 

bus
ine

sse
s a

re r
epo

rtin
g in

cre
asin

g u
se,

 pro
vidi

ng 
a p

ote
ntia

l 
rou

te f
or t

he 
disp

osa
l of

 sto
len

 go
ods

Bur
gla

ry p
rob

lem
s h

ave
 als

o b
een

 link
ed 

to p
rob

lem
atic

 an
d n

uisa
nce

 
gro

ups
 of 

you
ths

 in 
som

e e
sta

te a
rea

s w
ho 

app
ear

 to 
view

 op
por

tun
istic

 
bur

gla
ry a

s a
n e

xte
nsio

n o
f AS

B. 
Con

tinu
ed 

issu
es 

exis
t ar

oun
d la

ck o
f aw

are
nes

s o
r en

gag
em

ent
 in 

crim
e 

pre
ven

tion
 wit

hin
 sp

ecif
ic g

rou
ps/

 co
mm

uni
ties

 (e.
g. s

tud
ent

s, n
ewl

y a
rriv

ed 
Afri

can
 co

mm
uni

ties
 an

d d
eve

lop
ing

 aff
lue

nt A
sian

 co
mm

uni
ties

). 

Page 25



Saf
er L

eed
s P

erfo
rma

nce
 Ac

cou
nta

bili
ty T

rac
ker

: (R
EP

OR
T C

AR
D) 

 
 

 
 

Rev
iew

 Pe
riod

: O
ct t

o D
ec 

201
1 

Ou
tco

me
: Pe

opl
e a

re s
afe

 an
d fe

el s
afe

  
 

 
 

 
 

Pop
ula

tion
: Re

side
nts

 of 
Lee

ds 
Prio

rity
: Re

duc
e c

rim
e le

vels
 an

d th
eir 

imp
act

 ac
ros

s L
eed

s (f
ocu

s o
n b

urg
lary

 red
uct

ion
) 

 
 

 
Pro

gre
ss: 

OB
A-P

AT 
 SH

 
2

Wh
at w

e d
id (

key
 ex

am
ple

s) 
Loc

ality
 ba

sed
 pla

nni
ng 

ses
sion

s h
ave

 co
ntin

ued
, in

clud
ing

 as
ses

sm
ent

s o
f 

at r
isk 

and
 em

erg
ing

 co
mm

uni
ties

, le
adi

ng 
to p

artn
ers

hip
 pla

ns 
bei

ng 
form

ula
ted

 for
 Bu

rma
nto

fts 
& R

ichm
ond

 Hil
l, B

ram
ley 

and
 Sta

nni
ngl

ey,
 

Cha
pel

 All
erto

n, H
yde

 Pa
rk &

 Wo
odh

ous
e a

nd 
Sou

th L
eed

s.
In t

he 
last

 3 m
ont

hs,
 the

 Bu
rgla

ry T
ask

 Fo
rce

 ha
ve 

arre
ste

d o
ver

 40
 pe

opl
e 

and
 un

der
tak

en 
a n

um
ber

 of 
suc

ces
sfu

l op
era

tion
s a

gai
nst

 Or
gan

ised
 Cr

ime
 

Gro
ups

.  O
ver

 a 3
 da

y p
erio

d in
 De

cem
ber

, 6 
veh

icle
 ch

eck
 site

s w
ere

 
est

abl
ishe

d in
volv

ing
 Ta

xi L
icen

sing
, VO

SA
, Hi

ghw
ays

 En
forc

em
ent

 an
d 

Cus
tom

s.  
Ove

r 12
0 v

ehi
cles

 we
re c

hec
ked

, wi
th s

eve
ral 

arre
sts,

 
pro

hib
ition

s, s
usp

ens
ion

s a
nd 

dru
g s

eizu
res

.  In
 the

 run
 up

 to 
Xm

as,
 a s

erie
s 

of c
o-o

rdin
ate

d w
arra

nts
 we

re c
ond

uct
ed 

with
 12

 pe
rso

ns 
arre

ste
d fo

r 
han

dlin
g s

tole
n g

ood
s a

nd 
dru

gs 
sup

ply.
 

Wo
rk w

ith 
the

 cri
min

al ju
stic

e s
erv

ice 
to m

axim
ise 

suc
ces

sfu
l ou

tco
me

s is
 

pro
gre

ssin
g. T

he 
Go

ver
nor

 of 
Lee

ds 
Pris

on 
Ser

vice
 is n

ow 
a m

em
ber

 of 
Saf

er L
eed

s. I
n th

e 8
 we

eks
 be

fore
 Xm

as,
 70

 off
end

ers
 we

re r
ele

ase
d in

to 
the

 co
mm

uni
ty, 

the
se 

had
 be

en 
ide

ntif
ied

 as
 of 

con
cer

n d
ue 

the
ir p

rev
iou

s 
invo

lvem
ent

 in 
bur

gla
ry d

wel
ling

 off
enc

es.
  Pa

rtne
rsh

ip w
ork

 inc
lud

ed 
pre

-
rele

ase
 ris

k a
sse

ssm
ent

s fo
r st

atu
tory

-ma
nag

ed 
offe

nde
rs a

nd 
for 

tho
se 

rele
ase

d w
itho

ut l
icen

ce 
con

ditio
ns 

alo
ngs

ide
 po

st r
ele

ase
 ac

tivit
y, in

clud
ing

 
mu

lti-a
gen

cy i
nte

rve
ntio

n p
lan

s a
s a

 pa
rt o

f a 
min

imu
m s

tan
dar

d o
f ac

tivit
y.

Fur
the

r w
ork

 ha
s ta

ken
 pla

ce 
to s

upp
ort 

ear
ly in

terv
ent

ion
 wit

h in
divi

dua
ls a

t 
risk

 of 
esc

ala
ting

 off
end

ing
.  In

 No
rth 

Eas
t , f

ollo
win

g a
 po

sitiv
e p

ilot 
sch

em
e 

(Fe
b-A

ugu
st 2

011
), m

ont
hly 

mu
lti-a

gen
cy c

ase
 co

nfe
ren

ces
 ha

ve 
tak

en 
pla

ce 
targ

etin
g e

me
rgin

g p
rob

lem
atic

 off
end

ers
 no

t al
rea

dy 
invo

lved
 in 

Off
end

er M
ana

gem
ent

 pro
ces

ses
.  D

eta
iled

 int
erv

ent
ion

 pla
ns 

are
 in 

pla
ce 

to 
dive

rt a
nd 

hel
p re

duc
e o

ffen
din

g b
eha

viou
r of

 tho
se 

sele
cte

d.
Wo

rk c
ont

inu
es 

on 
a n

um
ber

 of 
pro

ject
s a

cro
ss L

eed
s to

 im
pro

ve 
sec

urit
y fo

r 
ten

ant
s. I

n B
ram

ley,
 £5

0K 
was

 allo
cat

ed 
to p

rov
ide

 tar
get

 ha
rde

nin
g 

me
asu

res
 for

 str
eet

s a
t ris

k; in
 the

 las
t 2 

mo
nth

s, 1
92 

pro
per

ties
 rec

eive
d th

is 

ser
vice

 an
d th

e p
rog

ram
me

 co
ntin

ues
.  In

 So
uth

 Le
eds

, Ne
igh

bou
rho

od 
Pol

icin
g T

eam
s a

nd 
ALM

Os 
sha

re d
eta

ils o
f bu

rgla
ry v

ictim
s e

nab
ling

 
hou

sing
 off

icer
s to

 rou
tine

ly fo
llow

 up
 wit

h v
isits

 to 
offe

r pr
act

ical
 su

ppo
rt.  

As 
par

t of
 a f

und
ed 

‘Da
rke

r N
igh

ts’ i
nitia

tive
 tim

er s
witc

hes
 an

d s
ecu

rity
 pro

duc
ts 

wer
e d

istr
ibu

ted
 an

d b
urg

lary
 red

uct
ion

 ad
vice

 to 
loca

l re
side

nts
 in 

Nor
th 

Eas
t Le

eds
 ho

tsp
ots

.  P
CS

O v
isits

 to 
offe

r pr
act

ical
 ad

vice
 to 

red
uce

 ris
k o

f 
vict

imis
atio

n a
re a

lso 
bei

ng 
car

ried
 ou

t by
 all 

thre
e P

olic
e D

ivis
ion

s.  
 

Wh
at L

ook
s P

rom
isin

g/W
hat

 Wo
rke

d/L
ess

ons
 Le

arn
t 

In R
oth

wel
l an

d H
olb

eck
 a p

ilot 
pro

ject
 wa

s in
itiat

ed 
ide

ntif
ying

 a ‘
top

 10
’ 

coh
ort 

(Un
der

 18
’s) 

who
 ha

d n
ot b

een
 thr

oug
h a

ny 
crim

ina
l jus

tice
 pro

ces
s 

but
 we

re a
t ris

k o
f en

teri
ng 

the
 sys

tem
.  In

ten
sive

 su
ppo

rt p
ack

age
 ha

ve 
bee

n a
ctiv

ate
d, i

nclu
din

g w
ork

 wit
h S

ign
pos

t.
Pro

mo
tion

 of 
“im

mo
bilis

e.c
om

” th
rou

gh 
uni

ver
sitie

s, c
om

mu
nity

 gro
ups

, 
ten

ant
s e

tc. 
 Th

is s
yste

m r
eco

rds
 ma

rke
d p

rop
erty

 on
to a

 na
tion

al d
ata

bas
e 

and
 sca

nne
rs t

o id
ent

ify s
tole

n g
ood

s.  
Tw

o o
per

atio
ns 

(un
der

tak
en 

with
 

stu
den

t vo
lun

tee
rs) 

hav
e b

een
 he

ld in
 He

adi
ngl

ey 
and

 Hy
de 

Par
k w

ith 
175

 
imm

obi
lise

 reg
istr

atio
ns 

and
 45

0 it
em

s p
lace

d o
n re

gist
er t

o d
ate

. 
New

 ac
tion

s 
Ma

xim
ise 

the
 us

e o
f Pr

oce
eds

 of 
Crim

e le
gisl

atio
n a

gai
nst

 bu
rgla

rs a
nd 

han
dle

rs o
f st

ole
n g

ood
s 

Dev
elo

p a
 co

mm
uni

ty im
pac

t st
ate

me
nt f

or i
nclu

sion
 on

 all 
bur

gla
ry c

our
t 

files Dev
elo

p a
 for

war
d p

lan
 for

 se
aso

nal
 ma

rke
ting

 ca
mp

aig
ns 

and
 pre

ss 
opp

ortu
nitie

s
Dev

elo
pm

ent
 of 

Res
tora

tive
 Ju

stic
e P

rac
tice

 
Info

rma
tion

/int
elli

gen
ce 

req
uire

me
nt 

Dev
elo

p p
red

ictiv
e a

nal
ysis

 to 
aid

 de
cisi

on 
ma

king
 at 

a c
ity 

wid
e a

nd 
loca

l 
leve

l
Iss

ues
/Ris

ks
Sus

tain
ing

 pa
rtne

rsh
ip a

ctiv
ity, 

foc
us 

and
 co

mm
itm

ent
. 

Page 26



Saf
er L

eed
s P

erfo
rma

nce
 Ac

cou
nta

bili
ty T

rac
ker

:
 

Rev
iew

 Pe
riod

: O
cto

ber
 – D

ece
mb

er 2
011

  
Item

 4b
 

Ou
tco

me
: Th

e c
om

mu
nitie

s o
f Le

eds
 fee

l sa
fe a

nd 
are

 sa
fe 

Pop
ula

tion
: Re

side
nts

 of 
Lee

ds 
Prio

rity
: An

ti-S
ocia

l Be
hav

iou
r

Pro
gre

ss:

1
OB

A-P
AT

Wh
y is

 thi
s p

rior
ity?

Com
mu

nitie
s e

xpe
ct 

pub
lic 

age
ncie

s t
o t

ack
le 

AS
B i

n t
hei

r lo
cali

ties
 in

 a 
res

pon
sive

 an
d e

ffec
tive

 m
ann

er. 
 Im

pro
ving

 th
e l

ives
 of

 vic
tim

s o
f A

SB
 is 

fun
dam

ent
al 

to 
the

ir w
ell-

bei
ng.

 M
ana

gin
g o

r m
odi

fyin
g t

he 
beh

avio
urs

 of
 

offe
nde

rs w
ho 

cre
ate

 mo
st h

arm
 in 

our
 co

mm
uni

ties
 wi

ll re
duc

e th
e ri

sk 
of r

e-
offe

ndi
ng 

and
 in 

turn
 red

uce
 AS

B a
nd 

crim
e. 

Hea
dlin

e in
dic

ato
rs

Imp
rov

e th
e a

ver
age

 sa
tisfa

ctio
n ra

ting
 of 

cus
tom

ers
/vic

tim
s w

ith 
reg

ard
s to

 the
 

cas
e o

utc
om

e a
nd 

the
 ov

era
ll se

rvic
e re

ceiv
ed.

  

A
n

n
u

a
l 

F
ig

u
re

s
 

2
0
0

8
/9

 
2
0
0

9
/1

0
 

2
0
1

0
/1

1
 

2
0
1

1
/1

2
 

%
 S

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 c

a
s
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
. 

6
1
.6

%
6
6
.1

%
6
0
.3

%
7
8
.0

%
 

%
 S

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 r

a
ti
n
g
 w

it
h
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 

7
2
.2

%
7
3
.7

%
7
0
.4

%
8
0
.7

%
 

Sto
ry b

ehi
nd 

the
 ba

sel
ine

Cus
tom

er c
ase

 ou
tco

me
 sa

tisfa
ctio

n d
ata

 is 
coll

ate
d th

rou
gh 

clos
ed 

cas
e p

ost
al 

sur
vey

s w
hich

 as
k a

 ra
nge

 of
 qu

est
ion

s in
clud

ing
 sa

tisfa
ctio

n w
ith 

res
pon

se 
tim

es,
 the

 inv
est

iga
tion

 un
der

tak
en 

and
 the

 ov
era

ll s
atis

fac
tion

 wi
th t

he 
ser

vice
 

rec
eive

d.
Due

 to
 th

e s
ign

ifica
nt 

stru
ctu

ral 
and

 op
era

tion
al 

cha
nge

s i
n A

SB
 se

rvic
e 

pro
visi

on 
dire

ct c
om

par
ison

 be
twe

en 
201

0/1
1 p

erfo
rma

nce
 da

ta (
ofte

n c
olla

ted
 

acr
oss

 a 
num

ber
 of

 ag
enc

ies 
wor

king
 to

 di
ffer

ing
 th

res
hol

ds 
and

 di
ffer

ent
 

sta
nda

rds
) an

d 2
011

/12
 (w

her
e A

SB
 is 

prim
aril

y d
eal

t w
ith 

by 
one

 mu
lti-a

gen
cy 

ser
vice

 wo
rkin

g to
 ne

w s
erv

ice 
sta

nda
rds

) is
 no

t al
way

s p
oss

ible
 or 

app
rop

riat
e.  

It h
as 

the
refo

re b
een

 ag
ree

d th
at L

AS
BT 

dat
a c

olla
ted

 du
ring

 20
11/

12 
will

 be
 

reg
ard

ed 
as 

the
 ba

seli
ne 

from
 wh

ich 
futu

re p
erfo

rma
nce

 tar
get

s ca
n b

e s
et.

Wh
ere

 co
mp

aris
ons

 are
 pro

vide
d, c

om
par

ison
 is 

with
 the

 for
me

r A
SB

U c
lose

d 
cas

e s
urv

ey 
retu

rns
 co

nsid
ere

d lik
e fo

r lik
e w

ith 
cur

ren
t LA

SB
T d

ata
. 

Wh
at a

re t
he 

kno
wn 

fac
tors

 dri
ving

 the
 ba

seli
ne ?

Cus
tom

er s
atis

fac
tion

 wit
h th

e c
ase

 ou
tco

me
 is 

inva
riab

ly d
rive

n b
y a

 nu
mb

er o
f 

fac
tors

 inc
lud

ing
 the

 vic
tim

s o
wn 

exp
ect

atio
ns,

 the
 co

mp
lexi

ty o
f th

e c
ase

, th
e 

tim
e t

ake
n t

o r
eso

lve 
the

 iss
ues

 an
d t

he 
leve

l o
f s

upp
ort 

pro
vide

d b
y t

he 
inve

stig
atin

g o
ffice

r. 
Init

ial 
ana

lysi
s o

f th
ose

 ca
ses

 wh
ere

 sa
tisfa

ctio
n le

vels
 are

 low
er s

ugg
est

s th
at  

sur
vey

 re
spo

nse
s a

re 
less

 co
mp

lime
nta

ry 
whe

re 
the

y a
re 

rela
ted

 to
 lo

ng 
sta

ndi
ng 

cas
es 

pre
viou

sly 
inve

stig
ate

d b
y t

he 
AS

BU
 or

 in
divi

dua
l A

LM
O’s

. 
Imp

rov
em

ent
s i

n o
ver

all 
rati

ngs
 ar

e t
hou

ght
 to

 be
 lin

ked
 im

pro
ved

 se
rvic

e 
sta

nda
rds

 wh
ich 

pla
ce 

a re
qui

rem
ent

 on
 off

icer
s to

 pro
vide

 vic
tim

s w
ith 

reg
ula

r 
upd

ate
s. I

t is
 ho

ped
 tha

t th
ese

 im
pro

ved
 fig

ure
s w

ill b
e m

ain
tain

ed 
as 

hist
oric

al 
cas

es 
dim

inis
h a

nd 
sur

vey
 da

ta r
ela

tes
 to 

cas
es 

inve
stig

ate
d in

 the
ir e

ntir
ety

 by
 

LAS
BT.

Ris
k fa

cto
r de

scr
iptio

ns
Sur

vey
 d

ata
 is

 re
lian

t o
n 

ach
ievi

ng 
a 

res
pon

se 
rate

 th
at 

is 
suf

ficie
ntly

 
rep

res
ent

ativ
e to

 be
 of 

valu
e. A

dvic
e is

sue
d b

y th
e d

epa
rtm

ent
 for

 Co
mm

uni
ties

 
and

 Lo
cal 

Go
ver

nm
ent

 su
gge

sts 
tha

t re
spo

nse
 ra

tes
 be

low
 30

% 
sho

uld
, o

n 
bal

anc
e, b

e p
ubl

ishe
d w

ith 
cav

eat
s a

s n
ece

ssa
ry. 

Qu
arte

r 3 
sur

vey
 da

ta f
or 2

011
/12

 is 
bas

ed 
on 

a re
spo

nse
 rat

e o
f 32

.8%
 (ba

sed
 

on 
143

 ret
urn

ed 
sur

vey
s). 

Cor
e te

am
 sta

ff a
re c

urre
ntly

 un
der

tak
ing

 ad
ditio

nal
 

wor
k to

 fol
low

 up
 no

n-re
spo

nse
s to

 fur
the

r im
pro

ve 
the

 ret
urn

 rat
e.

Vic
tim

 De
mo

gra
phi

cs
Ana

lysi
s o

f vic
tim

 de
mo

gra
phi

cs s
how

s th
at t

he 
vas

t m
ajo

rity
 of 

AS
B v

ictim
s a

re 
Wh

ite 
Brit

ish.
 62

% 
(78

3) 
of 

vict
ims

 we
re 

fem
ale

 an
d 3

5%
 (4

43)
 m

ale
. T

he 
rem

ain
der

 are
 a m

ixed
 gro

up 
or g

end
er u

nkn
own

 (no
t re

cor
ded

) .O
nly 

7 v
ictim

s 
wer

e a
ged

 un
der

 18
. 

Page 27



Saf
er L

eed
s P

erfo
rma

nce
 Ac

cou
nta

bili
ty T

rac
ker

:
 

Rev
iew

 Pe
riod

: O
cto

ber
 – D

ece
mb

er 2
011

  
Item

 4b
 

Ou
tco

me
: Th

e c
om

mu
nitie

s o
f Le

eds
 fee

l sa
fe a

nd 
are

 sa
fe 

Pop
ula

tion
: Re

side
nts

 of 
Lee

ds 
Prio

rity
: An

ti-S
ocia

l Be
hav

iou
r

Pro
gre

ss:

2
OB

A-P
AT

Per
pet

rato
r D

em
ogr

aph
ics

Ana
lysi

s o
f pe

rpe
trat

or d
em

ogr
aph

ics 
sho

ws 
tha

t 66
% o

f A
SB

 pe
rpe

trat
ors

 are
 

Wh
ite 

Brit
ish.

  51
% (

564
) of

 pe
rpe

trat
ors

 are
 fem

ale
 an

d 4
3%

 (47
2) m

ale
. Th

e 
rem

ain
der

 are
 a m

ixed
 gro

up 
or g

end
er u

nkn
own

 (no
t re

cor
ded

). 7
9 p

erp
etra

tors
 

wer
e a

ged
 un

der
 18

. 
Wh

at w
e d

id
Sin

ce 
its 

imp
lem

ent
atio

n in
 Ap

ril 2
011

, th
e n

ew 
mu

lti-a
gen

cy 
Lee

ds 
Ant

i-so
cial

 
beh

avio
ur T

eam
 (LA

SB
T)  

has
 res

pon
sibi

lity 
for 

all r
epo

rted
 inc

ide
nts

 de
em

ed 
to 

be 
AS

B 
und

er 
new

 gu
ida

nce
 th

at 
refl

ect
s t

he 
gov

ern
me

nts
 ha

rm 
cen

tred
 

app
roa

ch.
 Re

vise
d p

roc
edu

res
 ha

ve 
also

 be
en 

imp
lem

ent
ed,

 un
der

pin
ned

 by
 

cus
tom

er f
ocu

sed
 se

rvic
e s

tan
dar

ds 
des

ign
ed 

to e
nsu

re c
ase

s a
re p

rog
res

sed
 

effi
cien

tly a
nd 

rep
orte

d p
rob

lem
s re

solv
ed 

at t
he 

ear
lies

t op
por

tun
ity.

Prio
r to

 Ap
ril 2

001
 AS

B e
nqu

irie
s w

ere
 log

ged
 wit

h b
oth

 the
 AS

BU
 an

d A
LM

O’s
 

with
 res

ultin
g d

ata
 dis

tort
ed 

by 
rep

eat
 ca

lls a
nd 

dup
lica

tion
. Si

nce
 Ap

ril 2
011

 all
 

AS
B r

ela
ted

 ca
lls a

re n
ow 

log
ged

 wit
h th

e n
ew 

ser
vice

 an
d s

how
s a

 sig
nific

ant
 

incr
eas

e o
n th

e n
um

ber
 of 

rep
orts

 pre
viou

sly 
dea

lt w
ith 

by 
AS

BU
.

Q1 10/
11

Q2 10/
11

Q3 10/
11

Q4 10/
11

Q1 11/
12

Q2 11/
12

Q3 11/
12

Enq
uiri

es 
log

ged
 on

 
Sie

bel
 un

der
 LA

SB
T 

(AS
BU

 pri
or t

o 0
4/0

4/1
1) 

459
370

229
320

101
1

916
645

The
 nu

mb
er 

of 
AS

B c
alls

 log
ged

 wi
th 

We
st Y

ork
shir

e P
olic

e w
as 

pre
viou

sly 
rep

orte
d t

o b
e a

t a
rou

nd 
10,

500
 pe

r q
uar

ter.
 Fo

llow
ing

 th
e in

trod
uct

ion
 of

 a 
rev

ised
 an

d m
ore

 ac
cur

ate
 AS

B g
rad

ing
 sy

ste
m i

ntro
duc

ed 
in S

ept
em

ber
 20

11,
 

(rem
ovin

g re
por

ts o
f ab

and
one

d v
ehi

cles
, do

g fi
ght

ing
 etc

) qu
arte

r 3 
dat

a s
how

s 
the

 po
lice

 rec
eive

d 6
,14

5 A
SB

 rel
ate

d c
alls

.
The

 nu
mb

er o
f ne

w c
ase

s o
pen

ed 
by 

LAS
BT 

initi
ally

 inc
rea

sed
 in 

line
 wi

th t
he 

refe
rral

s a
nd 

rep
orts

 rec
eive

d c
om

par
ed 

to t
he 

form
er A

SB
U b

ut h
as 

now
 fal

len
 

bac
k in

 line
 wit

h p
re-q

ues
t le

vels
 du

ring
 qu

arte
r 3.

Q1 10/
11

Q2 10/
11

Q3 10/
11

Q4 10/
11

Q1 11/
12

Q2 11/
12

Q3 11/
12

AS
B c

ase
s o

pen
ed 

by 
LAS

BT
2

4
3

2
3

6
2

7
8

2
6

7
3

3
5

3
5

4
2

5
1

Wh
at W

ork
ed/

Les
son

s L
ear

nt 
Ear

ly 
ind

icat
ion

s s
how

 th
at 

mo
re 

cas
es 

are
 be

ing
 de

alt 
with

 m
ore

 qu
ickl

y 
thro

ugh
 ea

rlie
r in

terv
ent

ion
 an

d c
lose

d w
ithin

 15
4 w

ork
ing

 da
ys 

with
 21

.7%
 of 

cas
es 

clos
ed 

with
in 4

0 w
ork

ing
 da

ys (
8 w

eek
s). 

Lee
ds 

is n
ow 

see
n a

s a
 lea

din
g e

xam
ple

 reg
ion

ally
 an

d n
atio

nal
ly, 

gen
era

ting
 

inte
res

t an
d v

isit 
req

ues
ts f

rom
 a n

um
ber

 of 
loca

l au
tho

ritie
s a

nd 
CS

P’s
. 

New
 ac

tion
s 

In a
ddi

tion
 to 

this
 co

re w
ork

 thr
ee 

key
 ac

tion
s a

re b
ein

g p
urs

ued
: 

Wo
rk 

is o
ngo

ing
 to

 int
egr

ate
 sta

ff r
esp

ond
ing

 to
 no

ise 
nui

san
ce 

rep
orts

, 
ofte

n re
gar

ded
 as

 An
ti-s

ocia
l inc

ide
nts

 wit
hin

 LA
SB

T. 
We

st 
Yor

ksh
ire 

Pol
ice,

 ar
e c

ont
inu

ing
 to

 id
ent

ify 
rep

eat
 lo

cat
ion

s a
nd 

vuln
era

ble
 vi

ctim
s, 

to 
imp

rov
e i

nfo
rma

tion
 sh

arin
g a

nd 
ens

ure
 LA

SB
T 

pro
act

ivel
y re

spo
nd 

to e
me

rgin
g A

SB
 iss

ues
.  

On
goi

ng 
rev

iew
 of 

the
 sta

tuto
ry A

SB
 pa

nel
 pro

ces
s to

 ma
xim

ise 
par

tne
rsh

ip 
pro

ble
m s

olvi
ng,

 link
s to

 loc
al t

ask
ing

 an
d o

ffen
der

 ma
nag

em
ent

 init
iativ

es.
 

Info
rma

tion
/int

elli
gen

ce 
req

uire
me

nt 
In a

ddi
tion

 to 
effo

rts 
to i

mp
rov

e in
form

atio
n s

har
ing

 LA
SB

T’s
 Co

re p
erfo

rma
nce

 
tea

m w
ill lo

ok 
to b

enc
hm

ark
 its 

new
 se

rvic
e a

gai
nst

 oth
er l

oca
l au

tho
ritie

s. 
Iss

ues
/Ris

ks
As 

we 
mo

ve 
into

 the
 fin

al q
uar

ter 
of L

AS
BT’

s fir
st y

ear
, ke

y p
artn

ers
 wil

l be
 

kee
nly 

inte
res

ted
 in 

rev
iew

ing
 the

 im
pac

t an
d p

rog
res

s o
f th

e s
erv

ice.
 Eq

ual
ly 

the
re w

ill b
e a

 ne
ed 

to s
et a

ppr
opr

iate
 tar

get
s fo

r th
e y

ear
 ah

ead
 tha

t bu
ilds

 on
 

pro
gre

ss a
nd 

furt
her

 im
pro

ves
 the

 se
rvic

e p
rov

ide
d. 

Page 28



M
e

e
ti

n
g

: 
S

a
fe

r 
a

n
d

 S
tr

o
n

g
e

r 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 B

o
a

rd
P

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
:

A
ll 

p
e

o
p

le
 i
n

 L
e

e
d

s
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

:
th

e
 c

it
y
 i
s
 c

le
a

n
 a

n
d

 w
e

lc
o

m
in

g
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
:

E
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
lo

c
a

l 
n

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

s
 a

re
 c

le
a

n
.

W
h

y
 a

n
d

 w
h

e
re

 i
s

 t
h

is
 a

 p
ri

o
ri

ty
C

le
a

n
 s

tr
e

e
ts

 a
n

d
 n

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

s
 a

re
 r

e
g

u
la

rl
y
 c

it
e

d
 b

y
 l
o

c
a

l 
p

e
o

p
le

 a
s
 o

n
e

 o
f 

th
e

 k
e

y
 d

e
te

rm
in

a
n

ts
 o

f 
w

h
e

th
e

r 
th

e
 a

re
a

 i
n

 w
h

ic
h

 t
h

e
y
 l
iv

e
 i
s
 a

tt
ra

c
ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 w

e
lc

o
m

in
g

. 
C

le
a

n
 s

tr
e

e
ts

 c
a

n
 p

ro
m

o
te

 
a

 s
e

n
s
e

 o
f 
w

e
ll-

b
e

in
g

 a
n

d
 b

e
lo

n
g

in
g

; 
c
o

n
v
e

rs
e

ly
 h

ig
h

 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
lit

te
r 

a
n

d
 r

u
b

b
is

h
 s

tr
e
w

n
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 c

a
n

 
fo

s
te

r 
a

 s
e

n
s
e

 o
f 

s
o

c
ia

l 
c
o

n
c
e

rn
 a

n
d
 f

e
a

r 
o

f 
c
ri

m
e

, 
th

is
 i
s
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
rl

y
 t

h
e

 c
a

s
e

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o
n

 t
o

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 s

u
c
h

 
a

s
 g

ra
ff

it
i,
 f
ly

-p
o

s
ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 f
ly

-t
ip

p
in

g
. 

O
v
e
ra

ll
 P

ro
g

re
s
s
: 

A
m

b
e

r

S
to

ry
 b

e
h

in
d

 t
h

e
 b

a
s

e
li

n
e

  
 

O
v
e

r 
th

e
 p

a
s
t 

1
0

 y
e

a
rs

 o
r 

s
o

 s
tr

e
e

t 
c
le

a
n

lin
e
s
s
 l
e

v
e

ls
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 L

e
e

d
s
 h

a
v
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 a

n
d

 s
te

a
d

ily
. 

T
h

is
 h

a
s
 r

e
fl
e

c
te

d
 a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

k
e

y
 d

ri
v
e

rs
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
:-

 

* 
in

c
re

a
s
e

d
 p

u
b

lic
 c

o
n
c
e

rn
 a

ro
u

n
d

 t
h

e
 i
s
s
u

e
, 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t

o
 t
h

e
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 a

n
d

 n
e

g
a

ti
v
e

 
im

p
a

c
ts

 t
h

e
 i
s
s
u

e
 b

ri
n

g
s
 w

it
h

 i
t 

* 
in

c
re

a
s
e

d
 f

o
c
u

s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 i
s
s
u

e
 f

ro
m

 c
e

n
tr

a
l 

g
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 v

ia
 a

 d
e

d
ic

a
te

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 
in

d
ic

a
to

r 
- 

N
I 

1
9

5
 (

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 B
V

 1
9

9
) 

* 
a

v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 o
f 

fu
n

d
in

g
 t

o
 t
a

c
k
le

 s
tr

e
e

t 
c
le

a
n

lin
e
s
s
 

le
v
e

ls
 i
n

 a
re

a
s
 o

f 
g

re
a

te
s
t 

c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
 -

 N
R

F
, 

S
S

C
F

 
a

n
d

 L
P

S
A

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 h
a

v
e

 a
ll 

b
e

e
n

 u
s
e

d
 i
n

 L
e

e
d

s
. 
 

T
h

e
 C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

is
 t

h
e

 p
ri
m

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
r 

w
it
h

in
 

th
e

 C
it
y
 a

n
d

 d
o

e
s
 t

h
is

 v
ia

 a
n

 i
n

-h
o

u
s
e

 w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

. 
T

h
e

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

 r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 o

n
 a

 
ro

u
ti
n

e
/s

c
h

e
d

u
le

d
 b

a
s
is

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 m

e
c
h

a
n

ic
a

l 
a
n
d

 m
a

n
u

a
l 
s
tr

e
e

t 
c
le

a
n

in
g
, 

lit
te

r 
b

in
 e

m
p

ty
in

g
 a

n
d

 f
ly

-t
ip

 r
e

m
o

v
a

l.
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

re
 a

ls
o

 r
e
s
p

o
n

s
iv

e
 t

o
 

lo
c
a

l 
is

s
u

e
s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 e

v
e
n

ts
, 

fe
te

s
 a

n
d

 g
a

la
s
 e

tc
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t

h
e

 n
e

e
d

s
 o

f 
lo

c
a

l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 a

s
 e

x
p

re
s
s
e

d
 v

ia
 E

le
c
te

d
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
 o

r 
v
ia

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ts
 

th
e

m
s
e

lv
e

s
. 

T
h

is
 i
s
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

a
 b

a
c
k
d

ro
p

 o
f 

e
x
te

rn
a

l 
fu

n
d

in
g

 l
o
s
s
e

s
, 
w

h
ic

h
 p

re
s
e

n
ts

 a
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
in

g
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
e

 t
o

 m
a

in
ta

in
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 i
n

 t
h

is
 

c
o

n
te

x
t.

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 d
a

ta
 s

h
o

w
s
 t

h
a

t 
L

e
e

d
s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

s
 w

e
ll 

a
g

a
in

s
t 
o
th

e
r 

‘c
o

re
 c

it
y
’ 
c
o

m
p

a
ra

to
rs

 i
n

 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 a

 g
o

o
d

 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 (
N

I 
1

9
5

 
d

a
ta

) 
w

it
h

 a
 r

e
la

ti
v
e

ly
 l
o

w
 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
s
p

e
n

d
 p

e
r 

h
e

a
d

 o
f 

p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
. 

L
e

e
d

s
 i
s
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
iv

e
 i
n

 i
ts

 u
s
e

 o
f 

e
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
p

o
w

e
rs

 t
o

 t
a

c
k
le

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 l
it
te

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 f
ly

-t
ip

p
in

g
 a

n
d

 h
a

s
 t
a

k
e

n
 a

 s
tr

o
n
g

 s
ta

n
c
e

 w
h

ic
h

 h
a

s
 

s
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 i
s
s
u

e
 o

f 
F

ix
e

d
 P

e
n

a
lt
y
 N

o
ti
c
e

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

s
e

c
u

ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

s
e

ri
o

u
s
 o

ff
e

n
c
e

s
. 

T
ra

d
it
io

n
a

lly
 s

tr
e

e
t 

c
le

a
n
lin

e
s
s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 d
a

ta
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 m

e
a

s
u

re
d

 a
n

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 a
t 

a
 c

it
y
 w

id
e

 l
e

v
e

l.
 M

o
re

 r
e

c
e

n
tl
y
 t

h
is

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 p

ro
d

u
c
e

d
 a

t 
a

 
lo

w
e

r 
le

v
e

l 
(b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 1
0

 A
re

a
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
s
) 

a
n

d
 t

h
is

 w
ill

 h
e

lp
 t

o
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
 a

n
d

 t
a

c
k
le

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 i
n

 a
 m

o
re

 b
e

s
p

o
k
e

 w
a

y
 t

h
a

n
 h

a
s
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 
b

e
e

n
 t

h
e

 c
a
s
e

 a
t 

th
e

 l
o

c
a

lit
y
 l
e

v
e

l 
. 

T
h

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
n

 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
s
it
e
s
 s

u
rv

e
y
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
w

e
re

 j
u

d
g

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 s
a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t

o
 

lit
te

r,
 d

e
tr

it
u
s
, 

g
ra

ff
it
i 
a

n
d

 f
ly

p
o

s
ti
n

g
 i
n

 2
0

1
0

/1
1

 w
e

re
 a

s
 a

b
o

v
e

.

L
it

te
r

D
et

ri
tu

s 
G

ra
ff

it
i

F
ly

p
o

st
in

g
 

C
it

y
9

0
.9

 
7

6
.2

 
9

7
.1

 
9

9
.6

 

E
N

E
 W

ed
g

e 
8

8
.8

 
7

8
.5

 
9

5
.0

 
9

9
.4

 

E
as

t 
In

n
er

 
8

4
.5

 
8

3
.9

 
9

2
.1

 
9

9
.0

 

N
o
rt

h
 E

as
t 

In
n
er

 
8

4
.3

 
6

8
.4

 
9

3
.8

 
9

9
.5

 

N
o
rt

h
 E

as
t 

O
u

te
r 

9
7
.8

 
8

4
.1

 
9

9
.2

 
9

9
.8

 

S
S

E
 W

ed
g

e 
8

8
.8

 
7

8
.1

 
9

7
.7

 
9

9
.6

 

E
as

t 
O

u
te

r 
9

0
.5

 
8

0
.7

 
9

8
.4

 
9

9
.1

 

S
o
u

th
 I

n
n

er
 

8
4
.4

 
7

8
.4

 
9

5
.4

 
9

9
.7

 

S
o
u

th
 O

u
te

r 
9

1
.6

 
7

5
.1

 
9

9
.3

 
1

0
0

 

W
N

W
 W

ed
g

e 
9

4
.0

 
7

3
.0

 
9

8
.1

 
9

9
.8

 

N
o
rt

h
 W

es
t 

In
n

er
 

9
4
.4

 
5

8
.7

 
9

8
.5

 
1

0
0

 

N
o
rt

h
 W

es
t 

O
u
te

r 
9

7
.9

 
8

0
.0

 
9

9
.3

 
9

9
.7

 

W
es

t 
In

n
er

 
9

1
.5

 
7

7
.3

 
9

7
.7

 
9

9
.7

 

W
es

t 
O

u
te

r 
9

2
.0

 
7

7
.1

 
9

6
.9

 
9

9
.8

 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

 3
C

O
M

3
C

IT
Y

 P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

 P
L

A
N

 P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
 R

E
P

O
R

T

Page 29



W
h

a
t 

d
o

 k
e

y
 s

ta
k

e
h

o
ld

e
rs

 t
h

in
k

  
  

P
e

rc
e

p
ti
o

n
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
 o

f 
c
le

a
n

lin
e

s
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e

 w
e

re
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 i
n

 D
e

c
 2

0
1

1
. 

T
h
e

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
th

is
 a

re
 a

w
a

it
e

d
 a

t 
ti
m

e
 o

f 
w

ri
ti
n

g
. 

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
, 

a
n

e
c
d

o
ta

l 
e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 s
u

g
g

e
s
ts

 t
h

a
t 
c
le

a
n

lin
e

s
s
 h

a
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 c
it
y
 a

n
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 i
s
 m

o
re

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
iv

e
 t

o
 l
o

c
a

l 
is

s
u

e
s
.

W
h

a
t 

w
e

 d
id

 

 
L

e
e

d
s
 h

a
s
 r

e
c
e

n
tl
y
 d

e
v
is

e
d

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 L

e
v
e

l 
A

g
re

e
m

e
n

ts
 (

S
L

A
s
) 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 1

0
 A

re
a

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 E

&
N

 D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

 s
e
tt

in
g

 
o

u
t 

th
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
s
tr

e
e

t 
c
le

a
n

s
in

g
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

ir
a

re
a

s
. 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

th
e

 S
L

A
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

 a
n

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 
a

t 
A

re
a

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 a

n
n

u
a

lly
. 

 
T

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 h

a
s
 r

e
c
e

n
tl
y
 u

n
d

e
rg

o
n

e
 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
re

s
tr

u
c
tu

ri
n

g
 t

o
 a

llo
w

 
n

e
w

ly
 a

p
p

o
in

te
d

 L
o

c
a

lit
y
 M

a
n

a
g

e
rs

 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
m

o
re

 l
o

c
a

lly
 

re
s
p

o
n

s
iv

e
 a

n
d

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ta
b

le
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 v

ia
 a

re
a

 b
a

s
e

d
 t

e
a

m
s
. 

 
A

ll 
s
ta

ff
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

re
 n

o
w

 o
n

 s
h

if
t 

p
a

tt
e

rn
s
 t

h
a

t 
s
u

p
p
o

rt
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 c

it
y
 o

n
 a

 7
 d

a
y
 b

a
s
is

. 
  

  

 
T

h
e

 m
o

s
t 

re
c
e

n
t 

ro
u

n
d

 o
f 

N
I 

1
9

5
 c

le
a

n
lin

e
s
s
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
 w

a
s

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

in
 D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r.

 R
e

s
u

lt
s
 a

re
 a

w
a

it
e

d
 a

t 
ti
m

e
 o

f 
w

ri
ti
n

g
. 

W
h

a
t 

w
o

rk
e

d
 l

o
c

a
ll

y
 /

C
a

s
e

 s
tu

d
y
 o

f 
im

p
a

c
t 

 
T

h
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
f 

th
e

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 S

L
A

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

e
a

s
u

re
d

 b
y
 

th
e

 N
I 

1
9

5
 s

u
rv

e
y
 r

e
u

lt
s
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
1

/1
2

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 C
it
iz

e
n

 P
a

n
e

l 
re

s
u

lt
s
 

N
e
w

 A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
o

rk
 i
s
 u

n
d
e

rw
a

y
 w

it
h

 a
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

in
te

rn
a

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

o
 

id
e

n
ti
fy

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

th
a

t 
w

ill
 l
e

a
d

 t
o

 b
e

tt
e

r 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
, 

th
e

s
e

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

:-
 

 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

d
 c

le
a

n
in

g
 o

f 
g

in
n

e
ls

 v
ia

 a
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

a
g

e
n

c
ie

s
 

 
E

x
p

a
n

d
e

d
 t

ip
p

in
g

 p
o

in
ts

 a
n

d
 s

h
a

re
d

 d
e

p
o

t 
fa

c
ili

ti
e

s
, 

to
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 
tr

a
v
e

l 
ti
m

e

 
lit

te
r 

c
le

a
ri
n
g

 s
w

a
p

s
 -

 p
a

rk
s
 e

tc
. 

 
c
lo

s
e

r 
w

o
rk

in
g

 w
it
h

 c
it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 a

n
d

 C
C

M
. 

 
A

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
fo

c
u

s
 o

n
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
e

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 

b
y
 P

C
S

O
s
, 

d
ir

e
c
te

d
 b

y
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
a

s
k
in

g
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
. 

In
 a

d
it
io

n
 t

h
e

 r
e

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 o

f 
c
le

a
n

s
in

g
 a

n
d

 e
n

fo
rc

m
e

n
t 

in
to

 o
n

e
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 w

ill
 f
a

c
ili

ta
te

 b
e

tt
e

r 
u

s
e

 o
f 

lo
c
a

l 
in

te
lli

g
e

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 a
 

ra
n

g
e

 o
f 

s
o

lu
ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 c

o
v
e

r 
p

re
v
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

 a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 r

e
m

e
d

ia
l 
w

o
rk

. 

D
a

ta
 D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 

·
s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 r

e
s
id

e
n

t 
p
e

rc
e

p
ti
o

n
 d

a
ta

 w
ill

 n
o

w
 b

e
 

c
o

lla
te

d
 a

t 
a
 l
o

c
a

lit
y
 l
e

v
e

l,
 t

h
is

 w
ill

 a
llo

w
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 t

o
 b

e
 m

o
re

 
‘in

te
lli

g
e

n
t’
 a

n
d

 l
o

c
a

lly
 f

o
c
u

s
s
e

d
. 

 

R
is

k
s

 a
n

d
 C

h
a

ll
e

n
g

e
s

b
u

d
g

e
t 

c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
s
 f

a
c
e
 a

ll 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 s
tr

e
e

t 
c
le

a
n

s
in

g
 i
s
 n

o
 e

x
c
e

p
ti
o

n
. 

T
h

e
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 e
ff

ic
e

n
c
y
/m

a
k
e

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
s
 m

a
y
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

. 

S
a

ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

th
e

 S
L

A
s
 a

g
re

e
d

 w
it
h

 A
re

a
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
s
 i
s
 v

it
a

l.
 

J
o

in
t 

w
o

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 g
re

a
te

r 
fl
e

x
ib

ili
ty

 n
e

e
d

s
 t

o
 b

e
 d

o
n

e
 i
n

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 t

h
e

 w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 a
n

d
 s

ta
ff

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 e
n

g
a

g
e

d
 a

n
d

 u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

 a
n

y
 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t

h
a
t 

m
a

y
 o

c
c
u

r 
to

 t
ra

d
it
io

n
a

l 
w

o
rk

in
g

 p
a

tt
e

rn
s
/a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e

n
ts

. 

Page 30



M
e

e
ti

n
g

: 
S

a
fe

r 
a
n
d
 S

tr
o
n
g
e
r 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 B

o
a
rd

  
  

 
P

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
:

A
ll 

p
e
o
p
le

 i
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

:
P

e
o
p
le

 c
a
n
 g

e
t 

o
n
 w

e
ll 

to
g
e
th

e
r 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
:

In
c
re

a
s
e
 a

 s
e
n
s
e
 o

f 
b
e
lo

n
g
in

g
 t

h
a
t 

b
u
ild

s
 c

o
h
e
s
iv

e
 a

n
d
 

h
a
rm

o
n
io

u
s
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
.

H
e

a
d

li
n

e
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
- 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 b
e

li
e

v
e

 

p
e

o
p

le
 f

ro
m

 d
if

fe
re

n
t 

b
a
c
k

g
ro

u
n

d
s

 g
e

t 
o

n
 w

e
ll
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

in
 

lo
c
a
l 
a
re

a

6
0
%

6
2
%

6
4
%

6
6
%

6
8
%

7
0
%

7
2
%

7
4
%

7
6
%

7
8
%

8
0
%

2
0
0
7

2
0
0
9

y
e

a
r

% of people

W
h

y
 a

n
d

 w
h

e
re

 i
s

 t
h

is
 a

 p
ri

o
ri

ty

Lee
ds 

has
 on

e o
f th

e m
ost

 div
ers

e a
nd 

cha
ngi

ng 
cult

ura
l po

pul
atio

ns 
in t

he 
UK

, it 
also

 ho
use

s so
me

 of 
the

 mo
st a

fflu
ent

 po
pul

atio
ns 

as 
wel

l as
 the

 mo
st d

epr
ived

 in 
the

 co
unt

ry, 
and

 the
se 

com
mu

nitie
s a

re o
ften

 in 
clos

e p
rox

imit
y. T

he 
cur

ren
t ec

ono
mic

 pre
ssu

res
 an

d 
oth

er f
act

ors
 pre

sen
t bo

th o
ppo

rtun
ities

 an
d c

hal
len

ges
 for

 the
 city

, in
clud

ing
 the

 ne
ed 

to e
nsu

re t
hat

 we
 ma

inta
in a

nd 
stre

ngt
hen

 ou
r 

goo
d c

om
mu

nity
 rel

atio
ns 

and
 bu

ild l
inks

 an
d re

latio
nsh

ips 
bet

wee
n o

ur d
iver

se 
com

mu
nitie

s a
nd 

nei
ghb

our
hoo

ds.
 

O
v
e
ra

ll
 P

ro
g

re
s
s
:

A
M

B
E

R

S
to

ry
 b

e
h

in
d

 t
h

e
 b

a
s

e
li

n
e

  
 

Lee
ds 

has
 on

e o
f th

e m
ost

 div
ers

e a
nd 

cha
ngi

ng 
cult

ura
l po

pul
atio

ns 
in t

he 
UK

. Th
e 

ma
jori

ty o
f ou

r bl
ack

 an
d m

ino
rity

 eth
nic 

and
 ne

wly
 arr

ived
 co

mm
uni

ties
 are

 ho
wev

er 
con

cen
trat

ed 
in t

he 
inn

er c
ity 

and
 les

s a
fflu

ent
 are

as.
 Th

is h
as 

cre
ate

d s
om

e te
nsio

n in
 

com
mu

nitie
s w

her
e th

e im
pac

t of
 ne

w a
rriv

als 
or c

han
gin

g d
em

ogr
aph

ics 
has

 be
en 

felt
 

mo
re k

een
ly. 

Wh
ilst 

the
 ov

era
ll p

ictu
re i

s th
at L

eed
s c

om
mu

nitie
s a

re g
ene

rall
y re

silie
nt 

and
 tol

era
nt, 

the
 sig

nific
anc

e o
f in

terc
ultu

ral 
ten

sion
s in

 so
me

 of 
our

 co
mm

uni
ties

 mu
st 

not
 be

 un
der

est
ima

ted
. T

he 
pict

ure
 na

tion
ally

 is
 th

at 
ten

sion
s b

etw
een

 di
ffer

ent
 

com
mu

nitie
s o

f id
ent

ity 
are

 inc
rea

sing
, an

d L
eed

s is
 co

nsc
iou

s o
f st

ayin
g a

hea
d o

f th
at 

tren
d.

Eve
ry c

om
mu

nity
 in 

Lee
ds 

has
 its

 str
eng

ths
. H

owe
ver

, th
ere

 are
 co

mm
uni

ties
 in 

Lee
ds 

whe
re m

ultip
le c

onc
ern

s o
ccu

r in
 the

 sa
me

 loc
atio

n in
clud

ing
 po

ver
ty, 

une
mp

loym
ent

, 
trua

ncy
 an

d s
ubs

tan
ce 

mis
use

. W
her

e th
ese

 co
nce

rns
 an

d o
the

rs a
ll ex

ist i
n o

nce
 pla

ce 
it c

om
pou

nds
 the

 eff
ect

s o
f cr

ime
 an

d a
nti-

soc
ial 

beh
avio

ur, 
red

uce
s re

spe
ct f

or 
the

 
env

iron
me

nt a
nd 

limi
ts t

he 
pot

ent
ial 

ben
efit

s o
f co

mm
uni

ty i
nvo

lvem
ent

 an
d c

om
mu

nity
 

act
ion

.
In 

ord
er 

to 
hel

p t
hes

e c
om

mu
nitie

s w
ith 

mu
ltipl

e c
onc

ern
s, 

our
 fo

cus
 is 

on 
ear

ly 
ide

ntif
icat

ion
, in

terv
ent

ion
s a

nd 
sup

por
t fo

r in
divi

dua
ls a

nd 
fam

ilies
 to 

red
uce

 su
ch 

risk
s, 

thre
ats

 an
d h

arm
s. T

he 
par

tne
rsh

ip f
ocu

s fo
r th

is w
ork

, is
 ab

out
 un

der
sta

ndi
ng 

wha
t in

terv
ent

ion
s a

nd 
sup

por
t ca

n b
e in

 pla
ce 

to m
ake

 a d
iffe

ren
ce 

at c
om

mu
nity

 lev
el: 

und
ers

tan
din

g th
e c

ond
ition

s re
qui

red
 to 

ens
ure

 int
erv

ent
ion

s a
re m

ost
 su

cce
ssfu

l. 
New

ly e
me

rgin
g o

r ch
ang

ing
 co

mm
uni

ties
 ar

e e
spe

cial
ly v

uln
era

ble
 to 

a r
ang

e o
f th

rea
ts, 

sign
ifica

nt a
nd 

reg
ula

r ch
ang

es 
in p

opu
latio

n, e
spe

cial
ly w

ith 
sho

rt-te
rm 

res
ide

ncy
, in

hib
its t

he 
form

atio
n o

f st
ron

g, s
upp

orti
ve 

and
 int

egr
ate

d c
om

mu
nitie

s –
 an

d w
e a

re w
ork

ing
 to 

loo
k a

t wh
at s

upp
ort 

nee
ds 

to b
e in

 pla
ce 

to b
uild

 res
ilien

ce 
in 

the
se 

nei
ghb

our
hoo

ds,
 an

d w
ith 

cer
tain

 co
mm

uni
ties

 of 
ide

ntit
y. 

Ove
rall

 pro
gre

ss i
s a

s p
lan

ned
 in 

the
 las

t 3 
mo

nth
s, a

nd 
the

re i
s co

nfid
enc

e th
at w

e k
now

 wh
ere

 ac
tivit

y n
eed

s to
 be

 tar
get

ed 
to s

tren
gth

en 
com

mu
nitie

s. P
rog

res
s is

 
not

ed 
as 

Am
ber

 ho
wev

er, 
to r

efle
ct t

he 
unc

erta
inty

 of 
the

 fun
din

g a
nd 

cap
acit

y to
 ac

hie
ve 

con
tinu

ed 
pro

gre
ss.

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

 3
 

C
O

M
4

C
IT

Y
 P

R
IO

R
IT

Y
 P

L
A

N
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 R
E

P
O

R
T

Page 31



W
h

a
t 

d
o

 k
e

y
 s

ta
k

e
h

o
ld

e
rs

 t
h

in
k

  
  

 

In t
he 

200
9 R

esid
ent

s S
urv

ey 
mo

re t
hat

 thr
ee 

qua
rter

s  (
78%

) of
 res

pon
den

ts a
gre

ed 
tha

t: “p
eop

le f
rom

 dif
fere

nt b
ack

gro
und

 ge
t on

 we
ll to

get
her

 in 
[the

ir] a
rea

”, a
n 

incr
eas

e fr
om

 the
 lev

el r
eco

rde
d in

 the
 sa

me
 su

rve
y in

 20
07 

of 6
7%

. Th
e C

itize
n’s 

Pan
el w

ill re
pla

ce 
the

 Re
side

nts
 Su

rve
y fr

om
 Q4

.
W

h
a

t 
w

e
 d

id
 

The
Saf

er 
and

 St
ron

ger
 Co

mm
uni

ties
 Bo

ard
 ha

s b
een

 es
tab

lish
ed,

 
alo

ng 
with

 th
ree

 su
b b

oar
ds,

 sp
ecif

ical
ly 

the
 St

ron
ger

 C
om

mu
niti

es 
par

tne
rsh

ip w
ill t

ake
 the

 sp
ecia

list 
lea

d o
n b

uild
ing

 co
mm

uni
ty r

ela
tion

s 
and

 st
ren

gth
eni

ng 
sup

por
t fo

r c
om

mu
nitie

s. 
The

 St
ron

ger
 Co

mm
uni

ties
 

Par
tne

rsh
ip 

will
 fo

cus
 on

 4 
key

 ar
eas

: e
ffec

tive
 lo

cal 
wor

king
 w

ith 
com

mu
nitie

s, i
mp

rov
ed 

cen
tral

 su
ppo

rt, w
ork

ing
 wi

th t
he 

thir
d s

ect
or, 

and
 

imp
rov

ing
 rel

atio
ns 

with
 de

sign
ate

d c
om

mu
nitie

s o
f id

ent
ity. 

Saf
egu

ard
ing

 o
ur 

Co
mm

uni
ties

: t
he 

Com
mu

nity
 In

telli
gen

ce 
and

 
Com

mu
nity

 Te
nsio

ns 
mo

nito
ring

 ar
ran

gem
ent

s h
ave

 be
en 

rev
ised

 sin
ce 

sum
me

r 20
11 

and
 ha

ve 
bee

n s
ign

ifica
ntly

 de
velo

ped
 to 

incl
ude

 iss
ues

 like
 

hat
e 

crim
e, 

gan
g 

viol
enc

e 
and

 in
ter-

com
mu

nity
 te

nsio
n. 

A 
mo

nth
ly 

inte
llige

nce
 rep

ort 
is s

har
ed 

con
fide

ntia
lly w

ith 
key

 pa
rtne

rs. 
Mig

rati
on 

Par
tne

rsh
ip: 

the
 pa

rtne
rsh

ip i
s c

urre
ntly

 ex
plo

ring
 op

tion
s o

f 
how

 be
st t

o c
ope

 wit
h th

e c
uts

 to 
the

 se
cto

r, a
nd 

is w
ork

ing
 wit

h s
tatu

tory
 

par
tne

rs t
o m

ana
ge 

the
 like

ly im
pac

t of
 ch

ang
es 

to t
he 

asy
lum

 sy
ste

m, 
as 

wel
l as

 su
ppo

rt w
ork

 to 
pre

ven
t ha

te c
rim

e in
 ne

wly
 arr

ived
 co

mm
uni

ties
. 

Lee
ds 

Inv
olv

em
ent

 Str
ate

gy:
 is a

 thr
ee 

pro
nge

d s
trat

egy
 aim

ing
 to 

brin
g 

tog
eth

er t
he 

diff
ere

nt w
ork

 be
ing

 do
ne 

in t
he 

city
 on

 pro
mo

ting
 ph

ilan
thro

py,
 

volu
nte

erin
g a

nd 
par

ticip
atio

n.
W

h
a

t 
w

o
rk

e
d

 l
o

c
a

ll
y
 /

C
a

s
e

 s
tu

d
y
 o

f 
im

p
a

c
t 

The
 th

ird 
coh

ort 
of 

Mig
ran

t C
om

mu
nity

 O
rga

nise
rs(M

CO
s) 

wer
e t

rain
ed 

dur
ing

 Q
3. 

The
 M

CO
s 

are
 ta

rge
ted

 v
olu

nte
ers

 fr
om

 n
ewl

y 
arri

ved
 

com
mu

nitie
s, 

trai
ned

 in
 ba

sic 
but

 ac
cur

ate
 m

ess
age

s o
n s

ucc
ess

fully
 

nav
iga

ting
 life

 in 
Lee

ds.
 Th

e v
olu

nte
ers

 are
 the

n s
upp

orte
d to

 dis
sem

ina
te 

this
 inf

orm
atio

n to
 the

ir c
om

mu
nitie

s a
nd 

bey
ond

. Th
is w

ork
 wa

s o
rigi

nal
ly 

com
mis

sion
ed 

from
 a

n 
ext

ern
al 

fun
din

g 
sou

rce
, b

ut 
cro

ss 
Cou

ncil
 

dep
artm

ent
s, N

HS
 an

d o
the

r pa
rtne

rs h
ave

 ag
ree

d to
 ma

inta
in t

his 
pro

ject
 . 

N
e
w

 A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

Str
ong

er C
om

mu
niti

es:
 the

 pa
rtne

rsh
ip is

 co
nsid

erin
g u

sing
 the

 
inte

rcu
ltur

al c
ities

 fra
me

wor
k to

 de
velo

p a
 ho

listi
c fr

am
ewo

rk t
o s

upp
orti

ng 
Lee

ds 
am

bitio
n to

 be
 “w

elco
min

g o
pen

 an
d fa

ir”. 
BM

E S
trat

egi
c P

artn
ers

hip
: th

e S
tron

ger
 Co

mm
uni

ties
 pa

rtne
rsh

ip h
as 

ask
ed 

for 
a re

view
 of 

how
 BM

E c
om

mu
nitie

s vi
ews

 an
d n

eed
s a

re i
nclu

ded
 

in t
he 

stra
teg

ic p
artn

ers
hip

s fo
r th

e c
ity.

Cit
ize

n’s
 Pa

nel
: In

itial
 res

pon
se 

from
 the

 pu
blic

 to 
the

 op
por

tun
ity t

o jo
in 

the
 ne

w C
itize

ns’ 
Pan

el h
as 

bee
n p

osit
ive,

 wit
h 2

000
 pe

opl
e a

lrea
dy 

com
mit

ted
 to 

tak
ing

 pa
rt. T

he 
Pan

el is
 be

ing
 rec

ruit
ed 

to b
roa

dly 
ma

tch
 the

 
pop

ula
tion

 pro
file 

of t
he 

are
a a

nd 
will

 be
 us

ed 
in f

utu
re f

or a
 ran

ge 
of 

con
sult

atio
ns 

on 
ser

vice
s, p

lace
s a

nd 
com

mu
nitie

s.
Saf

egu
ard

ing
 ou

r C
om

mu
niti

es:
 wo

rk h
as 

beg
un 

to d
eve

lop
 co

mm
uni

ty 
ma

ppi
ng 

whi
ch 

will
 su

ppo
rt in

 un
der

sta
ndi

ng 
and

 ide
ntif

ying
 int

er-
com

mu
nity

 ten
sion

s.

Dat
a D

eve
lop

me
nt 

The
 Str

ong
er C

om
mu

nitie
s p

artn
ers

hip
 ha

s a
ssig

ned
 a s

ub 
gro

up 
to 

dev
elo

p 4
 su

bst
ant

ive 
pro

xy m
eas

ure
s, t

o h
elp

 un
der

sta
nd 

the
 ov

era
ll he

adl
ine

 
ind

icat
or –

 wh
ich 

is a
 mo

re l
ong

 ter
m m

eas
ure

, an
d w

ill n
ot b

e in
dica

tive
 of 

sho
rt te

rm 
pro

gre
ss. 

The
 Str

ong
er C

om
mu

nitie
s p

artn
ers

hip
 wil

l wo
rk w

ith 
the

 Cit
izen

’s p
ane

l to
 

det
erm

ine
 a r

elia
ble

 me
asu

re f
or c

om
mu

nitie
s st

ren
gth

, as
 we

ll as
 the

ir 
per

cep
tion

 of 
invo

lvem
ent

 in 
the

 life
 of 

the
 city

.

R
is

k
s

 a
n

d
 C

h
a

ll
e

n
g

e
s

All 
par

tne
rs e

nga
ged

 in 
the

 str
ong

er c
om

mu
nitie

s p
artn

ers
hip

 are
 ex

per
ien

cing
 mo

der
ate

 to 
sev

ere
 fun

din
g c

hal
len

ges
, wh

ich 
is a

ffec
ting

 the
ir c

apa
city

 to 
del

iver
 on

 
the

 ob
ject

ives
. Th

e m
ost

 sig
nific

ant
 thr

eat
s to

 org
ani

sat
ion

al e
nga

gem
ent

 are
 cu

rren
tly b

ein
g e

xpe
rien

ced
 by

 the
 mi

nor
ity e

thn
ic th

ird 
sec

tor 
org

ani
sat

ion
s. 

A n
atio

nal
 inc

rea
se 

in in
cide

nts
 of 

hat
e c

rim
e a

nd 
inte

r co
mm

uni
ty t

ens
ion

 is n
ote

d a
s a

 ris
k fo

r Le
eds

. 

Page 32



2011/12 Environment & Neighbourhoods Directorate Scorecard Reporting Period :

Directorate Priorities Progress Summary
Overall 

Progress
Supporting Measures Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Deliver the Safer and Stronger Board City Priority 

Plan, with a focus on reducing burglary levels, 

increasing confidence in relation to Anti Social 

Behaviour and improving cleanliness

Inaugural meeting of the Board took place 28 September - TORs agreed and work programme in development. Next 

meeting scheduled for 27 January with main agenda item "Restorative Approaches"
Amber N/A N/A N/A N/A

Create the environment for effective partnership 

working
Robust governance arrangements and a schedule of meetings are in place for the Board. Green N/A N/A N/A N/A

Improve Recycling rates

Full quarter figures are not available until a month after the quarter end. Current RAG of Amber reflects the potential 

risk of not achieving the Target of 41.32% following the slight dip in performance from Q2. The dip can be explained by 

seasonal variation whereby the collection of garden waste is suspended and street arisings are predominantly leaf-fall 

rather than sweepings.

Amber Increase percentage waste recycled 41.19%

PROV

39.69%

(YTD 

40.46%)

YTD 39.75%

to end Nov 

Improve refuse service reliability

The result represents the average number of missed bins per 100,000 from the start of the year (April). Q3 includes the 

Christmas period (which always brings challenges as collection days are changed) and the day of industrial action 

which led to 200+ customer contacts that have been included within the result. Implementation of Route Optimisation 

has brought changes to usual collection days/times and some routes will need further changes. Residual bins (black) 

collections alone were well within the target of 50 misses per 100,000 collections in both October and November. Green 

and Brown bin collections have proved to be more problematic and the reasons for this are being considered. 

Amber Reduce number of missed bins per 100,000 collected NA 98 95

Ensure that local neighbourhoods are clean

Site Surveys (as per indicator NI195) were undertaken during November/December. Although data from two wards is 

still awaited, indicative results suggest a general improvement in the level of cleanliness across all areas of the city 

when compared to the 10/11 results (City-wide 10/11 result 9.1%). Perception of service to be considered through the 

Citizen Panel.

Amber
Reduce percentage of streets with unacceptable levels of litter 

(ANNUAL)
NA NA 7.6% PROV

Reduction in Burglary levels
Joint efforts of partners on burglary reduction and improved coordination of effort throughout the year is now delivering 

results. December performance was the best in the last 10 years and we continue to 'turn the curve'. 
Green Reduce number of burglaries 4255

1790

(6045)

Quarter 3 2011/12

Self Assessment

No performance related issuesP
age 33



P
age 34

T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Report of Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 

Report to Scrutiny Board (Safer and Stronger Communities) 

Date: 12th March 2012 

Subject: Financial Health Monitoring 2011/12 – Environment and Neighbourhoods 
Directorate 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

 
 

Summary of main issues  
 

1. At the request of the Scrutiny Board, the purpose of this report is to inform Members of 
the financial health of the Environment and Neighbourhoods Directorate after ten 
months of the financial year 2011/12.  

 

2. The attached information has been provided by the Directorate’s Head of Finance for 
the Board’s consideration. 

 

3. The Directorate’s Head of Finance has been invited to today’s meeting to present the 
attached information and address any further questions from the Board.  

 

Recommendations 
 

4. Members are asked to note the projected financial position of the Environment and 
Neighbourhoods Directorate after ten months of the financial year 2011/12. 

 

Background documents1  

5. Report of the Director of Resources to Executive Board 7th March 2012.  Financial 
Health Monitoring 2011/12 – Month 10. 

                                            
1
 The background documents listed in this section are available for inspection on request for a period of four 
years following the date of the relevant meeting.  Accordingly this list does not include documents containing 
exempt or confidential information, or any published works.  Requests to inspect any background documents 
should be submitted to the report author. 

 Report author:  Angela Brogden 

Tel:  24 74553 

Agenda Item 9

Page 35



Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank



ENVIRONMENT AND NEIGHBOURHOODS: 2011/12 BUDGET 
 

1.0 Introduction 
 

This report sets out the financial position for Environment and 
Neighbourhoods at Period 10.   

 
2.0 Overall Summary 
 

The projected position for Environment and Neighbourhoods Directorate is an 
overspend of £1.529m, which is £0.02m higher than the previous position 
reported to Executive Board. 
 

3.0 Explanation of the Projected Overspend  
 
Staffing +£2,257 
 
The cost of staff in managing workforce change following the implementation 
of restructures is £774k and slippage in the implementation of a number of 
restructures within the Directorate will result in a net variation of £352k.  
 
Within Refuse Collection, ongoing route support and attendance being slightly 
above the budgeted target is projected to cost £600k. Additional cost incurred 
for front line cover required for refuse staff training/appraisals £109k and 
additional costs of Refuse Christmas catch up £76k. However this is partially 
offset by using existing spare capacity on the new Garden routes to collect 
SORT from Hard to Access properties (£168k). 

 
The cost of covering Time off in Lieu relating to bank holidays is likely to be 
around £100k above the budget. 
 
A restructure of Household Waste Sites (HWSS) staffing is expected to cost 
around £100k in year, but this will be funded by targeted improvements in 
recycling rates at these sites.  
 
The use of Agency and Overtime covering front line vacant posts throughout 
Environmental Services is an additional £20k. Most of these front line 
vacancies are now filled. In addition, the budget assumes savings from the 
Early Leaver Initiative which are not going to be realized during this year 
(£365k), which is partially offset by vacant posts within Neighbourhood 
Services are projected at (£75k). 
 
 
Premises & Supplies and Services  (£709k) 

  
Significant savings of over £1m which were budgeted for in waste disposal 
from new contracts continue to be on target to be delivered. In addition, 
further savings are being achieved from projected reductions in total waste 
arising, targeted recycling improvements at HWSS and the effect of not all 
waste contractors taking up the inflationary uplift. Together this is a total 
projected saving of (£214k).  

Page 37



 
The Home Energy Conservation Authority (HECA) survey has been delayed 
resulting in a saving of (£60k). Further, a saving of (£70k) is expected from 
the financing costs of bin purchases from a delay to rolling our brown bins. 
 
Projections assume a spending freeze across the Directorate in these budget 
heads to contribute a net (£50k) after helping offset various minor 
overspends. 
 
The construction skills contract with the College of Building (CoB) ceased in 
December 2011. Review of all of the payments made and those still pending, 
will generate a saving of £315k due to the outputs delivered being lower than 
forecast.   

  
 
 Transport  £253k    
  

Rising fuel prices are estimated to cost £182k across Environmental Services.  
 
The cost of back up route support vehicles is £237k, although more effective 
use of normal spare vehicle cover and lower external hire and will save 
(£164k) across the Environmental Services Division. 
 

 
 Transfer Payments (£948k) 

 
A delegated decision report  has been approved by the Director of 
Environment and Neighbourhoods to implement the change in funding from 
Housing Benefit rather than Supporting People for support charges in 
Sheltered Housing. This commenced on the 7th November 2011 and will result 
in a variation in Supporting People payments of £948k. 
 

 Income + £722k   
 

Car Parking income is currently projected to be £679k short of the budget 
overall. This variation can be explained by a combination of further reductions 
in PCN numbers £181k and on and off street fee income £398k. A delay in the 
identification of appropriate spaces to convert from short stay to long stay  
results in a further variation of £100k. However, the projection assumes £133k 
in additional income for bus lane enforcement. 
 
Income in Waste Management is anticipated to be £203k below budget as a 
result of a variation in the price received for recycled glass, lower gas 
generation at Gamblethorpe landfill site. 
 
Variations in charges to capital schemes are offset primarily by additional 
income receivable from the Future Jobs Fund (net saving of £27k). 

 

Page 38



Housing Revenue Account (HRA)  
 

Summary  
 

At the end of Period 10 the HRA is projecting a surplus of £1,167k. This is a movement of 
£142k from the position reported at Period 9. Key variances are shown below: 
 

 £000 
Increase in projected income from dwelling rents, shops and  service 
charges due to void levels continuing to fall and increased income from 
shared equity properties 

 
 

(313) 
Reduction in the contribution required from Aire Valley Homes (AVH) to 
the Swarcliffe PFI project 

 
268 

Additional savings on staffing, training and transport costs (88) 
Additional legal fees in relation to the Mears case 200 
An increase in costs relating to furnished accommodation 95 
Agreed reduction in the grant paid to Leeds Tenants Federation (24) 

 
 

Key variances from 2011/12 budget - Income 
 

£2.5m of additional rental income is projected from dwellings and miscellaneous properties. 
The additional income is as a result of void levels being 1.1% lower than budgeted, planned 
demolitions starting later in the year than anticipated and an increase in income from shared 
equity properties. Most of this additional income will be paid over to the ALMOs as additional 
void incentive payments. 
 
Additional income of £246k is projected from shops. 
 
Income from Heat Lease charges is projected to be £39k lower than budgeted due to less 
take up than anticipated. In addition £100k budgeted income from the Solar Panel Scheme 
will not be received due to the scheme being on hold. This reduction in income is offset by 
projected increased telecoms income (£238k) as a result of new lease agreements. 
 
Housing Subsidy is showing a movement of £16,449k from the 2011/12 budget. This is in 
line with Period 9. The movement from budget is mainly due to interest rates being lower 
than budgeted and no subsidy being receivable this year for the Little London Beeston Hill & 
Holbeck (LLBH&H) PFI project, which is now anticipated to start in April 2012. This reduction 
in subsidy is offset by a corresponding reduction in capital charges to the HRA and the 
requirement to establish a Sinking Fund for the PFI project now deferred until 2012/13. 
 

Key Variances from 2011/12 budget - Expenditure  
 
There are projected net savings of £193k on salaries and wages. This is an increase of £73k 
from Period 9. The savings against budget are due to additional officers leaving the Council 
under the ELI scheme and savings on the training budget. 
 
The supplies and services budget is projected to underspend by £3,086k .The key 
movements from the 2011/12 budget are savings due to the delay in the LLBH&H PFI 
project (£3,158k), slippage in the implementation of updates to the Keystone system 
(£225k), an agreed reduction in the grant paid to Leeds Tenants Federation (£51k), savings 
on office consumables (£27k) pest control (£20k). These savings are offset by unbudgeted 
expenditure for noise nuisance (£62k), an increase in costs relating to furnished 
accommodation (£95k) and costs relating to Procurement 2011 (£45k). Variations of £200k 

Page 39



in relation to Swarcliffe access refusals pass through costs and environmental works will be 
funded from reserves. 
 
Recharges are projected to overspend by £1,173k. This is due to the following key 
variances: 
 

Ø  The full year effect of a post to manage Swarcliffe environmental works (£24k). This 
will be funded from earmarked reserves. 

Ø  An increased recharge from the General Fund for the Sheltered Warden Service 
(£167k). 

Ø  An increased recharge of £450k from the General Fund for the Family Intervention 
Programme, Victim Support scheme and other appropriate costs. 

Ø  The funding of Project Management support for the ABCL Change in the Work Place 
Programme (£47k). 

Ø  A projected increase in legal charges (£350k) in relation to the Mears case. 
Ø  An increase in the recharge from Customer Services of £35k. 
Ø  A £40k recharge from Commercial Asset Management for works in relation to 

miscellaneous properties. 
Ø  An increase in paralegal court costs (£40k) which will be recovered from tenants. 
Ø  An increase in the recharge from PPPU (£22k). 

 

An analysis of disrepair cases as at the end of Period 10 has projected a saving against 
budget of £82k in the provision required for disrepair.  
 

Capital charges are projected to reduce by £4,770k as a result of the reduction in interest 
rates. This saving is offset by a corresponding reduction in Housing Subsidy received. 
 

2.4 Reserves  
 

The HRA General Reserve is projected to be £5.7m as at the end of 2011/12. In addition, as 
agreed by Executive Board in March 2011, a £3m reserve has been created to support the 
move from the current housing subsidy system to the new HRA self financing regime which 
will be effective from April 2012.  
 

Page 40



GENERAL FUND (REVENUE)

Environmental Services - Period 10 Projected Outturn

£000 £000 £000

Division Spend + - Sum

Car Parking Staffing (249)

other 22 0

Income 491

513 (249) 264

Waste Management Staffing (19)

Disposal Costs (161)

Recycling Income 140

Gamblethorpe Income 63

Other (54)

149 (180) (31)

Waste Operations Staffing 145

Fuel 14

Other (85)

74 0 74

Refuse Staffing - Back Up 499

Staffing - Other 707 (169)

Staffing - MWC 98

Staffing - PRP (103)

Staffing - Xmas catchup 76

TOIL /Strike 100 (35)

Fuel 92

Transport - Back Up 237

Hire / SLA / Roll Outs (164)

Bin Financing (70)

Other 56 (36)

1,865 (577) 1,288

Locality / Env Health Staffing - Cover (62) (66)

MWC 103

OOH OT 0

Fuel 66

Transport 0 (22)

FPN Income 24

Pest Control (21)

Supplies (137)

Other 69 31

200 (215) (15)

Line By Lines To be determined (125) (125)

TOTAL 2,801 (1,346) 1,455

Neighbourhood Services - Period 10 Projected Outturn

£000 £000 £000

Division Spend + - Sum

Community Safety Staffing 179

Income 122

Other (55)

301 (55) 246

Statutory Housing Staffing 62

Page 41



Income (19)

Other (17)

62 (36) 26

Regeneration 

Programmes
Staffing (57)

Income 350

Supplies 117

Other (37)

467 (94) 373

Employment & Skills Staffing 164

Income (132)

Supplies 60 (361)

Other (16)

224 (509) (285)

Resources, Strategy & 

Commissioning Staffing 459

Income (174)

Supplies (847)

Community Centres 2

Other (90)

Cross cutting 365

824 (1,109) (285)

Neighbourhood Services Total 1,878      (1,803) 75

ENVIRONMENT & NEIGHBOURHOODS TOTAL 4,679      (3,149) 1,530

Page 42



Page 43



Page 44

This page is intentionally left blank



Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 

Report to Scrutiny Board (Safer and Stronger Communities) 

Date: 12th March 2012 

Subject: Recommendation Tracking 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

Summary of main issues  

 
1. This report sets out the progress made in responding to the recommendations arising 

from the previous Scrutiny review of the Phase 2 Dog Control Orders.   
 
2. The Scrutiny recommendation tracking system allows the Scrutiny Board to monitor 

progress and identify completed recommendations; those progressing to plan; and those 
where there is either an obstacle or progress is not adequate. The Board will then be able 
to take further action as appropriate. 

 
Recommendations 
 
3. Members are asked to: 
 

• Agree those recommendations which no longer require monitoring; 

• Identify any recommendations where progress is unsatisfactory and determine the 
action the Board wishes to take as a result. 

 Report author:  A Brogden 

Tel:  24 74553 

Agenda Item 10

Page 45



1  Purpose of this report 
 
1.1  This report sets out the progress made in responding to the recommendations arising 

from the previous Scrutiny review of the Phase 2 Dog Control Orders. 
 
2  Background information 
 
2.1 It was agreed in June 2011 that the Safer and Stronger Communities Scrutiny Board 

should play an active part in analysing the proposed options arising from the Phase 2 
Dog Control Orders project before approval is sought from the Executive Board in 
December 2011 to implement further Dog Control Orders.    

 
2.2 At its meeting in November 2011, the Scrutiny Board agreed a report summarising its 

observations, conclusions and recommendations in relation to the proposals arising 
from the Phase 2 Dog Control Orders project.   The Scrutiny Board’s report was 
appended to the report to Executive Board in December 2011. 

 
2.3 The Scrutiny recommendation tracking system allows the Board to monitor progress 

and identify completed recommendations; those progressing to plan; and those where 
there is either an obstacle or progress is not adequate. The Board will then be able to 
take further action as appropriate. 

 
3  Main issues 

3.1 A standard set of criteria has been produced to enable the Board to assess progress. 
These are presented in the form of a flow chart at Appendix 1.  The questions in the 
flow chart should help to decide whether a recommendation has been completed, and 
if not whether further action is required. 

 
3.2  To assist Members with this task the Principal Scrutiny Adviser, in liaison with the 

 Chair, has given a draft status for each recommendation. The Board is asked to 
 confirm whether these assessments are appropriate and to change them where they 
 are not.  Details of progress against each recommendation is set out within the table 
 at Appendix 2. 

 
4  Corporate Considerations 

4.1  Consultation and Engagement  

4.1.1 Where internal or external consultation processes have been undertaken with regard 
to responding to the Scrutiny Board’s recommendations, details of any such 
consultation will be referenced against the relevant recommendation within the table 
at Appendix 2.   

4.1.2 The Executive Board Member for Environmental Services has been consulted on the 
response to the recommendations.  In relation to recommendation 9, the Executive 
Board Member is supportive of the conclusion reached by the Project Board, as set 
out in Appendix 3. 

4.2  Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration 

4.2.1 Where consideration has been given to the impact on equality areas, as defined in the 
Council’s Equality and Diversity Scheme, this will be referenced against the relevant 
recommendation within the table at Appendix 2. 

 

Page 46



4.3  Council Policies and City Priorities 

4.3.1 This section is not relevant to this report. 

4.4  Resources and Value for Money  

4.4.1 Details of any significant resource and financial implications linked to the Scrutiny 
recommendations will be referenced against the relevant recommendation within the 
table at Appendix 2.  

4.5  Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In 

4.5.1 This report does not contain any exempt or confidential information. 

4.6  Risk Management 

4.6.1 This section is not relevant to this report. 

5  Conclusions 

5.1 The Scrutiny recommendation tracking system allows the Board to monitor progress 
and identify completed recommendations.  Progress in responding to those 
recommendations arising from the Scrutiny review of the Phase 2 Dog Control Orders 
is detailed within the table at Appendix 2 for Members’ consideration.  

6  Recommendations 

6.1 Members are asked to: 

• Agree those recommendations which no longer require monitoring; 

• Identify any recommendations where progress is unsatisfactory and determine the 
action the Board wishes to take as a result. 

 
7  Background documents1  

7.1  Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development to the Safer and Stronger 
 Communities Scrutiny Board ‘Dog Control Orders – Phase 2 Project – Scrutiny 
 Comments’.  14th November 2011. 

7.2  Report of the Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods to Executive Board. ‘Dog 
 Control Orders – Phase 2’.  14th December 2011.   

 

                                            
1
 The background documents listed in this section are available for inspection on request for a period of four 
years following the date of the relevant meeting.  Accordingly this list does not include documents containing 
exempt or confidential information, or any published works.  Requests to inspect any background documents 
should be submitted to the report author. 

Page 47



Appendix 1 

Recommendation tracking flowchart and classifications:   

Questions to be Considered by Scrutiny Boards   

            

 Is this recommendation still relevant?        

              

 No  Yes         

              

 

1 - Stop monitoring 

 

Has the recommendation been 
achieved? 

    

 

               

   Yes     No      

               

   

     Has the set 
timescale passed? 

   

 

               

                  

         Yes   No   

                

                

   

    Is there an obstacle?   6 - Not for review this 
session 

 

               

               

   
2 - Achieved   

       

             

                

              

   Yes       No    

              

   

3 - not 
achieved 
(obstacle). 
Scrutiny 
Board to 
determine 
appropriate 
action. 

 

 

Is progress 
acceptable? 

   

             

   
     

  
  

    

              

     Yes     No   

              

   

  4 - Not achieved 
(Progress made 
acceptable. Continue 
monitoring.) 

  5 - Not achieved (progress 
made not acceptable. 
Scrutiny Board to 
determine appropriate 
action and continue 
monitoring) 

 

            

Page 48



 

 

                 Appendix 2 
Review of the Phase 2 Dog Control Orders (November 2011) 
 
Categories 
 
1 - Stop monitoring 
2 - Achieved 
3 -  Not achieved (Obstacle) 
4 -  Not achieved (Progress made acceptable.  Continue monitoring) 
5 -  Not achieved (Progress made not acceptable.  Continue monitoring) 
6 -  Not for review this session  
 

Recommendation for monitoring Evidence of progress and contextual information 
 
 

Status 
(categories 1 – 6) 
(to be completed 
by Scrutiny) 

Complete 

Recommendation 1 
That the Executive Board supports the 
proposal to revoke the existing Dog 
Control (Exclusion) Order and replaces 
it with a new Order with the proposed 
updated schedule of land.    
 

Current position: 
 
This proposal was agreed by Executive Board in December 2011.    
 
 
 

2- Achieved  

Recommendation 2 
That as part of the Council’s approach 
to review or amend schedules of land 
associated with Dog Control Orders, 
the Scrutiny Board recommends that 
the relevant Ward Members be 
approached to share their local 
knowledge of the designated areas to 
help identify any anomalies prior to 
finalising the schedule.   
 

Current position: 
A reminder email was sent to all previous email recipients on 10th 
October; including all Councillors, Town and Parish Councils, Dogs 
Trust, Dog walking organisations; reminding them of the closing date 
for the consultation. The consultation closed on 14th October in order 
that the full site list could be signed off through Executive Board in 
December 2011.  
 
The future review process, agreed by Executive Board, will include 
consultation with local Ward Members to identify any anomalies prior 
to the schedule being finalised.  

2 – Achieved 
 

 

P
age 49



 

 

Recommendation 3 
That the Executive Board supports the 
proposal to make a Dog Control (Dogs 
on Leads at All Times) Order requiring 
that dogs should be on a lead at all 
times on the specified land, which is to 
include all carriageways, adjacent 
footpaths and grass verges within the 
Leeds City Council district and in 
cemeteries and crematoria.    
 

Current position: 
 
This proposal was agreed by Executive Board in December 2011.    

2 - Achieved  

Recommendation 4 
That the Executive Board supports the 
proposal to revoke the existing Dog 
Control (Dogs on Leads by Direction) 
Order and make a new Order in the 
same terms which applies throughout 
the Leeds district on any land to which 
the Dog Control (Dogs on Leads at All 
Times) Order does not apply.   

 

Current position: 
 
This proposal was agreed by Executive Board in December 2011.    

2 - Achieved  

Recommendation 5 
That non-payment of Fixed Penalty 
Notices in relation to Dog Control 
Orders are actively pursued and further 
legal action taken where required, 
particularly in relation to repeat 
offenders. 
 

Current position: 
 
The Council’s Enforcement and Regulatory staff are absolutely clear 
that if payment of a Fixed Penalty Notice is not made the Council will 
actively pursue prosecutions through the Courts. Furthermore if an 
offender has previously had a Fixed Penalty Notice the Council will 
seek immediate prosecution rather than allow the discharge of the 
offence through an FPN. Locality Teams have reinforced this 
position through the recent training given to enforcement staff 
around Dog Control Orders.  
 
 

4  
Not achieved 

(Progress made 
acceptable. 
Continue 

monitoring.) 

 

P
age 50



 

 

The new powers allow us to deal more effectively with stray dogs. 
When dogs are picked up and returned to their owners, unless there 
is clear justification why the dog was straying, the owner will now be 
fined for allowing the dog on the highway without a lead. In the first 4 
weeks of the Order being in place the Council has issued 10 Fixed 
Penalty Notices for dogs not being on the lead on a public highway, 
the vast majority in relation to dog owners allowing their dogs to 
stray.  
 

Recommendation 6 
That further work is undertaken by the 
Council to significantly expand the 
level of staff resource available to 
enforce Fixed Penalty Notices and also 
act as professional witnesses to any 
breaches of the Dog Control Orders. 
 
 

Current position: 
 

All 48 enforcement staff within the Locality Teams have been trained 
and can now undertake enforcement action in relation to Dog Control 
Orders. This is a significant expansion on the 6 Dog Wardens who 
have been able to take action in the past.  
 

A form has been developed to enable PCSOs to report any 
environmental problems they encounter and can also act as 
professional witnesses to any Dog Control Order incidents. Locality 
Teams are working closely with partners in the ALMOs and Parks 
and Countryside to explore the possibilities of them becoming more 
involved in enforcement actions.  
 

4 
Not achieved 

(Progress made 
acceptable. 
Continue 

monitoring.) 

 

Recommendation 7 
That any new Dog Control Orders are 
effectively communicated to the public, 
which includes the use of appropriate 
signage, and for the Council to 
reinforce the message that Dog Control 
Orders will be rigorously enforced.   
 
 

Current position: 
 

A media plan has been developed and is being delivered focussing 
on the new powers in relation dogs on leads on the highway and the 
increased number of people who are able to take enforcement action 
in relation to dog fouling. A key message in this media work is that 
the Council will and is rigorously enforcing the Orders. This is being 
delivered in late February and early March.  
 
Signage for each new site is being erected throughout February and 
March. There is no plan to erect signage on every highway in Leeds 
to advertise the Dogs on Leads Order.  
 

4 
Not achieved 

(Progress made 
acceptable. 
Continue 

monitoring.) 

 

P
age 51



 

 

Recommendation 8 
That the Executive Board supports the 
development of an Enforcement Policy 
in relation to the Dog Specified 
Maximum Order.   
 
 

Current position: 
 
This proposal was agreed by Executive Board in December 2011.    

2 - Achieved  

Recommendation 9 
That the Project Board undertakes 
further work in relation to parks and 
playing pitches that are used by 
schools that have no on–site green 
space.  This is to accurately assess the 
extent of the problems encountered in 
such areas in relation to dog fouling in 
particular and explore the best use of 
the full range of powers available to the 
Council in promoting responsible dog 
ownership in such areas.    
Such work should be undertaken as a 
matter of urgency, with an update 
report brought back to the Scrutiny 
Board by March 2012. 
 

Current position: 
 

See Appendix 3 for a detailed report of which the conclusion is: 
 

The Project Board would acknowledge that the use of the Dogs on 
Leads Order on playing fields which schools use may help with 
enforcement action in that any dog fouling would be by definition 
very close to their owner and therefore easier to prosecute if 
observed. However, having weighed up the evidence and options 
the Project Board do not feel that it is appropriate to further restrict 
dogs on these pieces of land for the following reasons.  
 

• It would likely be seen as disproportionate to enforce on safety 
grounds where there is no safety issue, e.g. the park was empty 
but for the person and their dog; 

• It is unlikely that a blanket restriction at all times of the day could 
be justified and a restriction only at times when the school is 
using the park is unlikely to have any impact on dog fouling;  

• If we consulted and changed the Dogs Exclusion or Dogs on 
Leads Orders to be justified on the basis of preventing dog 
fouling this could set a difficult precedent for other parks where 
fouling is also an issue;  

• There is no evidence to show that dog fouling has a greater 
impact in parks used by schools than those that are not;  

• There are existing powers to prosecute people who allow their 
dogs to foul anywhere in Leeds. Simply extending the powers is 
unlikely to result in any more convictions as the breach still has to 
be observed.  

4 
Not achieved 

(Progress made 
acceptable. 
Continue 

monitoring.) 

 

P
age 52



 

 

 The Project Board’s view is therefore that the way to deal with these 
parks is to identify them though Parks and Countryside Services 
and, where dog fouling is felt to be an issue, undertake targeted 
enforcement using the larger range of staff that are now trained to do 
this. 
 
The Executive Member for Environmental Service has been 
consulted on this response and is broadly supportive of this 
approach.  
 

P
age 53



 

 

Appendix 3 
Detailed Response to Scrutiny Board Recommendation 9 
 
1. Purpose of this report  
 
Recommendation 9 of the Scrutiny review of the Phase 2 Dog Control Orders asked that: 
“…the Project Board undertakes further work in relation to parks and playing pitches that 
are used by schools that have no on–site green space.  This is to accurately assess the 
extent of the problems encountered in such areas in relation to dog fouling in particular 
and explore the best use of the full range of powers available to the Council in promoting 
responsible dog ownership in such areas.   Such work should be undertaken as a matter 
of urgency, with an update report brought back to the Scrutiny Board by March 2012.” 
 
Many schools in Leeds do not have their own green space and use parks and playing 
pitches on public green spaces instead. Scrutiny Board asked that the Project Board 
assess whether the powers should be extended on these pieces of land to prevent dog 
fouling and support the effective enforcement of the Dog Fouling Order on land where 
there was an increased risk to school age children.  
 
2. Background 
 
Dog Control Orders were set up to deal with a range of issues caused by irresponsible dog 
ownership. Five Orders are in place: 
 

• The Dog Fouling Order has been in place since 2006 and makes it an offence to not 
clean up after a dog has fouled on any public access land; 

• The Dog Exclusion Order excludes dogs from specified pieces of land such as 
children’s play areas and some school grounds; 

• The Dogs on Leads at all Times Order requires dogs to be on leads next to all 
carriageways and adjacent footpaths and grass verges, and also cemeteries, 
crematoria, enclosed church yards and some specialist or ornamental gardens; 

• The Dogs on Leads by Direction Order gives an authorised officer of the council the 
power to instruct a dog owner to put their dog on the lead to prevent nuisance 
behaviour; 

• The Dogs Specified Maximum (Leeds) Order restricts the maximum number of dogs 
that can be walked at a given time to 4.  

 
Breach of any of these Orders is, in effect, a criminal offence liable on summary 
conviction, to a fine not exceeding level 3 on the standard scale (£1,000). A person may 
be offered the opportunity to discharge any liability to conviction for any offence under any 
Dog Control Order by payment of a fixed penalty. The specified amount of the fixed 
penalty is £75. 
 
Given that a breach is a criminal offence the Council needs to make sure that the 
enforcement of the Orders is proportionate to the scale of the problem and can be robustly 
argued in terms of evidence in Court.  
 
As the DEFRA guidance on Dog Control Orders states: 
“The authority needs to balance the interests of those in charge of dogs against the 
interests of those affected by the activities of dogs, bearing in mind the need for people, in 
particular children, to have access to dog free areas and areas where dogs are kept under 
strict control, and the need for those in charge of dogs to have access to areas where they 

Page 54



 

 

can exercise their dogs without undue restrictions. A failure to give due consideration to 
these factors could make any subsequent Dog Control Order vulnerable to challenge in 
the Courts.”  
 
3. Justification for the original Orders 
 
The justification for the Orders that are now in place was clearly stated in the public 
advertisement used during the consultation process. For Dogs on Leads Order the 
justification was: 
“to ensure that any dog is kept under control at all times and doesn't run unexpectedly into 
a road causing traffic accidents or injury to the dog itself. It is also proposed that this Order 
be applied to cemeteries and crematoria. This is because dogs can cause considerable 
anguish to visitors at an already distressing time, especially if they are creating a 
disturbance or fouling.” 
 
For Dog Exclusion Orders the justification was: 
“…where a dog may cause damage and disturbance to the area even when under close 
control. It is also proposed to include areas such as school grounds where it might not be 
possible to keep a dog under close control due to likely distractions which may endanger 
young and vulnerable people.” 
 
Whilst the Council could consult and change the justification of the Orders to include the 
specific reference to enabling stronger enforcement of the Dog Fouling Order this is 
unlikely to strengthen the powers the Council currently has. An Order is already in place 
that allows us to prosecute dog owners who allow their dogs to foul areas. Using the Dog 
Exclusion or Dogs on Leads Order to help with enforcing the Dog Fouling Order is fraught 
with problems, largely because the Council could not prosecute two Orders at the same 
time. It is also worth noting that this justification could equally be applied to many parks 
that have dog fouling problems but which schools do not use. This could lead to some of 
our largest and most prestigious parks falling within the justification for extension of the 
two Orders.  
 
4. Extension of the Orders specifically to parks used by schools  
 
Schools that use parks and playing pitches in lieu of their own on-site green space should 
have a formal agreement with Parks and Countryside Services to do so. This formal 
agreement should describe the hours and scope of usage and any issues within the Park 
should be managed through Parks and Countryside Services.  
 
Many schools in Leeds now have Dog Exclusion Orders in place on their grounds. This is 
justified because the primary purpose of the grounds is for school use. The primary 
purpose of parks used by schools is for public recreation rather than school use. When 
deciding on the Order that should be in place the Council needs to assess the primary 
purpose against the risk of harm to school children using the area. There would have to be 
enough evidence that a schools use of the park led to a higher risk than in a different park 
not formally used by a school that had similar dog fouling problems.  
 
To date Parks and Countryside Services have no evidence that there is a greater problem 
with dog fouling in the parks formally used by schools. A reminder email was sent to all 
school Head Teachers including the question as to whether they would want dogs on 
leads on parks which they used for recreation. The Project Board did not receive any 
response from any school asking for this restriction to be put in place.  

Page 55



 

 

 
If the Council did consider that the risk was great enough to justify a Dog Exclusion or 
Dogs on Leads Order on these sites the Council would also need to consider whether the 
use of the park by the school only at certain times or days of the week was enough to 
justify an ‘at all times’ restriction on dogs. Whilst an Order could be put in place that 
restricted dogs at the times when the school was using the park there are significant 
difficulties with this. The offence committed is that a person cannot ‘knowingly’ let their dog 
breach the Orders. Any confusion about the times or days the restrictions apply would be 
used to provide justification that the owner did not ‘know’ that the Order was in place and 
could leave us open to challenge and make the Order unenforceable. It is also unlikely that 
the times when dogs would be excluded would coincide with the times that irresponsible 
dog owners let their dogs foul meaning that it is unlikely that the powers would lead to any 
increased in enforcement action taken.  
 
The offence committed also has to be observed, i.e. an enforcement officer or reliable 
witness needs to have observed the offence taking place. In this context an extension of 
Dogs on Leads Order to these types of park would not, in itself, increase the number of 
prosecutions being made. In order to prosecute the Council would still need people in 
place to observe the problem and, if a dog were observed fouling, regardless of the Dogs 
on Leads Order being in place, the owner would be prosecuted.  
 
5. Conclusion 
 
The Project Board acknowledges that the use of the Dogs on Leads Order on playing 
fields which schools use may help with enforcement action in that any dog fouling would 
be by definition very close to their owner and therefore easier to prosecute if observed. 
However, having weighed up the evidence and options the Project Board do not feel that it 
would be appropriate to further restrict dogs on these pieces of land for the following 
reasons.  
 

• It would likely be seen as disproportionate to enforce on safety grounds where there is 
no safety issue, e.g. the park was empty but for the person and their dog; 

• It is unlikely that a blanket restriction at all times of the day could be justified and a 
restriction only at times when the school is using the park is unlikely to have any impact 
on dog fouling;  

• If the Council consulted and changed the Dogs Exclusion or Dogs on Leads Orders to 
be justified on the basis of preventing dog fouling this could set a difficult precedent for 
other parks where fouling is also an issue;  

• There is no evidence to show that dog fouling has a greater impact in parks used by 
schools than those that are not;  

• There are existing powers to prosecute people who allow their dogs to foul anywhere in 
Leeds. Simply extending the powers is unlikely to result in any more convictions as the 
breach still has to be observed.  

  
The Project Board’s view is therefore that the way to deal with these parks is to identify 
them though Parks and Countryside Services and, where dog fouling is felt to be an issue, 
undertake targeted enforcement using the larger range of staff that are now trained to do 
this.  
 

Page 56



 

 

Report of Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 

Report to Scrutiny Board (Safer and Stronger Communities) 

Date: 12th March 2012 

Subject: Work Schedule 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

Summary of main issues  

1. A draft work schedule is attached as appendix 1.  The work schedule has been 
provisionally completed pending on going discussions with the Board.  The work 
schedule will be subject to change throughout the municipal year. 

 
2. Also attached as appendix 2 and 3 respectively are the minutes of Executive Board  

on 10th February 2012 and the Council’s current Forward Plan relating to this Board’s 
portfolio. 

 
Recommendations 
 
3.    Members are asked to: 
 

a) Consider the draft work schedule and make amendments as appropriate.  
b) Note the Executive Board minutes and Forward Plan 

 

Background documents  

4. None used 

 Report author:  Angela Brogden 

Tel:  24 74553 

Agenda Item 11

Page 57



Page 58

This page is intentionally left blank



Scrutiny Board (Safer and Stronger Communities) Work Schedule for 2011/2012 Municipal Year 
 

Key: SB  – Scrutiny Board (Safer and Stronger Communities) Meeting  WG – Working Group Meeting 

  Schedule of meetings/visits during 2011/12 

Area of review June July August 
 

Reducing Burglary Consider potential scope of review 
SB 12/06/11 @ 10am 
 

  

Anti-Social Behaviour Consider potential scope of review 
SB 12/06/11 @ 10am 
 

  

Streetscene Services Consider potential scope of review 
SB 12/06/11 @ 10am – (deferred to July) 

Consider potential scope of review 
SB 18/07/11 @ 10am 
 

 

Role of the third sector and 
Council in mitigating the 
negative effects of the 
recession upon communities. 

Consider potential scope of review 
SB 12/06/11 @ 10am 

  

Board initiated piece of 
Scrutiny work. 
 

To consider potential areas of review.  
 
 

Report on the 2010/11 Financial 
Outturn for Environment and 
Neighbourhoods. 
SB 18/07/11 @ 10 am 
 

Review of Private Rented Sector Housing – 
scoping the review 
WG 15/08/11 @ 10 am 
 
Reform of Council Housing Finance 
(development of new HRA Business Plan) - 
WG session 1 - 08/08/11 @ 10 am  
 
Dog Control Orders – Phase 2 
WG 18/08/11 @ 11 am 
 
Fuel Poverty – scoping the review 
WG 17/08/11 @ 11 am 
 

Crime and Disorder 
Committee work. 

To consider potential areas of review.   
 

  

Budget & Policy Framework     

Recommendation Tracking    

Performance Monitoring  
 

  

P
age 59



Scrutiny Board (Safer and Stronger Communities) Work Schedule for 2011/2012 Municipal Year 
 

Key: SB  – Scrutiny Board (Safer and Stronger Communities) Meeting  WG – Working Group Meeting 

 Schedule of meetings/visits during 2011/12 

Area of review September October November 

Reducing Burglary Presentation on the Leeds Burglary 
Reduction Strategy - SB 12/09/11  

 
 

 

Anti-Social Behaviour    

Streetscene Services    

Role of the third sector and 
Council in mitigating the 
negative effects of the 
recession upon communities. 

  Strategic Planning and Policy Board Third 
Sector Review – Progress Report 
SB 14/11/11 @ 10 am 
 

Board initiated piece of 
Scrutiny work. 
 

Reform of Council Housing Finance 
(development of new HRA Business 
Plan) 
WG session 2 -  05/09/11 @ 10 am 
 
Agree terms of reference for the Board’s 
forthcoming inquiries on Private Rented 
Sector Housing and Fuel Poverty 
SB 12/09/11 @ 10 am 
 
Financial Health Monitoring Report 
SB 12/09/11 @ 10 am 
 

Dog Control Orders – Phase 2 
WG session 2 – 21/10/11 @ 10 am 
 
Fuel Poverty Inquiry – Session 1 
WG 27/10/11 @ 10 am 
 
Financial Health Monitoring Report 
SB 10/10/11 @ 10 am 
 
Review of Health and Safety and 
Food Safety Regulatory Services 
within Environmental Health – agree 
terms of reference - SB 10/10/11 @ 
10 am 
 

Dog Control Orders – Phase 2 
SB 14/11/11 @ 10 am 
 

Financial Health Monitoring  
WG 10/11/11 @ 10 am 
SB 14/11/11 @ 10 am 
 

PRS Housing Inquiry -Session 1 
WG  08/11/11 @ 10 am 
 

Fuel Poverty Inquiry – Session 2 
WG 21/11/11 @ 10 am 
 

Reform of Council Housing Finance 
(development of new HRA Business Plan) 
Session 3  WG – 4/11/11 @ 11 am 
SB 14/11/11 @ 10 am 
 

Health and Safety and Food Safety 
Regulatory Services Review 
Session 1 WG – 28/11/11 @ 10am 
 

Crime and Disorder work    

Budget & Policy Framework     

Recommendation Tracking Gypsy and Travellers Site Provision in 
Leeds - SB 12/09/11 @ 10 am 

Offender Management - SB 10/10/11 
 

ALMO Shared Service Centre 
SB 14/11/11 

Performance Monitoring    

P
age 60



Scrutiny Board (Safer and Stronger Communities) Work Schedule for 2011/2012 Municipal Year 
 

Key: SB  – Scrutiny Board (Safer and Stronger Communities) Meeting  WG – Working Group Meeting 

 Schedule of meetings/visits during 2011/12 

Area of review December January February 

Reducing Burglary    

Anti-Social Behaviour    

Streetscene Services    

Role of the third sector and 
Council in mitigating the 
negative effects of the 
recession upon communities. 

 
 

  

Board initiated piece of 
Scrutiny work. 
 

Financial Health Monitoring Report 
SB 12/12/11 @ 10 am 
 
PRS Housing Inquiry -Session 2 (part 1) 
WG  06/12/11 @ 10 am 
 
Fuel Poverty Inquiry – Session 3 
WG 15/12/11 @ 10 am 
 
Grounds Maintenance Contract Update 
SB 12/12/11 @ 10 am 
 
 

Financial Health Monitoring Report 
SB 16/01/12 @ 10 am 
 

PRS Housing Inquiry -Session 2 
(part 2) WG  05/01/12 @ 10 am 
 

PRS Housing Inquiry -Session 3  
WG  09/01/12 @ 10 am 
 

Health and Safety and Food Safety 
Regulatory Services Review 
Session 3  WG – 30/01/12 @ 11am 
 

Car Parking Update - SB 16/01/12 
 

Recycling Strategy Update 
SB 16/01/12 
 

2012/13 Budget proposals for E&N 
WG – 04/01/12 @ 9.30 am 
 

Gypsies and travellers site provision 
WG – 10/01/12 @ 10 am 

Financial Health Monitoring Report 
SB 13/02/12 @ 10 am 
 

Fuel Poverty Inquiry – Session 3 (part 2) 
WG 01/02/12 @ 10 am 
 

Fuel Poverty Inquiry – Session 4 
WG 07/02/12 @ 11.30 am 
 

Pre-planning public consultation for the 
proposed Recycling and Energy Recovery 
Facility – Update report 
SB 13/02/12 @ 10 am 
 

Health and Safety and Food Safety 
Regulatory Services Review 
Final session  WG – 27/02/12 – Cancelled. 
 

PRS Housing Inquiry – Final session  
WG 22/02/12 - Re-scheduled to March 

Crime and Disorder 
Committee work. 

   

Budget & Policy Framework     

Recommendation Tracking  
 

Housing Lettings Process 
SB 16/01/12 @ 10 am 

 

Performance Monitoring Quarter 2 performance report 
SB 12/12/11 @ 10 am 

 
 

 

P
age 61



Scrutiny Board (Safer and Stronger Communities) Work Schedule for 2011/2012 Municipal Year 
 

Key: SB  – Scrutiny Board (Safer and Stronger Communities) Meeting  WG – Working Group Meeting 

 Schedule of meetings/visits during 2011/12 

Area of review March April May (TBC) 

Reducing Burglary 
 

   

Anti-Social Behaviour  Update report following the Leeds 
Anti-Social Behaviour Review 
‘Operation Quest’ 
SB 03/04/12 @ 10 am 
 

 

Streetscene Services    

Role of the third sector and 
Council in mitigating the 
negative effects of the 
recession upon communities. 

   

Board initiated piece of 
Scrutiny work. 
 

Financial Health Monitoring Report 
SB 12/03/12 @ 10 am 
 
Fuel Poverty Inquiry – Final session 
WG 06/03/12 @ 10 am 
 
PRS Housing Inquiry – Final session  
WG 06/03/12 @ 3.30 pm 
 
Local Lettings Policies - update 
SB 12/03/12 @ 10 am 

Inquiry into Private Rented Sector 
Housing – draft inquiry report 
SB 03/04/12 @ 10 am 
 

Inquiry into Fuel Poverty – draft 
inquiry report 
SB 03/04/12 @ 10 am 
 

Review of Health and Safety and 
Food Safety Regulatory Services – 
draft report - SB 03/04/12 @ 10 am 
 

 

Crime and Disorder 
Committee work. 

 Police Reform and Social 
Responsibility Act - Update report 
SB 03/04/12 @ 10 am 

 

Budget & Policy Framework  
 

   

Recommendation Tracking Phase 2 Dog Control Orders 
SB 12/03/12 @ 10 am 

  

Performance Monitoring Quarter 3 performance report 
SB 12/03/12 @ 10 am 

  

 

P
age 62



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	����	�����������������������

�

����������	
���
�

��������������	������������
�

���������
�

�
	���������� ��������	�����������

� �
	�������!�"�� ���#��������������	���
$�%�		���	��&�'��	��(�'�
�	��$�)�*����
#�+��������	��)�,���	�

�
�

���� ��������� ��
-�����*����	����������������
�����*���������*���	�����������������*�����
�
���������	��	��������������	���������������������������������	��������
���	�����
����������������������	������	��������	�.��	
���/0��1���
��������20���
�
3	�������	��*���������������	���������������������	��������	���������4�
�	��������5���
����	����
	���6��7���/�����������6�/���	���%�������	���
����"��	�8����������)�����"��	���������/���	���%�������	�������"��	������
���	�����
��������"������������������������	������������	��������	�
.��	
���/0��9����������20��
�

��!� �"#�$��%&' �&(��'��$� ���
#���
���	����������	�����	�������*�������������������	����	����������	���
���������	��*��������������������	����	����������	��.��	
���/�0��1���	��
�������������������������20��
�

��)� �""�  ��&�	�"*+$&,'-���.�$ ��
3	�����	��	�����	:
������*������������	�����	����������������������
;<��
������	��������������������
������:
�����	����������	��
��������*����
����������"�� ��
	��(������	������
���	��;<��
�����"�������	�����
��
�����������������
������*� �*
������
	����� �	��	���*�����������	��	����
�
������ ��
	����
��	����
���������������	������
�
��0���
�

��/� 0%',�� ��
���
����1�-����������	
���������������	�������	�=���!�	
������������
�������������������������0��
�
����������������
����������
�

��2� �.,���%&'��&��&,'"%#��/�3��&4��5�$������6����%&'�#���-�$��%&'�&(��3��
	#%'-��
-�������������#�
���&�����&���������
��������������������	��	��������
���
����	���������
	����	��7���/�������������������)�����"��	�����
����/���	���%�������	�������"��	�0�3	��������	�	�������������������"����� �
�	���	��������	��������������	���	���*����	�����������	��	�������0�
�

Page 63



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	����	�����������������������

�

����������������	���������������������	��������������������)�����"��	���
������/���	���%�������	�������"��	���������	�����
��������"������������
������������	������������	��������	0��
�
�����������	�*����������������������������#�
���&�����&�����������������
������	���*����	�#���	��<����������
����������������
�����������5#���	����
"��	��(����8��	��	��5#���	��������"��	�80���
�
>���	������	�������������8��	:
�������������	���������	��������	������	�
*�����������
��������*��	��	�������������;<��
���������������#�
���
>�������	��&������������������*������������������#�
���&�����&��������
���
��������"��������������
��*
����	��	
��*��������������	�����������	�
��������������������	���	��*����������	����	�������������������
�0��
�
3	��	��
��	����������
���	�����*�����:
�����������&��
��	��"����.>�������	��
�������	���	��#�
���&���������2��	��	
���������	�������	���������
��	���
��������������	�������;<��
�����"���������������������*����'�
��)�������
*���� �����	���������	���
��������������	��0���
�
���
����?��
.�2� -���������	��	����������
�����������������	���@�
�
.�2� -������������	���
���	�������	��
	����� �	����#�
���&�����������	��

)�����A���	��	����
������������������	�����������������
���
����	����	���0�

�
���
����������
��
�����������
���
�

���� �%'�'"%�#����#�3�0&'%�&$%'+�����7���6�0&'�3�8��
-�������������$��
������
���������������������	��
�������
	���8��
��B��������	�	�����������������	�������	�	���	������������	�	���������0��-���
�����������*������������	��������
������������������	�����	������	����
	����� ������
����������	��	���������������������	���������
������������
�
���	������0�3	��������	�	�������������������"����� ��	���	��������	�����
���������	���	���*����	�����������	��	�������0�
�
���������������������������������������������	�C����
������	����
�����������������
	�����
��	��������	�	����������
�	������
���	���
��������
�����	0���
�
3	�����	��	������������8������������	:
�������������������;	���	��	���	��
/�����
�����
	���� ����������������������	�:
����	�*������������	��
	��	�	��	����������	��������*����	�>
��	�0�
�
3	��	��
��	������"�������������
�����������
�����	�����	���������
�����
*����������� �	����������
��
�������
���	����	�	���������0�
�
���
����?�-����������B��������	�	����������	��������
�����������������
������:
���������������	�	�������������	���0�
�

Page 64



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	����	�����������������������

�

��8� ��4�',��	,-+�������7����'-���.%��#��$&+$������
.#2� $���	
��"
������	���
	����-�<�����D�����

%
����������	
���/0��E=���=��������������������������������
$��
������
����������������	��������������������������
	���8��
$���	
��"
������������D���4��	�����)����������	���������
	����
-�<��������������	�����D���4��	��	��
	����>
�����	����������D�4��
*������������	�����������	������	��<���������
	���8���	�������
�����
������������������;<��
�����"�����	��������������������)����
'���	��	��%�	�	�����������	���	���������
�����������
�����
�	�
�����	0�3	��������	�	�������������������"����� ��	��
�	��������	��������������	���	���*����	�����������	��	�������0�

�
��������	���
��	��������������������������������
����������������*��
�������	��	�������	��������	�������
	���8���
���������������0�

�
3	�����	��	�����������8��	:
�����������"��������������	�
�������	�
���������������
���	�������	��������	������������������*���������
������
�����������	���	�
	����� �	��*�������	��������������	��	���
*
����������������'�
��)�������	������������0�3	�������	������
"����������������������������	�*�������������������������$��������
3	��	�����&�������*�����*������	�������������������������	��������
�������������������������������
����*����	�������������(�������0�3��
*��������	�����������������
����������������	�����
����
���	��
#������	�����	���
	��	�0�

�
��������*�������������������
	����-�<�����F���������C�4��	��
��:
������������������	����	��*���������������'���	��	��
�������	������	��������
����
	��	����������'���	��	�����	��	
��
�	���
�
��������0���

�
-���"�����������������������	�����	�����������	�������������������
�
	���8�����
����*� ������	�����	����������������������	�	�
�	���������
	��	����0��-���������;<��
��������	����������
����������
��������������*����������������
��������	�����	���������	��������
�����*�������	��0��

�
������������
�����������������	��������	�����������	�������
�
	���8���
�����*�����*����������������������	8��&���������	��#�
���
&�����������	�������	��������������������������	������	��	
�����
�������������	������������
�	������
����0��

�
���
�����6��
.�2� -�����
	�������������	�����������������$���	
��"
�����

�������D���4�������	��GE74���=�������������������	���<����	���
*����	������
���������������	��������	��	����������*����	�
�	��������	�����)����8������	���������
	����-�<��������D�40�

�
.�2� -�����	���������������>
��	��$���	
��#��
	����
	�������

������	�����6�C�

Page 65



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	����	�����������������������

�

.�2�������������
����������������������	���	����������
�����
709�H@�
�
.��2��	�������������������������������	�����G7014�����*�� @�
�
.���2��	������������������������	���	��*������	���.709�H20�

�
."2� ��������(��������I����������C���=�

-�������������$��
������
���������������������	��
������
�������
������������������������������C���=��*������	��
������������
���
������������������0�3	��������	�	�������������������"����� �
�	���	��������	��������������	���	���*����	�����������	��	��
�����0�

�
���
����1��
.�2� -�����������*�	�����������	�������
	���6�

.�2� -���������������������������������������������
��������
�����������������@�

.��2� -��������;<��
�����"��������
������������������	�
��������	���	����������������������������	��
��	��
���	�����������	���������������������������	�
������	���*����%�	�	�����(����
���$
���@��	��

.���2� -�����������������	��
��$���	
��(�����	�.�$(2�
���������������D�4���������
��*����	�40���������
��������
�������	������<����	������#���	��<�;������������0�

.��2� -��������
�������������������������������	���	�%�	�	�����
�����
���$
����������*	��	�#���	��<�%�������
�
�������������������������0�

.�2� -�������������������	����������������	���	��������������������
��*	�*����	�#���	��<����������
������������������	��
�����������	����������	��������������������������
����	�
������	���*���������$(������0�

.�2� -������������������$��
���������
������������	�����
�	�����	���	��������������������	���������	�����
�	�
���������������������������������0�

.�2� -����
�����	�����	��&������������C���4�
-�������������$��
������
���������������������	��
������-����
���
��	�����	��&���������������D���4��	��
���	�	��������������
�������������*�	���������
	����������
��	����������*� 0�3	�������	��
�����������������������������*�������������	��������	���	�
����D����0��3	��������	�	�������������������"����� ��	��
�	��������	��������������	���	���*����	�����������	��	�������0�

�
�

Page 66



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	����	�����������������������

�

���
����1��
.�2� -�������������������	��������	�����������
���������������

����D�4���������
��*����	�&����	�404��������
���������������
�	����������������*�����������D���������������	��������	������
����
��*����	�&����	��40���	��40���������
������������������
	���0�

.�2� -����������	����������������	�������3(%#8��-����
���
��	�����	��������(���������	����������������
�����	��
(�
��	����������������������������	���������	��
�������	������������
	���0���

.�2� -�����
	�������������	�����������������*�	������������
����D��������D�4�����4D�=��	�����=D�E���������
��*����	�
&����	�40=��������
�������������0��

�
.�2� -�����
	�������������	�������������������
�����	�����	��

�	���������������D��������D�4�����4D�=��	�����=D�E��������
��
*����	�&����	�40E��������
�������������0�

.�2� -�����
	�������������	���������������	������	������������
����D��������D�4�����4D�=��	�����=D�E��������
��*����	�
&����	�407��������
�������������0�

.�2� -�����
	�������������	�����������������������-����
���
��	�����	��(�����&������	�0�

.-�����������������������	�������#.�2��#.�2.�2���.���2��".�2.�2���.��2��	���.�2���

.�2����	����������������������
	����*����	�������������������3	2�
�
.I	��������������	�����
	����(����
���$
����70E���
	������#��������
��:
�����������������������������������	����������	��	�����������	��
�����������*����	���	
���/�0��91.#2��	���91."22���
�

�8�� 9�#(�$����(&$����$���+:��
-�������������$��
������
���������������������	��
����������������������
����	�
��	��������
��������������������������	����� ��������*����
��������������	�������������	������������
����	����:
�����	��������	������
����*���������������������0�3	��������	�	�������������������"����� ��	��
�	��������	��������������	���	���*����	�����������	��	�������0�
�
-���"����*����������������������������*�����*������	���� �	���
�	�
��������������������*�����������������������������	�������	����������
�	���
���	�������*���������������������0�
�
%��*�	��������������������	:
���������������
	���� ������������������	��
	��������������������	��"�����������*��*�	����	�0��
�
�������������������������	������������	��*��������������������	�
�<�����	����	������
	���������������������
�������������������
���������������������	������*������
����������������#���������������	�

Page 67



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	����	�����������������������

�

�����������	�������������������	������� �����������������*��������������
�	�
�
	�������0�
�
���
����?��
.�2� -��������*��������������������������������0�
�
.�2� -����
�������	���������*������������������������������	��
���
���0�
�
.�2� -������*�������������8����
	�����	�����������������������������

����������	������	����
��������	����� �������������������������
����
������0�

�
.�2� -�����������������*� �*����#���������������	���������	�
��������

�����������������������	��������	��������������������������
������0�
�
.�2� -����������������	�
�������������������������
�����
������
�������

�	����������
������	������	��������:
�����	�����I	�������������������
�
������0�

�
.�2� -���������<������	�������
	�������������	������*������������
	��

I	������������������������*����������
	����*
��������������������
��
�	�����������������������	����	��������������0�

�
.�
	������#�����������������������	����	��������	�������������������������C
��
������*����	�������������	�������	��*
������	��������������������������
���	����	����������	2�
�

�8�� ������&(��3���%�:���.&$���'-��,##��&,'"%#�0���%'+��
-���#������	��������;<��
�����.�
������#�������	��(������	��2�
�
����������������������	��������� ��
	��������&�����������������������	��
������������� ���������
���	�����
��������	��������������*����������	����	��
��������������	�����
�����)�����3	���������"�����	�D������&���������
(���	�������"����0��-������������������*�������������&����������������%
���
�
	���������	��*������ �������	��������������������	��*����������
������	����	�������������������	��		
������	�0�3	��������	�	�������
������������"����� ��	���	��������	��������������	���	���*����	�����
������	��	�������0�
�
����������	��������
��������������	������������&�����������������
	����
�����	����
�������*�*����
����*����������
��������
����*���	�������	�
��������������������
�����	��
�
��0�
�
���
����?��
�
.�2� -�����������	��������
����������������	�����&�����������������������

������
�����������������	�������������	6C�
�

�2� ��:
�������	���������	�������� ����
	����� �	����	�
��������
�����������&���������(���	�������"��������������	���	�������
��������������������	�����
��@�

Page 68



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	����	�����������������������

�

�
��2� ����
������������*� ��������������� �������)�����3	���������

"���0�
�
.�2� -�����	�������*�����������	����������	��	��������������������
���

��������������������������������)�����3	���������"��������������
����D���������	����	�����
��������
�������	�������	�<��&�����������
�����$������	�����#
�
�	�������0�

�
.�2� -��������������������	���%
����
	���������	�����������		
�����.��

������	�����������9�/��������������	������������2����	����������
&�����������������������*����������������	������	��������	�����	��*����
��	
����������	�������	���	����������	����������������	��������
	�������� ��������������	��6�

�

•� ����:
����	������	����������������*��
������������������
����	��������	�@�

•� ��������	����������������������	��������������������������
���
�������������	�����&���������������������@�

•� �������������������������	������	���	��������������	��	�������	�
���������	�@��	��

•� �	��������	��������	����
������*�������
������������������	��
�����	�������	� ����������������
����������	����������0�

.�2� -�������� ������������������������ C
�������	������������*����
�������������	�����	��������
��������������
	���0�

�
�������;�����������
�

�8�� �'',�#����'-�$- ���.&$��<�$%��$:=��
-��������������������	8��&���������
����������������������	���	�������*�
�������������	���������������������������	��������������������������C
������������	�����������
�������
����	���	��������	���	����������
��������	�0��3	�������	����������������
���	�����������	��� �	��������
�
	�������
�������������	��������������
�������	�����������	����	���	�����	��
���	��������0��3	��������	�	�������������������"����� ��	���	��������	�����
���������	���	���*����	�����������	��	�������0�
�
3	�����	��	�����������8��	:
����������������*����������
�	������������
����������)�����;�
����	�������	����	�����
��	����*��������	��	���������
�������	��������8�����
	�����	����������0��
�
���
����?�-�����������*�	������	�������	���
������6C�
.�2� -�����������*������������	������������� �����������	���	������

�����������	�����
��������������	�@�
�
.�2� -����
�
���������	����
������������	����	���	�����	��	��	�)�������

�	�
�����������������	��	
������������@�
�

Page 69



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	����	�����������������������

�

.�2� -�����	��������������)�����;�
����	�������	����	����
��	��
��������	�0�

�
�8�� �'',�#����'-�$- ���.&$��<��"&'-�$:=��

-��������������������	8��&���������
�����������������
�������	������
������������������	����	������������������	���	�)������*������
������
������
��
�	�����
�������������������
������	�����0��3	�
�������	�	�������������������"����� ��	���	��������	�������������
�	���	���*����	�����������	��	�������0�
�
$���	��	�����������8��	:
����������
��	����*������������	�����
���	�
�������	����	����
�����	���������
�	�������
����	��������	��
���������	8��&�������0�
�
%��*�	���������8�:
����	�������"��������������	�
������	���������	��
���	���� �	���������������	��	���������*����	��������������	������	�����
��
����������������������	������	��	������������	�����������	�����	���
��
��0�
�
���
����?�-�����������*�	������	�������	���
������6C�
.�2� -�����������*������������	���������������������	������������	����

�
��������������	�@�
�
.�2� -����
�
���������	����
������������	����	���	�����	��	��	�)�������

�	�
�����������������	��	
������������@�
�
.�2� -�����	��������������)�����;�
����	�������	����	����
��	��

��������	�0�
�

�8!� ��#(����$#:��-&.�%&'��+�'":���.&$���
-��������������������	8��&���������
�����������������������	������*� ���
)�����������
	����#����	�&�����������#������������&��������������
�	��
����0��-����������	������������������������������������	�������	�������
�������	����	��	����������	����������	8����������	����������������������
���������� �	�����������	�������	�������������������������	����
���
����������	��������	��
����0�3	��������	�	�������������������"����� �
�	���	��������	��������������	���	���*����	�����������	��	�������0�
�
���
����?��
.�2� -���������	��	����������
�����������������	���0�
�
.�2� -��������*� �������#����	�-�����	��	
��������
��������	������

���	�
����������������������	���������������������������
����0�
�
����������������
����������
�

�8)� ���- ��&"�#��""&,'���
-�������������#�
���&�����&���������
�����������������	���
��	������)����
#��
	����#�
���&����������&�������������������F�	�0��-������������������	�
�<���	���	�������	�*�����	������������������
�	��
	������*�������������	��

Page 70



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	����	�����������������������

�

����)����#��
	�8���	����
��	��*������	��	��	����������
	���������������
�
�������	�������������
�����	����������������������������	�0��3	�
������	�����������������������
���������������	������������������	����
#�
���&�����������	���	���������������������������	�������*����	�����)�����
)����#��
	�������:
���	���
��������������	���	���������
����	����������
�������	��0�3	��������	�	�������������������"����� ��	���	��������	�����
���������	���	���*����	�����������	��	�������0�
�
���
����?��
.�2� -���������	��	���������
�����������������������*�����������������

)����#��
	�����)�������	�������5)���	��)����,
��+*	����8�����	���0�
�
.�2� -���������������	���������)3/ ���������	�����������
���������������

	��������������������������
	���8�����������	�������<��	����*�����
�������������������	�����������	�������	������������	��	�����		�	���
���	���0�

�
.�2� -�������������������������	����������
��*����	��������������)����

#��
	��������������������&��
��	��"����.>�������	���������	���	��
#�
���&���������2����������������������������	��0�

�
����
�0�������������
�
0��
�

�8/� ���- �<�%4�$��%$�=��#&&-��##�4%��%&'��"3�����
-��������������������������	���
����������������������	���	�
������	�
���������������������������������������	���������������0�3	�������	��
�����������
���������������������������������������	����������	�����
�����������	������������(����������������������	��E������&��	�������
(������	���������������	���������.���*��	�)�����&����	��	���	�����
����2����������	�������E0�3	��������	�	�������������������"����� ��	��
�	��������	��������������	���	���*����	�����������	��	�������0�
�
-���"����*��������������������������*������������	���������	��
���������������������������	������	������������������������	�����������
��������������	����������	�����	��0��3	�������	��������������������������
�	���<�����	��
������������������������������;%$#����������������	��	��
��:
������������������	����	��*������������;%$#�	������������0��
�
���
����?��
.�2� -������������ 	*��������������������	����������	�������������	���

������������	��G�99���������.*�������������������������
���2��*�����
*
���������������	�������������	������������������	��*����	�����
�
	�����	�����	�����
�
��0�

�
.�2� -�����	�������������
��	�.�2����������������������	������������

����������������	����������	�������������������������*���
��*������������������*���������������	������������(�����������������
�����	��E������&��	�������(������	���������������	��������������
)�����&����	�����	������������������	�������E0�

�

Page 71



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	����	�����������������������

�

.�2� -�������
��������������������	��������������������	�����(�����������

���	���*����	�����������401��������
�������������������������������
�����������������
	���0�

�
.�2� -����������������������)�����������
	�������������)����%���

#
��������*� �	��*��������	�������
���������	�����
����
������*� �
������������������	�������
����
	��	���	����������������(�����
����
���	���������������������;	���	��	��#��	������G�E�9������0�

�
.�2� -����)������(���	��	
����������������������*�����������	������

;	���	��	��#��	����	���������
�����)�����������
	�����	�����
������	���������������������	�����B�������������������������	��
��	��
���������
	��	������	��	������	������������	�������	������
������	������	������	������	0�

�
.�2� -�����<��	���
�����GE��������������������������������
	���8��

���������������	���G�������������������������������	����	����
�����
����������������	��
��	���
�������������������	������������*� ��
����
�������0�

�
.�2� -���������������������������������������*����	�����������401�������

�
��������������������������
�B�������������������	�������������	�0�
�

�82� ����&$����$���+:�6��,5#%"��%&'�&",��'���
-��������������������������	���
���������������������	��	����������
&�����������������*���������
����	�������������������������	�������������	��
�
�����	����
��	������������
���������
������	�
�����	��	������
���������	������	�����������	����	�0�3	��������	�	�������������������"����
� ��	���	��������	��������������	���	���*����	�����������	��	�������0�
�
-*�����������������������*������
���������	��	��������������	��������
�������������������������	�����������	�����
��������"�����������������
�����������	������������	��������	0�
�
$���	��	�����������8��	:
�����������"������������������������	��	���������
��(��������#�������&������.(#&2������0�3	�������	������	�����������������
������	�������������
	�����	��������������������	�
��*����	�����
�	�
�����	�������������"������������������
��	�����	������������
���
�������0����
�
�������8��	���	���������	��������B��������
����	���*��������������	��
��������	������������������������	��
������������*������ 	*��������
�*���������������*����������
�	�����	�������������&�������������
�������������*�����*
�������	��
��	����������
��������������������
���������0�
�
-���������;<��
���������������������<��	����*��������C�	�
�����	�����
���������� �	��������
��	��������������	���������������0�3��*���	���������
�
��	���
����	�
�����	���������
����*�	������������������	����������
�����	�����	�����	������	��������
�������C������	��	�����
	�����	�

Page 72



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	����	�����������������������

�

���*��	������������	���������������*����������������*������������	�
�����������0�
�
���
����?�-���������
�������	�����������&�����������������*��������
�
����	�������������������������	�������������	���
�����	����
��	�������
�����
���������
������	�
�����	��	�������������	������	���
�������	����	�������������0�
�
.-�����������	��(��	���
��	��������������*����	������	��<��������)�%�
$��
����	���	������
������:
�����	�����	����������(�������"
���������	��
(�����%����*� ���
��	��������������������������*����	��������	
���*����
	�������������������3	2�
�
.I	��������������	�����
	����(����
���$
����70E���
	������%�		���	�
��:
��������������������������������������	�������������	�������������*����	�
�������	
��2���
�

�8�� ��(,$5% 3��'��&(���$�����%+3�%'+�&'��3���/)8��%+3���$�����	& �&'��.���
-��������������������������	���
����������������������	��������
��� ��
	��������������������������������
�������	�����������������	��	�
>����&�������"��	�&�����	��*������
���������������	��	
��*��������
�	��������	������������������������������*�����*�����	�������	���*����
"�������&��	������������������	�������������	����
���	�������������
���
	�����������	��������*�����0�3	��������	�	�������������������"����� �
�	���	��������	��������������	���	���*����	�����������	��	�������0�
�
���
����?�-���������	��������	��������������������������������>����
&�������"��	�&����*���������	�������	���*����"�������&��	�������������
�����	�������������	����
���	����������������
	�����������	��������
*�����������������0�
�

�88� ���- �	$�-(&$-��'��$'��%&'�#��%$.&$����>%��""�  ��
%
����������	
���/0�1E�������+���������������������������������������	��
�
��������������������	��	��������������	����	��������������&��
��	��
"����.$���	�����	2����*�	�������	:
�����	�������
��������	����	��������
������	�������<�����������	�������
���)�	�����)�����"�������3	���	���	���
#�����0�3	��������	�	�������������������"����� ��	���	��������	�����
���������	���	���*����	�����������	��	�������0�
�
3	��	������	���������������������������������������	���������
���������
���<������	���	��
��������������*�������<������������������������	��
�����
����	����������	������������������
��	���������	������������8������
�0�3	������
���������������������������	���������%���
�����	�����	��(��	0�-���
������	����	����������&��
��	��"����.$���	�����	2�*����	�����	�����
*���������������������
���������	����	���
�������������������
�������
	���������0��
�
�
�
�

Page 73



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	����	�����������������������

�

���
����?��
.�2� -���������	��	����������
�����������������������*������������	���

�����������&��
��	��"����.$���	�����	2��������	������	�������
	���0�

�
.�2� -��������&��
��	��"����.$���	�����	2�������	����	�������	������

�����������*������������	����	������
����������������������	����
��<�����������	�������
���)�	�����)�����"�������3	���	���	���#������
���	���0�

�
���� �&' ,#��'�; ���.&$��&'��3���,�,$��&(�?%$*+����0�$*����

-���>������&��
��	���	�����������������	���
����������������
��:
����	��������	��������	�*�������	���������B���	���	��������&��
��	��
"����.$���	�����	2��������	�������	�
���	�8��������	������
�
���������	�
�	����	�����	������� �������� ��0�3	��������	�	�������������������"����
� ��	���	��������	��������������	���	���*����	�����������	��	�������0�
�
+	��������������"������������������	 ���&��
��	��"����.$���	�����	2����
����*� �*������������
	����� �	�	������������0�-����*������*������
�
	������!�(�������������������&��
��	��"���������	��	�����������	����
�����	������"���8����	��	����	�� ����	���	�0�
�
���
����?�-������������	����	����������	����&��
��	��"����
.$���	�����	2�	������	�
���	�8������������������
�
���������	��	��
��	�����	������� �������� �������	���0�
�

���� ?%$*+����0�$*�����$���+:��'-���.%��#�9&$* ��
-��������������������������	���
����������������������	���	�
������	�
������������������� �������� ��������������	����	����J
������������
(�B������	�����	��)��0�	������
�
�����	�����	���	��*	���������������
������� ������������
����F���	������
���������������*�����*
������
�����8��
�
�
��0�3	�������	����������������������������������������	��	�	���*� ��
�������������������� ����*����������
���	�	���������������������	��
����������������	����	�����������	�
���	�8���������������	������
���������	����������������������� ����	���������
�������	����������������
��������*������������
�������	��������	���������� ��8���
�
���
��	�����	���	��*	������0�3	��������	�	�������������������"����� ��	��
�	��������	��������������	���	���*����	�����������	��	�������0�
�
3	��	������	�������	�
���	�8��������	����	�������"����	����������
���
������	����	������	�������������
	����������	�����
����������	��	��
����������
���������	����	��*
���	�����������������������������
���0��
$���	��	�����������8�����	����	���	���	������
��	����*������������
������������ ���*
��������	�*����	��
	����*	����������������*������*������
��������������������������	����������	���������������	�����������������	�*�
������	��������*����	�������������0������������	�*�����������	�������"����
���*�	���	:
�������	������������������������	���������	��������������	������
�	�
���	��0�
�
�

Page 74



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	����	�����������������������

�

���
����?��
.�2� -��������������	����	��������� ����������������J
������������

(�B������	�����	��)��0����	���0�
�
.�2� -���������
	���8���������	�����	�
������
����	������
�
������

��� �������� ����������������0�
�
.�2� -�����������	���	����	�������������	���������� ������	�����
�������

�EH��	�����������*�������
�����������������
������������	��<��	��	�
���������������1�7���19���	��'�����&������������������	���������
���
�������	�����1�=��	���9�E������0�

�
.�2� -�����������	���������	��������	�	��������	���� ����	���������	������

���*�	����������������	���������	������ �������������������	��
��B���	���������	������ ��0�

�
.�2� -�����������	���������	����������������������	���������� ����

�
���
���	�����D�4�������	����
��	��*������������	���������	
���	��
�������������������������	���	�����
�������	���	���������	B����	�
������������	�������������������������	���������	��������
���
��������������
��������
	����� �	0�

�
.�2� -�����������������:
����������������� �	�����
�����������

��������������
����	�������������������"����	������������������	��
��	�	��������������	������������������	���	�����
�������	��
�������0�

�
.�2� -����������������	���
��������<�������������	�������	��

�������	������������������������	�����������	����������	�������
��� ��������	�	���	������
	���8������*	��������	����	�����	�0�

�
.�2� -����������������	���
��������	�������
������������������������

�������	��	���������������������	�������J
�����������0�
�
.I	��������������	�����
	����(����
���$
����70E���
	������#��������
��:
�����������������������������������	����������	��	�����������	��
�����������*����	��������	
��2���
�
.�
	������'��	����������������	����	��������	�������������
��������
�	������	���	�������� ����%�
����	����������
������������������	��
���:
�	�������������������� ��2�
�
���@�	
���

����
����@������@�������
��
�

���� �&A�$- �0&$���'��+$���-��&"�#%�:�9&$*%'+�����'���$#:���4%�A�&(��3��
�'4%$&'��'��#���$4%"� ��#�+��%&'��
%
����������	
���/0��11��4��������������������#������	��������;<��
�����
.�
������#�������	��(������	��2��
����������������������	���	�������
�����������*���������������	����	���	��	��������������	��*����������
������
�������*����;���������������������������	�#��������������������������

Page 75



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	����	�����������������������

�

�������������#����&
�����-����0��-�����������	����������	�����	�����
����
���	������	���	��	�����
����
������� �	�������	����#�������������
�����	����*���������	�����������*��������;	���	��	����������	���	��
��������#�������������������8�%�
�������	�0��3	��������	�	���������������
����"����� ��	���	��������	��������������	���	���*����	�����
������	��	�������0�
�
��������*�������������������*������������	�������	�������������
��
���������������	�������	�
��������������*����
������	�����
����������������

	����� ����������������������	��	������������	�����������������������
������� �	����*��	������������0�3	�������	��������������������������
��	��������������������	�����	�����	���������������	���������������
���������	�����������������0��
�
���
����?��
.�2� -������������
�����������	���	����	�����;����������������	�����

���������������������*������0�
�
.�2� -���������������*�����*�����������������������������������������

�	�����0�
�
.�2� -���������	����
��	������	���	��������*	�*����	�#���	��<���������

�
������������������������0�
�
.�2� -����������������
��������������
���	��������*����#��������������

������������������������	��������
���������������������������	���	�
����������'�		��D'
��������	��	���	��'�������0�

�
���� �&, %'+���4�',���""&,'����#(��%'�'"%'+��'-�	, %'�  ��#�'��

-�������������;	���	��	���	��/�����
������
����������������
�����	��	�����������������>
��	��$���	
��#��
	��.>$#2�"
��	����(��	0��
3	�������	���������������������������������� �����	��	���������������	��
���	��������	���	���*����	�����(��	0�3	��������	�	�������������������"����� �
�	���	��������	��������������	���	���*����	�����������	��	�������0�
�
-���"����*��������������������������	�������������
��
������	����
�������������������	���	�������0�3	�������	������������:
�������������
������������
��	����� ���������	���*����	��������*�����*
���

�����������������5���	�	������	��8����	������������*��������������*����
���
���������*� ��	��	
����	���������	�
���������	���
�����������������
�<�����	��������	�#)�+�*
�����������������:
������0���
�
3	��	��
��	�����*����
������������������������������������������������
����	���	���������
��*��������
���0�
�
���
����?��
.�2� -��������>$#�"
��	����(��	���������	�����������
������������������

�������0�
�

Page 76



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	����	�����������������������

�

.�2� -�������� ��������������	������	����������
��*����	�����(��	�����
�������0�

�
.�2� -����������	�����������
���	����������	�<��E�������������������	�

�������������������	������	������	�0�
�
.�2� -�������������������	���#)�+������������������	��
�����������

��:
�������	���������
����	���������	������	������	�����	����0�
�

��!� �'4� ���'��%'��((&$-�5#���&, %'+�%'����- ��
-�������������;	���	��	���	��/�����
������
����������������*�����
���������	�������*��������������
��	������������	�)�������	������9��
��������������	��<�����	��	������
���	����
���	������	����	�����	��
��*�����
���	����������������������������������������������������
�����������
��	���	������	���	�)����0�3	��������	�	�������������������"����
� ��	���	��������	��������������	���	���*����	�����������	��	�������0�
�
��������*�����������	
������������������
��	��
	����*������������	�
������������������������#���������>����(����������	���	������������
���������	�*�������	�����������������������������&����	���7��������	��0��
�
���
����?��
.�2� -�������������������
��	���	������	��*�����)������������	�

�
������
���	���������	������������������	������9����	���0�
�
.�2� -�����	������	���	������������
��	������������	�)�����������������

�*��������	�������������	�������	�����������������������	�������*����	�
����)�����>
��	��3	������	��(��	�.)>3(20�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
����
����	������
���� �=->�%;"$I#$,������
�
����������
����������

�����@�	��������
���� �����%;"$I#$,������
�
.&��
��	��&
�����*����	�����������������	����������������	������0����0�0�	�
��/��%���
��������2�
�
�
�

Page 77



Page 78

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS 
Relating to Scrutiny Board (Safer and Stronger Communities) 

 
 

1 March 2012 – 30 June 2012 
 
 

 

P
age 79



What is the Forward Plan? 
 
The Forward Plan is a list of the key decisions the Authority intends to take during the period 1 March 2012 – 30 June 2012.  
The Plan is updated monthly and is available to the public 14 days before the beginning of each month. 
 
What is a Key Decision? 
 
A Key decision, as defined in the Council’s Constitution is an executive decision which is likely to: 
 

• result in the Authority incurring expenditure or making savings over £250,000 per annum, or 

• have a significant effect on communities living or working in an area comprising 2 or more wards 
 
What does the Forward Plan tell me? 
 
The Plan gives information about: 
 
Ø  what key decisions are coming forward in the next four months 
Ø  when those key decisions are likely to be made 
Ø  who will make those decisions 
Ø  what consultation will be undertaken 
Ø  who you can make representations to 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 80



Who takes key decisions? 
 
Under the Authority’s Constitution, key decisions are taken by the Executive Board or Officers acting under delegated 
powers. 
 
Who can I contact? 
 
Each entry in the Plan indicates the names of all the relevant people to contact about that particular item.  In addition, 
the last page of the Forward Plan gives a complete list of all Executive Board members. 
 
How do I make contact? 
 
Wherever possible, full contact details are listed in the individual entries in the Forward Plan.  If you are unsure how to 
make contact, please ring Leeds City Council and staff there will be able to assist you: 
 

Leeds City Council  - Telephone: 0113 2474357 
 
How do I get copies of agenda papers? 
 
The agenda papers for Executive Board meetings are available five working days before the meeting from: 
 

Governance Services, Civic Hall, Portland Crescent, Leeds, LS1 1UR 
Telephone: 0113 2474350 

Fax: 0113 3951599 
Email: cxd.councilandexec@leeds.gov.uk 

 
 
 

 

P
age 81



On occasions, the papers you request may contain exempt or confidential information. If this is the case, it will be 
explained why it will not be possible to make copies available. 
 
Where can I see a copy of the Forward Plan? 
 
The Plan can be found on the Leeds City Council Website www.leeds.gov.uk.  The Plan is regularly updated and for 
legal reasons is formally published on a monthly basis on the following dates: 
 
2011/12 
 

16th June 2011 17th December 2011 

15th July 2011 17th January 2012 

17th August 2011 15th February 2012 

16th September 2011 16th March 2012 

17th October 2011 16th April 2012 

16th November 2011  

 

About this publication 

 
For enquiries about the Forward Plan of Key Decisions please: 
 
E-mail: cxd.councilandexec@leeds.gov.uk or telephone:  0113 247 4357 
 
Visit our website www.leeds.gov.uk for more information on council services, departments, plans and reports. 
 
This publication can also be made available in Braille or audio cassette. Please call: 0113 247 4357 
 

P
age 82



If you do not speak English and need help in understanding this document, please phone:  0113 247 4357 and state the 
name of your language.  
We will then make arrangements for an interpreter to contact you.    We can assist with any language and there is no 
charge for interpretation. 
 
(Bengali):- 

 
(Chinese):- 

 
(Hindi):- 

 
(Punjabi):- 

 
(Urdu):- 

 

P
age 83



 
LEEDS CITY COUNCIL 

 
FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS 

For the period 1 March 2012 to 30 June 2012 
 

Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 
Date of 

Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by Decision 

Maker 

Lead Officer 
(To whom 

representations should 
be made and email 

address to send 
representations to) 

Request to invoke the first 
12 month extension for the 
existing 3(+1+1) Service 
Level Agreement with Adult 
Social Care Learning 
Disabilities for the 
Independent Living Project 
(ILP) Services. 
      

Director of 
Environment and 
Neighbourhoods 
 

1/3/12 
      

 
 
 

Report to be presented to 
the Delegated Decision 
Panel in November 2011 
 

 
neil.evans@leeds.gov.
uk 
 

P
age 84



 
Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 

Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by Decision 

Maker 

Lead Officer 
(To whom 

representations should 
be made and email 

address to send 
representations to) 

Recommendations and 
outcomes arising from the 
Strategic Sector Review for 
the future provision of 
housing related support 
services for Young People. 
Authorisation from the 
Director of Environment 
and Neighbourhoods to 
implement the 
recommendations and 
outcomes of the 
Strategic Sector Review 
for the future provision 
housing related support 
services for Young 
People.  
 

Director of 
Environment and 
Neighbourhoods 
 
 

1/3/12 n/a 
 
 

Report to be presented to 
the Commissioning Body 
and the Director 
 

 
neil.evans@leeds.gov.
uk 
 

P
age 85



 
Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 

Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by Decision 

Maker 

Lead Officer 
(To whom 

representations should 
be made and email 

address to send 
representations to) 

Infrastructure Support Fund 
grant allocations 2012/13 
Approval of grant 
allocations for the 
Infrastructure Support Fund 
to organisations to enable 
them to deliver practical 
infrastructure support 
services to voluntary, 
community and faith sector 
organisations for 2012/13. 

Director of 
Environment and 
Neighbourhoods 
 
 

1/2/12 Consultation with 
current providers, 
LCC Officers and 
with Executive 
Member. 

 
 
 

Report to be presented to 
Delegated Decision Panel, 
Environment and 
Neighbourhoods 
 

 
julie.staton@leeds.gov.
uk 
 

Advice Agency grant 
allocations 2012/13 
Approval of grant 
allocations to advice 
agencies including:- 
Leeds Citizens Advice 
Bureau, Chapeltown 
Citizens Advice Bureau 
and Leeds Law Centre 
for 2012/13. 
 

Director of 
Environment and 
Neighbourhoods 
 
 

1/3/12 Consultation with 
advice agencies, 
LCC Officers and 
with Executive 
Member. 

 
 
 

Report to be presented to 
Delegated Decision Panel, 
Environment and 
Neighbourhoods 
 

 
julie.staton@leeds.gov.
uk 
 

P
age 86



 
Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 

Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by Decision 

Maker 

Lead Officer 
(To whom 

representations should 
be made and email 

address to send 
representations to) 

Request to invoke the 1 
year contract extension to 
the 2 (+1) year contract 
held with Great Places for 
the Resettlement Support 
Service at an annual value 
of £367,000. 
      

Director of 
Environment and 
Neighbourhoods 
 
 

1/3/12       
 
 

EIA screening document 
 

 
luke.myers@leeds.gov
.uk 
 

Asbestos removal contract 
To further extend the 
Asbestos removal 
contract for Aire Valley 
homes and West North 
West homes from 7 
March 2011 to 1 
October 2012. 
 

Director of 
Environment and 
Neighbourhoods 
 
 

1/3/12 Previously undertaken:  
The in house 
contractor, Property 
Maintenance has been 
consulted this 
proposed extension 
 
 

None. 
 

 
simeon.perry@leeds.g
ov.uk 
 

P
age 87



 
Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 

Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by Decision 

Maker 

Lead Officer 
(To whom 

representations should 
be made and email 

address to send 
representations to) 

Asbestos Removal 
Contract 
To agree the service 
provision for Asbestos 
removal within Aire Valley 
homes and West North 
West homes from 1st July 
2012 

Director of 
Environment and 
Neighbourhoods 
 
 

1/3/12 Previously undertaken: 
The in house 
contractor, Property 
Maintenance has been 
consulted on the 
proposal for service 
provision post June 
2012. 
 
 

Internal SLA 
 

Simeon Perry 
simeon.perry@leeds.g
ov.uk 
 

P
age 88



 
Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 

Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by Decision 

Maker 

Lead Officer 
(To whom 

representations should 
be made and email 

address to send 
representations to) 

Recommendations and 
outcomes arising from the 
Strategic Sector Review for 
the future provision of 
housing related support 
services for Homeless 
People. 
Authorisation from the 
Director of Environment 
and Neighbourhoods to 
implement the 
recommendations and 
outcomes of the 
Strategic Sector Review 
for the future provision 
housing related support 
services for Homeless 
People.  
 

Director of 
Environment and 
Neighbourhoods 
 
 

1/3/12 n/a 
 
 

Report to be presented to 
the Commissioning Body 
 

 
neil.evans@leeds.gov.
uk 
 

P
age 89



 
Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 

Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by Decision 

Maker 

Lead Officer 
(To whom 

representations should 
be made and email 

address to send 
representations to) 

Request to implement a 
framework contract 
arrangement for provision 
of Supervised 
Consumption service in 
Pharmacies 
Request to implement a 
framework contract 
arrangement for provision 
of Supervised 
Consumption service in 
Pharmacies 

Director of 
Environment and 
Neighbourhoods 
 
 

1/3/12 None 
 
 

Delegated Decision Report 
 

 
neil.evans@leeds.gov.
uk 
 

Review of commissioned 
housing related support 
services for people with 
mental health problems 
      

Director of 
Environment and 
Neighbourhoods 
 
 

1/3/12 
      

 
 
 

Report to be presented to 
Delegated Decision Panel 
 

 
neil.evans@leeds.gov.
uk 
 

Pest Control Tender 
Tender for a reactive pest 
control service to domestic 
properties within the Leeds 
boundary by a single 
external service provider.  

Chief Officer 
Environmental 
Services 
 
 

1/3/12 Executive Member for 
Environmental 
Services 
 
 

Pest Control Tender 
Service Specification 
 

 
ian.masterton@leeds.g
ov.uk 
 

P
age 90



 
Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 

Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by Decision 

Maker 

Lead Officer 
(To whom 

representations should 
be made and email 

address to send 
representations to) 

Request to enter into the 
first 1 year extension 
period to the existing 
3(+1+1) year service level 
agreement with Adult 
Social Care Mental Health 
for the three Transitional 
Housing Unit services, the 
Sustainment Team Floating 
Support Service and the  
      

Director of 
Environment and 
Neighbourhoods 
 
 

1/3/12 
      

 
 
 

Report to be presented to 
the Delegated Decision 
Panel 
 

 
neil.evans@leeds.gov.
uk 
 

Request to enter into a 
Supporting People contract 
with St. Anne's Community 
Services for the St. Anne's 
Mental Health Floating 
Support Service at a total 
contract value of 
approximately £311,526.44 
per annum. 
      

Director of 
Environment and 
Neighbourhoods 
 
 

1/3/12 
      

 
 
 

EIA Screening 
 

 
simon.griffiths@leeds.
gov.uk 
 

P
age 91



 
Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 

Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by Decision 

Maker 

Lead Officer 
(To whom 

representations should 
be made and email 

address to send 
representations to) 

Leeds Tenants Federation 
Approval of Annual Grant 
to Leeds Tenants 
Federation 

Director of 
Environment and 
Neighbourhoods 
 
 

1/3/12 Development id the 
grant agreement is in 
partnership with Leeds 
Tenants Federation. 
Leeds Tenants 
Federation will develop 
their service plan. 
 
 

Grant Agreement and LTF 
Service Plan 
 

 
simeon.perry@leeds.g
ov.uk 
 

Options for spending 
Commuted Sums for 
Affordable Housing 
Approval for the use of 
commuted sums to fund a 
menu of approaches to the 
delivery of affordable 
housing 

Executive Board 
(Portfolio: 
Neighbourhoods, 
Housing and 
Regeneration) 
 

7/3/12 Ward Members will be 
consulted in wards 
where specific area 
based projects are 
proposed. 
 
 

The report to be issued to 
the decision maler with the 
agenda for the meeting 
 

 
sue.morse@leeds.gov.
uk 
 

Update on Leeds Burglary 
Reduction Programme 
None, information only 

Executive Board 
(Portfolio: 
Neighbourhoods, 
Housing and 
Regeneration) 
 

7/3/12  
 
 

The report to be issued to 
the decision maker with the 
agenda for the meeting 
 

 
keith.gilert@leeds.gov.
uk 
 

P
age 92



 
Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 

Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by Decision 

Maker 

Lead Officer 
(To whom 

representations should 
be made and email 

address to send 
representations to) 

Camera Enforcement of 
Bus Lanes (BLE)-Phase 2, 
Leeds City Wide Approval 
Agree to roll out the BLE to 
all remaining Bus Lanes 
and gates in Leeds. Allow 
the inclusion of cameras for 
enforcement as part on 
new bus lane and bus gate 
schemes. 

Executive Board 
(Portfolio: 
Development and 
the Economy) 
 

7/3/12 Consultations were 
carried out as part  of 
the BLE Phase 1 pilot. 
Press releases will be 
issued to notify 
motorists of the 
expansion of the 
system. 
 
 

The report to be issued to 
the decision maker with the 
agenda for the meeting 
 

 
gary.bartlett@leeds.go
v.uk 
 

East North East Homes 
Leeds Gas Servicing 
Contract 
Approval for LCC to enter 
into a 4 year contract with 
an external provider to 
deliver a 3* Gas 
servicing/Maintenance 
programme to East North 
East Homes Leeds 
properties. Procurement 
will be via the Fusion 21 
Procurement Framework. 

Director of 
Environment and 
Neighbourhoods 
 
 

29/3/12 Previously undertaken 
 
 

Tender report including 
Fusion21 recommendations 
based on selection criteria. 
(Signed Waiver to use 
framework, Report to 
ENEHL Board of Directors 
considering procurement 
options). 
 

 
tony.butler@leeds.gov.
uk 
 

 

P
age 93



 
 
NOTES 

 
Key decisions  are those executive decisions: 

• which result in the authority incurring expenditure or making savings over £250,000 per annum, or 

• are likely to have a significant effect on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards 
 

Executive Board Portfolios Executive Member 
 

Resources and Corporate Functions Councillor Keith Wakefield 

Development and the Economy Councillor Richard Lewis 

Environmental Services Councillor Mark Dobson 

Neighbourhoods Housing and 
Regeneration 

Councillor Peter Gruen 

Children’s Services Councillor Judith Blake 

Leisure Councillor Adam Ogilvie 

Adult Health and Social Care Councillor Lucinda Yeadon 

Leader of the Conservative Group Councillor Andrew Carter 

Leader of the Liberal Democrat 
Group 

Councillor Stewart Golton 

Leader of the Morley Borough Indep Councillor Robert Finnigan 

 
 

P
age 94



 
In cases where Key Decisions to be taken by the Executive Board are not included in the Plan, 5 days notice of the intention to take such 
decisions will be given by way of the agenda for the Executive Board meeting.  
 

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL 
BUDGET AND POLICY FRAMEWORK DECISIONS 

Decisions Decision Maker Expected Date 
of Decision 

Proposed 
Consultation 

Documents to be considered 
by Decision Maker 

Lead Officer 

Budget 
 
 

Council 22nd February 
2012 

Via Executive Board, 
Scrutiny Board 
(Resources and Council 
Services), relevant 
stakeholders 
 

Report to be issued to the decision 
maker with the agenda for the meeting 
covering the following reports 

a) Revenue Budget  
b) Council Tax 
c) Capital Programme 
d) Treasury Management 

 
 

Director of 
Resources 

Vision for Leeds 
 

Council To be 
confirmed 

Via Executive Board, all 
Scrutiny Boards 

Report to be issued to the 
decision maker with the agenda 
for the meeting 
 

Assistant Chief 
Executive 
(Planning, Policy 
and 
Improvement) 

Council Business 
Plan 

Council July 2013 Via Executive Board, all 
Scrutiny Boards 

Report to be issued to the 
decision maker with the agenda 
for the meeting 
 

Assistant Chief 
Executive (Policy, 
Planning and 
Improvement) 

Safer and Stronger 
Communities Plan 
(includes Safer and 
Stronger 
Communities City 
Priority Plan) 
 

Council July 2013 Via Executive Board, 
Scrutiny Board (Safer 
and Stronger 
Communities), Leeds 
Initiative Board, Safer 
and Stronger 
Communities 
Partnership Board 

Report to be issued to the 
decision maker with the agenda 
for the meeting 
 

Director of 
Environment and 
Neighbourhoods 

 

P
age 95



 
 
NOTES: 
The Council’s Constitution, in Article 4, defines those plans and strategies which make up the Budget and Policy Framework. Details of the 
consultation process are published in the Council’s Forward Plan as required under the Budget and Policy Framework.  
 
Full Council ( a meeting of all Members of Council) are responsible for the adoption of the Budget and Policy Framework. 

P
age 96


	Agenda
	6 Minutes - 13 February 2012
	7 Local Lettings Policies Annual Review
	Appx01_LLPs 2012

	8 2011/12 Quarter 3 Performance Report
	Safer and Stronger Communities App 1a performance reports
	Safer and Stronger Communities App 1b EN Directorate Scorecard

	9 Financial Health Monitoring 2011/12
	a - P10 Report
	b- Scrutiny HRA Period 10 narrative 2011-12
	c - EN Scrutiny Period 10 2011-12

	10 Recommendation Tracking
	11 Work Schedule
	appendix 1 - work schedule
	appdx2 - exec mins
	appendix 3 Forward Plan for SSC Board March 2012


